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Letter from the Chairman

Solid foundations were laid during 2012 for a return to growth.
One important development during the year was that talks have
begun with a view to creating a European Banking Union, which
would entail a major transfer of power from the national and
regional supervisors to the European Central Bank.

Letter from the Chief Executive Officer

The framework within which banks can act will no longer be
confined to regional or state territory but will look beyond those
limits to the European market and regulator. The restructuring
process we are currently tackling will put us in an ideal position
to play a major role within the European financial system, com-
mensurate with our capacity and potential. The anticipation
of this inclination towards Europe has guided our restructuring
process from the outset to make sure that our institutions are
ready for the challenge of the European Banking Union.
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The transformation of CECA at this precise time is no coinciden-
ce. The creation of Cecabank is a turning point in our history and
completes the adaptation of our organisation, as has already
occurred in the vast majority of undertakings in our sector.

Through the sector restructuring process, of the 45 savings
banks operating at the beginning of 2010, 43 have participa-
ted or are participating in some kind of business combination or
consolidation. As a result, there is now one-third of the original
number of savings banks and their average size has tripled.

Parallel to this unprecedented consolidation process, the sus-
tained efforts to enhance efficiency have made it possible to
greatly reduce our installed capacity. These efforts boosted the
strength and capacity of the Spanish financial system, ready to
face the major challenges that lie ahead.

The challenges facing the Spanish economy in the immediate
future lie in three closely linked scenarios: global, national and
specific aspects of our financial system.

In the global scenario, especially in Europe, the tax consolida-
tion and structural reforms will have to be combined with a firm
commitment to growth to pull out of the crisis.

Letter from the Chief Executive Officer

In Spain, the main concern is still the high unemployment rate
and weak internal demand. Against this backdrop, policies gea-
red to stimulate business competitiveness and enhance produc-
tivity will be very important.

And within the financial system, the legal and institutional fra-
mework must be stable and secure enough to enable us to per-
form our trade, which is essentially to support business and per-
sonal projects by granting loans and credit facilities.

The application of these strategies will be vital to restore confi-
dence in the Spanish financial system and preserve the banking
model with which the members of CECA formed the first social
and welfare network in Spain.

We have been investing resources in social work for two cen-
turies, helping to improve opportunities for the underprivileged
segments of the population and we plan to continue doing this
in the future.

Isidro Fainé Casas
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Letter from the Chief Executive Officer

2012 will be remembered as the year in which Cecabank came
into existence, taking over the financial businesses and services
of CECA, thereby completing the lengthy, intense work that be-
gan with the reform of our articles of association in July 2011,
a fundamental landmark in itself, by permitting the integration
in CECA’s governing bodies of the new entities created by the
savings banks within the restructuring process.

In March, the new Board resolved to set the ball rolling to spin
off the financial business of the Confederation into a new bank.
Four months later, the General Assembly approved an offer to
buy back the association’s share certificates (negotiable finan-
cial instruments issued by Saving Banks wich may produce an
economisc yield but entail no ownership rights) issued in 1988
conditional upon subscribing a capital increase in the new bank,
Cecabank, with the acceptance of 97.34% of the issue. After an
independent assessment, the savings banks that accepted the
offer became the new shareholders of Cecabank, holding 11% of
the capital, the remaining 89% being held by CECA.

After obtaining authorisation from the Minister of Economy and
Competitiveness in the Order of 1 October 2012, the new bank
came on stream in November and by December it had assets
valued at €15,016 million, equity of €704.6 million and a prin-
cipal capital ratio of 18.4%, one of the highest on the market.
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The new structure of the group is beneficial for corporate gover-
nance, since it aids an adequate separation of functions: CECA
maintains its representation of the new sector while Cecabank
has taken over the business and services functions in a model
open to the entire financial system. CECA now has a simple go-
vernance structure, characteristic of an association (Assembly,
Board and dependent committees, such as the Foundations and
Social Work Committee). Funcas will continue to organise CECA’'s
Social Work, maintaining its function of promoting economic
and social surveys and investigations. Cecabank, with a smaller
Board of Directors including independent members, is designed
as a wholesale bank, which will provide securities, treasury and
banknotes services, technological means and payment services,
as well as consultancy and support services.

The group has improved its financial margin over 2012 through
adequate management of liquidity and the investments made. In
the area of commissions, the depositary and securities business
increased as a result of the recent acquisitions of the trustee bu-
siness of collective investment undertakings and pension funds,
offsetting the dwindling commissions from traditional services,
such as technological services. Consequently, the Cecabank ser-
vices are an upgrade of the CECA portfolio.

We have also slashed overheads by enhancing efficiency, among
other measures by considerably downsizing our workforce
through negotiated redundancies and early retirements. Over
the past two years, the headcount has been cut from 870 to
583 employees, a 33% reduction. Over the same period, the
entity’s payroll has been trimmed by 43%.
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We are currently drafting our Strategic Plan 2013-2016. This
plan, which will be submitted to the Board of Directors during the I
first four months of 2013, proposes a growth strategy focusing
on consolidated business areas, such as trustee, depositary, trea-
sury and securities services, with a parallel reduction of services
provided to smaller entities. Cecabank aims to become a ben-
chmark in Spain in the provision of independent services related
with the custody, settlement and deposit of funds and securities.

José Maria Méndez Alvarez-Cedrén
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“CECA came into
being 1928 as

a body through
which savings
banks could join
forces and be
represented in
different forums”

2.1. History of CECA

Confederacién Espafiola de Cajas de Ahorros, the Spanish Con-
federation of Savings Banks, was founded in 1928 at the ini-
tiative of Federacién de Cajas de Ahorros Vasco-Navarras (the
Basque-Navarre Federation of Savings Banks) to combine the
efforts of all its members and represent them in different forums.

of CECA Cecabank

In 1971, the Confederation took over most of the duties of Insti-
tuto de Crédito de las Cajas de Ahorros (ICCA), the Savings Banks
Credit Institute, including: purchase and trading of securities and
investment of funds on behalf of the savings banks; drawing and
transfer of funds and passbooks between members; and acting
as a subsidiary agency of the savings banks in their customers’
deposits and withdrawals. At the same time, the Confederation
inherited ICCA’s principal coordination function, granting loans
to savings banks with funds that they had voluntarily deposited.

10
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As a result, CECA no longer had a purely representative role. It
embarked on a new venture, with financial services, operations
and duties more characteristic of credit institutions. A research
unit was set up in 1976 and its work was later used as the basis
for reforming the Spanish financial system.

In addition to recruiting staff with a new professional profile, new
training policies were introduced in the sector around that time
and the ESCA (Escuela Superior de Cajas de Ahorros) college was
opened. With the deregulation of the Spanish financial system
in 1977, savings banks recovered their traditional independence
from politics and full operating capacity (which had been se-
verely undermined by the interventionism of the authorities as
from 1940, particularly evident in the regulation of compulsory
investments).

Royal Decree 2290/1977 of 27 August clearly defined the scope
of the Spanish Confederation of Savings Banks for the first time,
defining CECA as the National Association and financial services
provider of all member savings banks.

The Savings Banks (Governing Bodies) Act (LORCA) of 1985 con-
firmed the model initially designed within the reforms of the sev-
enties. Since then, owing to the major expansion of the savings
banks sector within the Spanish financial system, savings banks
have had to reconcile their cooperation within the Confederation
with their growing commercial competition with one another on
the market.

11
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Against this new backdrop and upon recommendation by the
Board of Directors, the General Assembly approved a change
of strategy and organisation in 1990, basically redefining the
Confederation’s objectives to bring its services in line with the
demands of savings banks on free market conditions. Under this
new arrangement, it became common practice to set rates for
the operating, financial and technological services provided for
and voluntarily acquired by savings banks, with the ultimate
aim of making them self-financing. Moreover, as the productiv-
ity of its association duties grew, membership fees were lowered
every year as from 1995.

The next milestone in this evolution was the passing of the 2002
Finance Act and the 2003 Transparency Act. The purpose of the
Finance Act was twofold: to make the management of savings
banks even more professional and to facilitate their access to the
capital market. The Transparency Act increased savings banks’
disclosure requirements to regulatory bodies and the public.
Since its entry into force, savings banks have published an an-
nual corporate governance report informing on the decision-
making processes of their governing bodies.

The publication in July 2010 of Royal Decree-Law 11/2010
of 9 July on Governing Bodies and Other Aspects of the Legal
Framework of Savings Banks brought a significant reform to
Spanish law. The most characteristic feature of the reform was
the acceptance of institutional diversity, as it had been accepted
in the late XIX century, through numerous strategic alternatives
for these institutions, based on their business autonomy while
maintaining their distinctive properties.

12
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The reform provided solutions tailored to the different needs of
savings banks, putting new corporate formulas at their disposal
(indirect performance of the business, consolidation through in-
stitutional protection schemes and the issuing of association’s
share certificates with or without voting rights).

Each savings bank was to choose the solution that best suited
its vocation and needs. But at the same time, the reform fully
respected the legal nature of savings banks. All the new formulas
maintained a foundational substratum that guaranteed the sur-
vival of the corporate model inherited from the LORCA: a model
based on the stakeholder approach and commitment to regional
development through Social Work and advanced corporate so-
cial responsibility policies.

y 4

The reform was structured on two basic lines of action: the first
aimed to foster the capitalisation of savings banks, facilitating
their access to top quality resources on an equal footing with
other credit institutions, and the second sought to enhance the
professional competence of their governing bodies. These lines
were complemented with a modification of the tax system to
guarantee tax neutrality of the different models of consolidation.

13
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“The restructuring Following the reform made by Royal Decree-Law 11/2010, I
. of 9 July on Governing Bodies and other aspects of the Legal

process gave rise to Framework of Savings Banks, the process of restructuring and
the banks through concentration of the savings banks sector led to the creation of
which the savings new corporate structures and new types of institution, whose

financial business derived from the financial business of one or
banks now perform several savings banks. They were essentially the banks through
their financial which the savings banks now perform their financial business.
business” In December 2012, the sector was made up of entities perform-

ing financial business directly (savings banks) or indirectly (the
banks of savings banks) and foundations, whose main purpose is
the management of social work.
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Cecabank Vision

2.2. Reforms of the Articles of Association
in 2011 and 2012

As a result of the new composition of the Sector, the Confedera-
tion had to adapt its Articles of Association to contemplate the
new types of financial institutions, which unquestionably be-
longed to the savings bank sector, as deduced from their recent
regulation. Accordingly, the Articles of Association of the Con-
federation of Spanish Savings Banks were altered by virtue of

Creation of CECA Cecabank CECA Cecabank Principal

Principal Funcas
Vision  Mission Mission objectives objectives of
of CECA Cecabank

a resolution adopted at an Extraordinary General Assembly on
20 July 2011, duly authorised by the Ministry of Economy and
Finance and entered in the Madrid Trade Register. This reform
established a new composition of the Confederation’s governing
bodies to reflect the new operating and organisational situation
in the savings sector.

Firstly, all the entities currently comprising the savings sector
are to be represented at top level in the General Assembly.

15
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Secondly, representation on the board of directors has shifted
from territorial representation, through regional Federations,
to a model based on representation of the savings banks and
savings bank groups, in view of the new situation of the sector,
permitting the inclusion of representatives of the new institution
directing the group.

All savings banks and savings bank groups are represented on
the Board of Directors. Under the new structure the General As-
sembly, as the sovereign body, will decide on the composition of
the Board of Directors.

Thirdly, two new advisory committees have been set up: the
Federations Committee, renovating the participation by Fed-
erations, and the Foundations and Social Work Committee, to
boost social work as the distinctive feature of the sector.

On 25 July 2012, following the resolution adopted by the Board
of Directors in March to spin off the financial business of CECA
into a new bank (Cecabank), the Extraordinary General Assem-
bly altered the Articles of Association, incorporating the follow-
ing changes, among others:

> Adapt the governing bodies to Royal Decree-Law 2/2012. The
Control Committee, Remuneration and Nomination Commit-
tee, Investment Committee and Audit Committee have dis-
appeared and now all the savings banks and savings bank
groups are represented on the Board of Directors.

> As a result of the disappearance of the association’s share
certificates, the rights of the legitimate holders who still have
share certificates are adapted to the liquidation of CECA and
no new share certificates may be issued.

> Finally, there are novelties regarding the members of CECA.
The full members of CECA will now be savings banks, indirect-
ly exercising savings banks and banks created by the savings
banks; and special foundations will be associated members of
CECA. The latter group will sit on the Foundations and Social
Work Committee and may be invited to General Assemblies.

16
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2.3. Creation of Cecabank

In March 2012 the Board of Directors of CECA resolved to be-
gin the process to spin off its financial business to a new bank,
Cecabank, through which CECA would perform its business and
services activity indirectly.

Cecabank was set up on 12 November 2012 as a wholesale fi-
nancial services bank, after being authorised by the Ministry of
Economy and Competitiveness and following the road map ap-
proved by the CECA Board of Directors.

With the new structure, the governing bodies of CECA still make
association-related decisions to defend the interests of its mem-
bers (savings banks and their banks) and associates (founda-
tions), while the new bank, Cecabank, will take over as service
provider.

At year-end 2012 Cecabank had assets of €15,016 million, eq-
uity of €704.6 million and a capital adequacy ratio of 18.4%.

The shareholders of the new bank are CECA, holding 89% of the
capital, and the holders of the former association’s share certifi-
cates, which have been converted into shares according to the
valuation made by an independent expert, which hold the re-
maining 11%.

17
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“CECA aims to 2.4. CECA Vision 2.5. Cecabank Vision
Strengthen its CECA's strategic goal is to strengthen its members’ position Cecabank has been set up as a credit institution, a service pro-
members’ position within the Spanish and international financial system, from the vider within the framework of a model open to all undertak-
sy . point of view of both their financial activity and their social work ings in the financial sector. Cecabank provides a set of financial,
within the Spanish . - , |
) i and social responsibility. technological and consultancy products and services based on
and international CECA's extensive track record and divided into four areas:
ﬁnancral system > Securities services (security safe-keeping and settlement,

and fund depositary)
> Treasury and bank notes

> Payment methods and services

I > Consultancy and support services
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2.6. CECA Mission

To achieve its goal, the Confederation acts as a forum of stra-
tegic reflection for all its members and undertakes to publicise, I
defend and represent their interests, fostering the important

mission they are to perform in society.

The essential principle and code of conduct of the Confederation
upholds absolute respect for the personality and independence
of its members, in both their organisation and their operations.

2.7. Cecabank Mission

Cecabank has the firm intention of focusing entirely on custom-
ers, based on three essential premises: wise management, rig-
our in knowledge, professionalism and expertise; and being open
to change.

19
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2.8. Principal objectives of CECA

As described in its Articles of Association, the principal objec-
tives of CECA are:

> Promote, facilitate and boost the domestic and international
operations of savings banks and other members of the Con-
federation, based on the social and economic importance of
saving, while safeguarding the general and reciprocal interests
of savings banks and the markets on which they operate.

of CECA

> Represent savings banks and other members of the Confeder-
ation individually or collectively before the public authorities,
facilitating their support for the government’s economic and
social policy, without prejudice to any powers of representa-
tion that savings banks or the other member institutions may
decide to exercise directly or delegate to the corresponding
Federations in matters specifically affecting the savings bank,
member institution or federation in question, which are not of
general interest for members on the whole. In order to achieve
these objectives, CECA mauy:

1. Encourage savings banks and other members of the Con-
federation to fulfil the important role they must play in so-
clety.

2. Work jointly with savings banks and other members of the
Confederation to spread and promote the virtue of saving
as efficiently as possible.

20
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3.Work directly or indirectly to instil in all social classes the
value of saving and making good use of personal and col-
lective wealth.

4.Report on such issues as the government may submit for
study, voluntarily or in response to official requests.

> Represent savings banks and other members of the Confeder-
ation internationally, particularly in the World Savings Banks

Creation of CECA Cecabank CECA Cecabank Principal

.
Principal Funcas
Mission Mission  objectives objectives of
Cecabank

of CECA

1.Grant loans and credit facilities of whatsoever nature to
savings banks and other members of the Confederation.

2.Bid for any loans and other financial transactions of the
government and other public and private entities at the re-
quest and on behalf of the savings banks and other member
institutions.

3. Facilitate and act as traders in the trading and adminis-
tration of securities commissioned by the savings banks or
other member institutions.

4. Act as agent of member institutions in deposits and with-
drawals that their customers wish to make through the
Confederation.

5. Provide economic and social assistance to Spanish emi-
grants, establishing such operating branches and agencies
as may be necessary overseas and correspondent banks
with credit institutions in the respective countries to fa-
cilitate remittances by emigrants and foreign trade and fi-
nancing transactions.

Internatlon.al Institute (WSBI), the European Savings Banks Group (ESBG)

representation and any other international organisations.

Is also one Of 1ts > Offer savings banks and other members of the Confederation

purposes” whatever financial or other services they may request and fa-
cilitate the drawing and transfer of funds and notes between
members, providing any support that may be required for
members to make optimum use of their resources and over-
come management difficulties. In this area and in strict fulfil-
ment of Spanish laws and regulations, its main functions will
be to:

21
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6. Assist savings banks and other members overseas, offering
whatever services that they may require.

“Another basic
objective of CECA
is to provide
services, prepare
statistics and give
counselling to its

7. Issue registered association’s share certificates with an
indefinite duration, which can be counted as equity; the
conditions will be agreed by the General Assembly, within
the limits laid down by law. The association’s share certifi-
cates can only be subscribed by savings banks and other
members of the Confederation and may only be transferred

of CECA

> Provide operating services, information and legal, adminis-
trative, tax, technical and investment counselling and advice,
report on any regulatory changes that may affect savings in
general or the savings banks or other members of the Con-
federation in particular; prepare statistics on savings banks
and other member institutions and analyse their manage-
ment, individually and collectively; provide counselling on or-
ganisation; promote saving and the savings banks and other

” member institutions; and any other activity that may hel
members among them. Issue bonds and debentures, subordinated or o J , U, J P
. . L . to enhance the competitive capacity of savings banks and
otherwise, all equity-backed, within the limits and on the , _
. other members of the Confederation, doing whatever may be
terms laid down by law. .
deemed fit to secure these goals.
8.And, in general, perform such actions and transactions as
may be required to fulfil its objects as a credit institution.
— ,
22 = ceca | cecabank
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Vision

> Collaborate with the financial authorities in the restructuring,
management improvement and compliance of savings banks
and other members of the Confederation.

“CECA may aiso
provide services for
any public or private
entity”

> Act as a study and training centre for all kinds of issues af-
fecting the financial markets, introducing such institutions,
services or procedures as may be considered convenient to
develop the competitive capacity and fulfilment of the general
purposes of savings banks and other member institutions and
any other players in the financial markets. It may also publish
such technical and cultural publications as may be deemed fit.

CECA Cecabank
Vision

g

CECA Cecabank Principal Principal
Mission Mission  objectives objectives of
of CECA Cecabank

Funcas

> This notwithstanding, the Confederation may provide finan-
cial, technological, administrative and counselling services to
government bodies and any other public or private entity.

23
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“The main aim 2.9. Principal objectives of Cecabank 2.10. Funcas

of Funcas is

to contribute
towards a better
understanding of

As described in its Articles of Association, the principal objec-
tives of Cecabank are:

> All kinds of activities, operations and services corresponding
to or directly or indirectly related with the banking business in
general and which it is permitted by law to perform, including

The Savings Bank Foundation (Funcas) is a private, non-profit
organisation created and financed by CECA within its Social
Work, the main aim of which is to contribute towards a better
understanding of the present Spanish economic and social situ-
ation.

To achieve this, it makes a constant analysis of the economic
situation and the evolution of the financial system; sponsors
other research and studies by external collaborators; and prom-
ulgates all this information through a large set of publications
and through the organisation of and participation in courses,
seminars and conferences.

the present SpanISh the provision of investment and ancillary services and insur-

economic and social ance brokering.

situation > The provision of technological, administrative and counselling
services to public authorities and any other public or private
entity; and the acquisition, holding, benefiting and disposal of
all kinds of marketable securities.

24
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and Cecabank can
be found on the
website
www.ceca.es”

g
Corporate Structure and procedures of Corporate Other information on corporate
governance the governing bodies shareholdings governance of the group

3.1 Corporate governance

This chapter gives ample coverage of the corporate governance
structures and practices in CECA and Cecabank. The aim is to
give all stakeholders a general idea of the group: the structure
and procedures of its governing bodies, the risk control systems
and any other significant information on corporate governance
of the group. CECA and Cecabank have two websites, www.ceca.
es and www.cagjasdeahorros.es, both regularly updated. On the
first there is a specific section containing information on the cor-
porate governance of CECA and Cecabank.

26
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“The members of
the CECA General
Assembly represent
the general
interests of saving
and savers”

.
Corporate Structure and procedures of
governance the governing bodies

3.2. Structure and procedures of the
governing bodies

3.2.1. General Assembly of CECA -General
Shareholders’ Meeting of Cecabank

The General Assembly of CECA, made up of representatives of
all the members of CECA, is the highest governing and decision-
making body. Its members, known as Consejeros Generales, rep-
resent the general interests of savings and savers.

Other information on corporate
governance of the group

Corporate
shareholdings

Among other duties contemplated in its Articles of Association,
the CECA General Assembly defines each year the broad out-
lines of the Confederation’s action plan, appoints the members
of the Board, confirms the appointment of the CEO, nominated
by the Board, and approves the annual accounts and the alloca-
tion of earnings to the Confederation’s different activities.

The CECA General Assembly holds one ordinary meeting a year,
within the time stipulated in law. Extraordinary meetings are
held whenever called by the Board or Consejeros Generales rep-
resenting at least one-tenth of the votes corresponding to all the
members.

In 2012 the CECA General Assembly held its annual meeting on
22 February and one extraordinary meeting on 25 July.

A fortnight before the annual General Assembly, the members
were provided with an Annual Report containing a detailed de-
scription of the Confederation’s development during 2011, to-
gether with the balance sheet, income statement and proposal
for the allocation of earnings.
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“On 25 July 2012,
the CECA General
Assembly approved
the indirect
performance of its
financial activity
through Cecabank”

> Approval of the separate and consolidated annual ac-

counts of CECA (balance sheet, income statement,
statement of changes in equity, statement of cash flows
and the notes to the financial statements), the manage-
ment report and allocation of earnings to the different
activities of the Confederation, as well as the manage-
ment of corporate affairs by the Board, all correspond-
ing to 2011.

Charitable and social work budget outturn for 2011
and maintenance budget for 2012.

Retirement of the Board of Directors, the Control Com-
mittee and the Remuneration and Nomination Com-
mittee; and appointment of the new Board of Directors,
Control Committee and Remuneration and Nomination
Committee.

.
Corporate Structure and procedures of Corporate Other information on corporate
governance the governing bodies shareholdings governance of the group
During 2012, the CECA General Assembly adopted the following
resolutions, among others:
22 February 2012 25 July 2012

> Approval of the division of CECA, organising a new com-
pany, with the indirect performance of its financial ac-
tivity through Cecabank.

> Partial redemption of the association’s share certifi-
cates.

> Approval of the alteration and recast of Articles of As-
sociation.

> Ratification and appointment of Board members.
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The General Shareholders’ Meeting of Cecabank is made up
of shareholders who are entitled to attend and may be repre-
sented by proxies.

Among other duties contemplated in its Articles of Association,
the General Meeting appoints and removes directors and ap-
proves the annual accounts and allocation of earnings.

The Annual General Meeting is necessarily held within the time
stipulated in law and extraordinary meetings are held whenever
requested by shareholders holding at least 5% of the capital.

No General Meetings of the Shareholders of Cecabank were held
during 2012 because Cecabank was started up on 15 Novem-
ber 2012.

“The General
Shareholders’
Meeting of
Cecabank appoints
and removes
directors and
approves the
annual accounts
and allocation of
earnings”

Corporate
shareholdings

Other information on corporate
governance of the group

y /
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“The Boards of
Directors are
responsible for the
administration,
management and
representation

of CECA and
Cecabank”

.
Corporate Structure and procedures of
governance the governing bodies

3.2.2 Board of Directors

The administration, management and representation of CECA
and Cecabank are entrusted to their respective Boards of Direc-
tors. As such, these bodies are responsible for the governance and
administration of both entities and represent them in all matters
relating to their business and in any legal disputes, with the pow-
ers expressly vested in them in the Articles of Association.

The members of the Boards of Directors of CECA and Cecabank
are appointed by the General Assembly and the General Share-
holders’ Meeting, respectively, in @ number decided by those
bodies, which may not be fewer than 5 nor more than 15.

In CECA nominations for Board members are submitted by the
members and nominees may only be Consejeros Generales.

Corporate
shareholdings

Other information on corporate
governance of the group

y 4

According to the Articles of Association, both Boards must hold
at least six meetings a year, called by the Chairman.

Eleven CECA Board meetings and three Cecabank Board meet-
ings were held during 2012, called by the Chairman at his own
initiative.

The meetings of both Boards were attended by the CEO and the

Secretary, who acted as non-director vice-secretary, although
they were not entitled to speak or vote.
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At 31 December 2012, the members of the Boards of Directors
of CECA and Cecabank coincided, consisting of the following per-

sons:
CHAIRMAN: SECRETARY:
>D. Isidro Fainé Casas >D. Carlos Egea Krauel
VICE-CHAIRMEN: MEMBERS:
>D. Amado Franco Lahoz >D. Manuel Menéndez Menéndez
>D. José Ignacio Goirigolzarri Tellaeche >D. Adolf Todé Rovira
>D. Braulio Medel Cdmara >D. Evaristo del Canto Canto
>D. Mario Fernandez Pelaz >D. José Maria Castellano Rios
>D. Rafael Soriano Cairols
>D. Juan Maria Peman Gavin
>D. Josep A. Cifre Rodriguez
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“The Board Of 3.2.3 Executive Committee The members of this Committee are the Chairman, Vice-Chair-

. _ _ _ men and Secretary of the Board. Accordingly, at 31 December
Directors Of The Board of Directors may delegate its powers to the Executive 2012, the members of the Executive Committee were:
Cecabank may Committee, except those concerning the submission of propos-
als to the General Assembly and those especially delegated to > Isidro Faine Casas

delegate its powers
to the Executive
Committee, except

the Board, unless it is expressly authorised to do so. > Amado Franco Lahoz

Twelve CECA Executive Committee meetings were held in 2012. > José Ignacio Goirigolzarri Tellaeche

any which may not > Braulio Medel Cdmara
be delegated by > Mario Fernandez Pelaz
IaW or the artiCIeS” > Carlos Egea Krauel

y 4
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“On 14 November
2012 the CECA
Board of Directors
put on record the
winding up of the
Remuneration
and Nomination
Committee”

.
Corporate Structure and procedures of
governance the governing bodies

3.2.4 Remuneration and Nomination Committee

Among other duties, the Remuneration and Nomination Com-
mittee of CECA reported on the general remuneration and incen-
tives policy for members of the Board of Directors and Control
Committee and for senior executives and ensured observance of
that policy.

The duties and procedures of this Committee were set out in
the CECA Articles of Association and in the committee’s internal
regulations.

The Remuneration and Nomination Committee held five meet-
ings in 2012 and submitted two reports to the Board of Direc-
tors, on review of expenses of the governing bodies and support
committees.

Other information on corporate
governance of the group

Corporate
shareholdings

On 14 November 2012, when the CECA Board of Directors put
on record its winding up by virtue of the new Articles of Associa-
tion, the members of the Remuneration and Nomination Com-
mittee of CECA were:

> Amado Franco Lahoz (Chairman)
> Antonio Pulido Gutiérrez (Vice-Chairman)
> Adolf Todd Rovira (Secretary)

The resolution to wind up this committee was adopted as a re-
sult of the creation of Cecabank. From now on, it is Cecabank
that will have a Remuneration and Nomination Committee.

y (
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“The Investment
Committee was
wound up following
the creation of
Cecabank”

N
Corporate Structure and procedures of
governance the governing bodies

3.2.5 Investment Committee

Among other duties, the CECA Investment Committee reported
to the Board on strategic and stable investments and divest-
ments made by the Confederation directly or through group
companies and on the financial viability of those investments
and whether they fitted in with the Confederation’s strategic
plans and budgets.

The duties and procedures of this Committee were set out in
the CECA Articles of Association and in the committee’s internal
regulations.

Corporate
shareholdings

Other information on corporate
governance of the group

The Investment Committee held 3 meetings in 2012, at which
it analysed, inter alia, the activity of the Assets and Liabilities
Committee and the acquisition of depositary business for col-
lective investment undertakings and pension funds. It also sub-
mitted its mandatory annual report to the Board, informing that
during 2012:

> No strategic and stable investments or divestments were
made in listed companies for more than 5% of the capital of
the listed companies or multiples thereof.
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“The Control
Committee has
also been wound
up following

the creation of
Cecabank”

.
Corporate Structure and procedures of
governance the governing bodies

> CECA did not participate during the year in business pro-
jects in which it was involved in the management or gov-
erning bodies, with investments implying a takeover of the
company and representing more than 5% of CECA’s equity.

On 14 November 2012, when the CECA Board of Directors put
on record its winding up by virtue of the new Articles of Associa-
tion, the members of the Investment Committee of CECA were:

> Manuel Menéndez Menéndez (Chairman)
> José Maria Castellano Rios (Vice-Chairman)
> Evaristo del Canto Canto (Secretary)

The resolution to wind up this committee was adopted as a re-
sult of the creation of Cecabank. From now on, it is Cecabank
that will have an Investment Committee.

Other information on corporate
governance of the group

Corporate
shareholdings

3.2.6 Control Committee

The purpose of the Control Committee was to see that the Board
acted with the utmost efficiency and precision within the gen-
eral lines of action established by the General Assembly and the
guidelines deriving from financial laws and regulations. In order
to perform its duties, the Control Committee could request and
obtain from the Board of Directors any details and information
that it considered necessary.

Its duties included, in particular and among others, the follow-
ing:

> Analyse the Confederation’s economic and financial manage-
ment, submitting six-monthly reports to the Bank of Spain
and the General Assembly.

> Examine the account audit summarising the activities of the
year and lay before the General Assembly a report on the
review made.

> Report to the General Assembly on the budgets and funding
of social work, and ensure that the planned investments and
expenditure were made.
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> Propose suspending the implementation of Board resolutions
whenever it believed they infringed prevailing legal provisions
or unjustifiably and seriously affected the financial situation,
earnings or credit of the Confederation or of the savings banks
and other members.

“The duties of the
Control Committee
included those
established in the

Securities Market > Require the Chairman of the Confederation to call an extraor-

Other information on corporate
governance of the group

Corporate
shareholdings

The CECA Control Committee had three members elected by the
General Assembly from among the Consejeros Generales. Mem-
bers of the Committee were appointed for a term of 6 years.

On 14 November 2012, when the CECA Board of Directors put
on record its winding up by virtue of the new Articles of Associa-
tion, the members of the Control Committee of CECA were:

dinary general assembly in the case contemplated in the pre-
Act” inary ger J . Temp ! P > Rafael Soriano Cairols (Chairman)
ceding point and whenever else it saw fit.
>Juan Marfa Peman Gavin (Vice-Chairman
> Perform the duties established for the Audit Committee in the - ] vin (Vi ! )
Securities Market Act. > Josep Cifre Rodriguez (Secretary)
> QOversee the procedures for nominating and appointing mem-
bers of the governing bodies.
— ,
36 = ceca | cecabank



3 CORPORATE GOVERNANCE annual report 2012
>
Corporate Structure and procedures of Corporate Other information on corporate
governance the governing bodies shareholdings governance of the group

The Control Committee held 9 meetings in 2012, at which re-
ports were received from the following persons, among others:

> The external auditor, to explain the contents of the auditor’s
report on the separate and consolidated annual accounts of
the Confederation for 2011.

“During 2012 the | . o . .

. > The internal auditor to submit the information required by the
external C]UdltOI‘, Committee to draft the compulsory six-monthly reports and
the internal to submit the annual report on operational risks.
auditor and the > The head of Regulatory Compliance to present the annual re-
head Of regulatory port on regulatory compliance.
compliance On 28 March 2012, the Control Committee checked the infor-
reported to the mation set down in the Key Information Document.

Control Committee”
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3.3. Corporate shareholdings
CECA’s corporate shareholdings are intended to assist it in meet-
ing its strategic objectives. Its principal interests at 31 Decem-
ber 2012 are set out below:
5&2:5
AHORRO CORPORACION, S.A. CAJA ACTIVA, S.A.
14,44% e | 99,99% |
Financial services holding company Internet and other network links.
G Caser
AHORROY . SEGUROS
TITULIZACION AHORRO Y TITULIZACION,
SOCIEDAD GESTORA DE 1 55% CASER, GRUPO ASEGURADOR
50,000/0 FONDOS DE TITULIZACION, S.A. ) Insurance.
Securitisation fund manager
i o
SOCIEDAD ESPANOLA DE Q
SISTEMAS DE PAGOS (IBERPAY) EUR0 6000
Interchange, clearing and EURO 6000, S.A.
18,750/0 settlement of transfer orders. 10,000/0 Administration of credit and
debit card programmes,
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n etrion is
MasterCajas TRIONIS DATA

Development, management and
0,610/0 MASTERCAJAS, S.A. 11,250/0 maintenance of financial services,
Means of payment. especially means of payment.

TEVEA INTERNATIONAL S.A

Support for international

8 85% LICO CORPORACION, S.A. 20.00% operations of savings banks and
’ Leasing and banking services. ’ their customers.

e

EUFISERV
0,0840/0 SWIFT | | 22,49cy0 EUFISERV PAYMENTS SCRL
nternational electronic pagments. eans o pagment.
| | el M f
— The list of investees shows that theu are all engaged in services
=(eqTade y -
= QS ZUF U Services Ltd.

that complement and broaden the range of financial activities
and services provided by Cecabank.
100% CEA TRADE SERVICE, TSL

Documentary credit management. CECA holds a 89.08% stake in Cecabank.
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the highest

body assisting

the General
Management of
Cecabank”
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Structure and procedures of
the governing bodies

Corporate
governance

3.4 Other information regarding corporate
governance of the group

The information on Cecabank’s internal governance should men-
tion the bodies involved in its main decision-making processes,
namely the Management Committee, which assists the CEO,
and the Assets and Liabilities Committee, ultimately responsi-
ble for reporting, management, monitoring and control of Ce-
cabank’s risk exposure. The Control Compliance and Operational
Risk Committees should also be mentioned.

.

Other information on corporate
governance of the group

Corporate
shareholdings

3.4.1 Management Committee

The Management Committee assists the CEO and General Ma-
nagement of the company. It also has the following basic res-
ponsibilities and any others that may be assigned to it by the
Board:

a) Decide on issues directly submitted by the Board of Direc-
tors.

b) Decide on issues submitted by the CEO before being ap-
proved by the Board.

¢) Decide on issues submitted by the CEO on his own initiative.

d) Approve the codes of conduct and internal regulations of
the company, provided they do not require approval by the
Board.
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The members of this Committee are the senior executives of
the company. However, its meetings may be attended, with the
right to speak but not vote, by other employees invited by the
Chairman of the Committee.

The Chairman of the Management Committee is the CEO and
the Secretary is the Secretary of Cecabank, who issues minutes
of all the business transacted at committee meetings.

The Management Committee has its own Internal Regulations,
approved in February 2007.

The Management Committee meets prior to Board meetings
and whenever it is called by its chairman. Twenty-three meet-
ings were held in 2012.

“The most
significant
duties of the
Management
Committee are
delegated to
the Executive
Committee”

.

Other information on corporate
governance of the group

Corporate
shareholdings

3.4.2 Executive Committee

The most significant duties of the Management Committee are
delegated to the Executive Committee, which performs them
according to their urgency or nature, whenever so considered
by the CEQ.

The members of the Executive Committee are the Chairman of
the Management Committee, who is in turn Chairman of the
Executive Committee, the assistant general managers and the
assistant managers of the company. The Executive Committee
held 11 meetings in 2012.
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report, manage,
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control Cecabank’s
financial risks”
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3.4.3 Assets and Liabilities Committee

The Assets and Liabilities Committee (ALCO) is the body ap-
pointed by the Board to approve, report, manage, monitor and
control the institution’s financial risks and to implement the pol-
icies established by the Board, specifying the tasks and duties to
be performed within the company.

The policies, methods, procedures and systems for controlling
the risks to which the institution is exposed are set out in the
ALCO Manual, approved by the Board and revised annually. The
latest revision of the manual was approved by the Board on 16
May 2012.

.

Other information on corporate
governance of the group

Corporate
shareholdings

Within these responsibilities, ALCO has the following duties,
among others:

> Study and issue general policies within the framework of
the institution’s risk policy and establish the procedures and
methods for management, monitoring and control of credit
risks, market risks (interest rate, spreads, currency, price and
volatility) and structural risks of the balance sheet (interest
rates and liquidity).

> Monitor and analyse the institution’s balance sheet, assessing
the underlying risk in its structure in accordance with the poli-
cies issued by the Board.
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> Study and issue specific policies on significant on balance-
sheet items.

> Measure the risks deriving from the foreseeable evolution of
the figures on the balance sheet and markets and, accord-
ingly, assess their effect on both the economic value and the
financial margin of the institution.

> Assess the market situation and analyse the evolution of pub-
lic data.

> Monitor the evolution of cash positions in euro and other cur-
rencies.

.

Other information on corporate
governance of the group

Corporate
shareholdings

> Prevent liquidity pressure and approve the corresponding li-
quidity contingency plans.

> Authorise financial instrument valuation criteria and meth-
ods.

> Approve any change in the settlement rates of options and
futures transactions.

> Approve any change in the interest rates applicable to credit
accounts.

> Decide on proposed transactions and credit risk limits exceed-
ing the level of powers delegated to the Risk Committee and
take note of those authorised by the Committee within the
limits of its delegated powers.

> Be informed of the activities performed and resolutions
passed, if any, by the different support committees.

> Be informed, analyse and, if appropriate, authorise any new
financial product or activity that the institution wishes to offer
or perform.
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Structure and procedures of
the governing bodies

Corporate
governance

> With regard to the internal self-assessment of available capital
adequacy, considering the risks incurred, ALCO will be respon-
sible for making sure that the procedures and methods used
in the capital self-assessment process are suitable for the in-
stitution’s risk profile.

> Approve the Risk Policies and Procedures Manual - Manage-
ment of Risks associated with the Financial-Operating activi-
ties.

> Approve the manual of the New Financial Products Commit-
tee.

> Annually revise its internal manual and, if appropriate, pro-
pose to the Board any modifications that must be approved
by the latter.

> Any other activities related with the foregoing.

ALCO is chaired by the CEO and the Assistant General Manager
of the Operating and Financial Area is Vice-Chairman. The com-
mittee has 6 members and the Head of the Legal Department is
the Committee secretary/coordinator.

.

Other information on corporate
governance of the group

Corporate
shareholdings

ALCO holds ordinary meetings once a month and extraordinary
meetings whenever so required to discuss any contingency on
the markets or performance of the institution, called by the com-
mittee chairman through the secretary. Thirty ALCO meetings
were held in 2012 (11 ordinary meetings and 19 extraordinary
meetings).

ALCO is assisted by the following support committees:

> The Risks Committee, which ensures that the risk exposure
i1s within the limits established by the Board and ALCO and
constantly adapts the risk management procedures to the
increasingly sophisticated financial market, making sure that
they are commensurate with the capital requirements in place
from time to time.
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Moreover, with a view to achieving more specialised and
dynamic decision-making, ALCO has delegated to the Risks
Committee certain powers for credit risk operations up to cer-
tain limits.

> The Financial Committee, responsible for ordinary manage-
ment of market risks in trading operations, in accordance with
the policy approved by the Board and the guidelines issued
by ALCO, submitting such information as may be required by
ALCO for decision-making. It is also responsible for the man-
agement and monitoring of investments of equity, customers’
funds and several balance-sheet items, submitting the rele-
vant information to ALCO.

“The ALCO support
committees
include the Risks
Committee,

the Financial
Committee, the
New Products
Committee and
the Liquidity
Contingency
Committee”

.

Other information on corporate
governance of the group
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> The New Products Committee, which ensures that in Ce-
cabank dealings in financial products and markets:

- Cecabank is fully aware of the risks involved.

- It has the necessary infrastructure for their management,
control and administration.

- The systems and procedures relating to the financial prod-
ucts in which Cecabank operates are further standardised.
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> The Liquidity Contingency Committee, which has the follow-
ing basic objectives, among others:

- The systems and procedures relating to the financial prod-
ucts in which the Confederation operates are further stand-
ardised.

- Define the strategy for handling the situation, deciding on
the important areas requiring intervention.

- Coordinate the areas involved in implementing the plan and
make any necessary adjustments to adapt it to the situa-
tion on the market.

.

Other information on corporate
governance of the group
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3.4.4 Regulatory Compliance

To ensure compliance with the applicable laws and regulations,
Cecabank has a specific statute and basic guidelines for action,
set out in the Compliance Policy approved by the Board.

To secure adequate coordination of all the units involved in com-
pliance risk management and to guarantee an efficient informa-
tion flow, the institution has a two-tier committee structure:

> The lower level consists of ad hoc committees: the Anti-Mon-
ey Laundering and Anti-Terrorist Financing Committee, the
Code of Market Conduct Committee and the Data Protection
Committee.

> On the higher level there is a Compliance Committee with
sweeping powers in compliance risk. The members of this
committee are appointed by the Board.
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The Compliance Committee has the following powers and re-
sponsibilities:

> Ensure implementation of compliance risk control in Ceca-
bank.

> Pinpoint and assess issues relating to compliance risk, assis-
ted by the Regulatory Compliance Department, and the plans
for dealing with them. Within this process:

- It regularly monitors compliance risk management. The
Compliance Committee meets at least once a quarter for
this purpose.

- It checks the ordinary management of compliance risk by
the Regulatory Compliance Department. It analyses the in-
formation and oversees the documents received from that
department on compliance risk management.

Corporate
shareholdings

y 4

N

Other information on corporate
governance of the group
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“The duties Of > See that the compliance policy is respected. This involves see-
ing that the competent units take remedial measures when-
the Regulatory J perent

- ever any non-compliance is detected.

Compliance , , ,

. . > Submit to the Management Committee any internal codes
Committee include and regulations on regulatory compliance required by law and
supervising the applicable standards, to be submitted in turn, if appropri-
handling Of ate, to the Board of Directors.

> Propose action plans and procedures to the Management
Committee for Cecabank’s compliance risk management.

reputational risk”

> Report to the competent body on compliance risk manage-
ment at least once a year, through the Head of the Regulatory
Compliance Department, to enable that body to form a well-
founded opinion the effectiveness of that management.

> Supervise handling of reputational risk.

> Implement the guidelines and take whatever actions may be
established by the CEO in respect of regulatory compliance

.

Other information on corporate
governance of the group
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3.4.5 Operational Risk Committee

The operational risk management system defined in the con-
trol framework includes the Operational Risk Committee among
those with direct responsibilities in this area. This committee is
responsible for regular monitoring of the operational risk man-
agement, reporting annually to the Management Committee
and the Control Committee on evolution of the risk and any ac-
tions taken in this regard.

It also analyses any information it receives from the Operation-
al Risk Unit on the management of this risk and proposes risk
transfer systems and procedures (insurance, bonds, outsourcing,
etc.) to mitigate latent operational risks.

48

= ceca | cecabank



3 CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

annual report 2012

“The Operational
Risk Committee
proposes systems
and procedures
to mitigate latent
operational risks”

Corporate
governance

Structure and procedures of
the governing bodies

Its duties also include:

> Promoting implementation of operational risk control in Ce-
cabank.

> Qverseeing the documents provided by the Operational Risk
Unit on operational losses and on the entity’s risk profile.

> Supervising the degree of compliance with the operational risk
control framework.

> Approving the institution’s operational risk management pro-
cedures.

> Approving the maximum limits permitted (tolerance) for the
residual value of operational risk.

> Qverseeing the minimum information required to prove that
the institution meets the requirements stipulated in Circular
3/2008 for application of the standard method.

.

Other information on corporate
governance of the group
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The Operational Risk Committee has a support body to help
it with these responsibilities, the Operational Risk Identification
Committee (ORIC), a standing committee mainly responsible
for detecting any operational risks inherent in the institution’s
processes, products and systems. It aims to draw up and keep
up to date an inventory of operational risks and select risk and
management indicators to guarantee adequate monitoring of
operational risks.
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[Translation of a report originally issued in Spanish. In the event of a discrepancy, the Spanish-language version prevails.]

“The main aim

of this Directors’
report is to provide
information on the
most significant
initiatives
developed by CECA
Group in 2012"

y 4

4.1. Confederacion Espafiola de Cajas
de Ahorros (CECA)

Confederacion Espafiola de Cajas de Ahorros (CECA) is the Parent
of the Confederacion Espafiola de Cajas de Ahorros Group (CECA
Group). The companies composing the Group are detailed in Note
1 to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2012.

The main aim of this Directors’ report is to provide information on
the most significant initiatives developed by CECA Group in 2012,
present the actual results obtained, and disclose both the most
significant matters relating to risk management and the activities
that will be carried out within the framework of the strategic lines
of action defined for 2013.

4.1.1. Spin-off of the business activity

At its meeting of 21 March 2012, the Board of Directors of CECA
resolved to commence a process to spin off the entity’s financial
business to a newly-created bank. This process was ratified at the
General Assembly on 25 July 2012.

The aim of this spin-off was, on the one hand, to maintain and
strengthen the association functions performed by CECA, which
consist mainly of the representation of the member entities, either
individually or collectively, before regulators and supervisors
in Spain and abroad; and, on the other, to endow the financial
business with a more flexible structure that is better suited to the
current market situation.

In this regard, on 12 November 2012, the deed for the spin-
off the Confederacién through the incorporation of a new credit
institution named Cecabank was registered at the Mercantile
Registry. Effective 1 January 2012, all the assets and liabilities
of the Confederacién were spun off to Cecabank, which became
the company through which CECA carries on its activity as a
credit institution.
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At the same time as this process, following a resolution by its
directors, CECA made a repurchase offer to the holders of the
non-voting equity units (“Cuotas Participativas de Asociacién”)
that the entity had issued in 1988, which was conditional on
the simultaneous, irrevocable commitment to subscribe ordinary
shares of Cecabank. Substantially all the holders of the non-voting
equity units accepted the offer (97.34% of the issue) and only
EUR 799 thousand continued to be owned by one of the initial
holders. After this transaction, following authorisation by the
Bank of Spain, CECA retired the acquired securities.

Management Report

CECA Group
Management Report

As a result of the transactions described above, CECA owns 89%
of the share capital of Cecabank and the remaining 11% is held by
the previous holders of the non-voting equity units.

Cecabank CECA

89%

previous
holders
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4.1.2. Business performance and achievement of tar-
getsin 2012

In this section relating to business performance and the results
obtained in the development of the business, comment will be
made, on the one hand, on the most significant actions undertaken
in order to comply with the main objectives set by the General
Assembly on 21 December 2011, on the other, on the attainment
of the profitability targets que in order to fund the needs of the
welfare foundation, Funcas, for next year, i.e. 2013.

In relation to the first of these matters, worthy of mention was the
performance of the following actions:

Management Report
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4.1.2.1. Regulatory Matters:

In defense of the interests of savings banks and their groups, a
monitoring of the regulatory matters which are priorities to the
sector such as the implementation of CRD4, the processing of
the directive of credit agreements relating to residential buildings,
and the latest publications on international financial regulatory
policies has been made. In order to boost this strategic focus, it
participated in various working groups created by the European
Central Bank and the Bank of Spain for the development of the
European Target 2-Securities project as member of the technical
work groups; and new taxonomies of CIRBE; the CNMV’s work
groups for the reform of the system for the settlement, clearing
and registration of securities and the negotiation of the sector’s
employment collective agreement. It also continued to develop
the social corporate responsibility, the coordination of savings
banks and their Groups in international debates about non-
financial reporting and the evaluation and renewal of financial
education initiatives and social investment.

53

= ceca | cecabank



yA

“F MANAGEMENT REPORT

annual report 2012

“In the second
part of the year
the bulk of the
activity centered
representative
interest in
monitoring
regulatory aspects
included in the
MoU “

.

Confederacién Espafiola de
Cajas de Ahorros (CECA)
Management Report

Cecabank

In the second part of the year the bulk of the activity centered
representative interest in monitoring regulatory aspects
included in the MoU (Memorandum of Understanding) signed
between the Eurogroup and the government of Spain. Within
this document there is a specific regulation that affects a group
of CECA's member institutions.

4.1.2.2. Cooperation:

With regards to cooperation, the main objective has been to boost
the collaboration of the sector in the development of projects
aimed at improving the efficiency and effectiveness of the savings
banks and their groups by developing projects in the area of CECA
Group’s Organization, Automation and Service Committee (COAS)
whose new structure has been implemented and has been putinto

Management Report
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operation in 2012. In this connection, mention should be made
to the development of the Bank of Spain’s new financial reporting
application, the promotion of the digital signature, the analysis
and the disclosure in the area of savings banks and their Groups of
the impact of the next European Commission regulation on SEPA
END DATE, the collaboration with the General Management of
Taxes on the FATCA Project, the development and implementation
of new agreements with the government, the implementation in
the field of outsourcing model CORE and the multichannel tour
model by entity and implementation of scorecard loyalty within
the project.

y 4
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4.1.2.3. Advisoruy:

In the midst of the complex transformation of the industry, the
savings banks and their groups have continued to be able to rely on
the firm support of CECA's human and technical resources applied
to the analysis and adaptation of the regulatory modifications and
developments in the scope of legal, tax, solvency and accounting
competencies. In this sense, work has been carried out for advising
the entities that have required the adaptation of the bylaws of
the new societies which have joined CECA as a product of the
new sectorial map and initiatives have been proposed for cost
reduction derived from the application of the registration fee for
mortgage transactions.
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4.1.2.4. Social work:

With regard to welfare projects, a sector communication and
reputation plan has been implemented to strengthen and improve
the visibility and distribution of the welfare project brand.
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4.1.3. Income statement

Given that Cecabank is the entity which performs CECA’s business
activity, it is considered relevant to present the comparison of its
results against the budget:

THOUSANDS
OF EUROS

Financial margin 7,008
Other operating income and expenses (net) 13,429
Gross income 20,437
Operating expenses (12,024)
Profit before tax 8,413
Income tax 926
Profit for the year 9,339

Gross income, which reflects in full the income obtained by
the entity, amounted to EUR 20,437 thousand. It consists of
the interest obtained as the return on its available liquidity,
the dividend collected in the year from its ownership interest in
Cecabank and the membership dues paid by the CECA associate
entities. Income from membership dues continued the decline of
recent years, down 6.67% in 2012 on the previous year.
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Operating expenses mainly consist of the dues paid to
associations and the expenses arising from the support services
that the entity has contracted from Cecabank, since it does not
have internal resources to perform these activities.

Income tax accrued in 2012 amounted to a positive amount of
EUR 926 thousand and, accordingly, the entity obtained a profit
for the year amounting to EUR 9,339 thousand.

y 4
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4.1.4. Risk management

At its meeting of 18 December 2012, as a consequence of the
indirect performance of CECA's business through Cecabank, the
Board of Directors passed a resolution whereby all the procedures
for assessing, measuring and controlling risks that develop the
general risk management principles defined by the CECA Board
will be determined at Cecabank and will be applicable for the
Group as a whole.

4.1.5. Significant events subsequent to year-end

No significant events have occurred subsequent to year-end.

4.1.6. Business outlook

With regard to institutional representation and development,
the main association objectives will focus on:

> Representing and defending the interests of the member

entities in the domestic and international regulatory agenda
in 2013, the priorities being the new law governing savings
banks and banking foundations, and the implementation of
the Memorandum of Understanding and of CRD IV (the new
capital requirements directive).

The adaptation of CECA's institutional structure to the new
bylaws and the new situation following the spin-off and the
indirect performance of its financial activity.

The adjustment of the committees and working groups to the
new reality facing the sector.

A gradual reduction in the Confederacion membership dues,
which will be replaced by the Cecabank dividend as a source
of income to finance CECA's activity as an association.
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4.2. Cecabank

Cecabank, S.A. (Cecabank) is the credit institution through which
the Confederaciéon Espafiola de Cajas de Ahorros (CECA) carries
on business as a credit institution indirectly.

The main aim of this Directors’ report is to provide information
on the most significant initiatives developed by Cecabank in
2012, present the actual results obtained, in comparison with
the budget, and disclose both the most significant matters
relating to risk management and the activities that will be
carried out within the framework of the strategic lines of action
defined for 2013.

4.2.1. Spin-off of the business activity

At its meeting of 21 March 2012, the Board of Directors of CECA
resolved to commence a process to spin off the entity’s financial
business to a newly-created bank. This process was ratified at
the General Assembly on 25 July 2012.

The aim of this spin-off was, on the one hand, to maintain
and strengthen the association functions performed by CECA,
which consist mainly of the representation of the member
entities, either individually or collectively, before regulators and
supervisors in Spain and abroad; and, on the other, to endow the
financial business with a more flexible structure that is better
suited to the current market situation.

In this regard, on 12 November 2012, the deed for the spin-off
of CECA through the incorporation of a new credit institution
named Cecabank was registered at the Mercantile Registry.
Effective 1 January 2012, all the assets and liabilities of CECA
were spun off to Cecabank, which became the company through
which CECA carries on its activity as a credit institution.
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At the same time as this process, following a resolution by its
directors, CECA made a repurchase offer to the holders of the
non-voting equity units (“cuotas participativas de asociaciéon”)
that the entity had issued in 1988, which was conditional on
the simultaneous, irrevocable commitment to subscribe ordinary
shares of Cecabank. Substantially all the holders of the non-
voting equity units accepted the offer (97.34% of the issue) and
only EUR 799 thousand continued to be owned by one of the
initial holders. After this transaction, following authorization by
the Bank of Spain, CECA retired the acquired securities.

As a result of the transactions described above, CECA owns
89% of the share capital of Cecabank and the remaining 11%
is held by the previous holders of the non-voting equity units.

y 4
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4.2.2. Business performance and achievement of
targetsin 2012

In this section relating to business performance and the results
obtained in the development of the business, comment will
be made, on the one hand, on the most significant actions
undertaken in order to comply with the main objectives set
by the General Assembly on 21 December 2011, within
the framework of the permanent strategic lines of action
which direct Company’s activities, and, on the other, on the
attainment of the profitability targets through the various
items of the income statement.
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In relation to the first of these matters and within the framework
of the contents of each strategic line, worthy of mention was the
performance of the following actions:

4.2.2.1 Efficiency

As part of the efficiency project, in 2012 scheduled tasks were
performed for the Risk Area, the Integral Cash Management
System, Means of Payment, and Centralized Account
Administration, among others. The aims pursued in the
analyses performed focused on the rationalization of processes

CECA Group
Management Report

and structures, the reorganization of assigned human resources,
the review of the analytical billing criteria, and the adjustment
of costs to future revenue estimates, in order to eliminate non-
profitable activities.

As a result of the proposed actions, the adaptation of the
resources is expected to be completed between 2012 and 2013.

In this same strategic line, with a focus on detecting a better
and more efficient use of available resources, through analyzing
the processes, procedures and the cost components of the
activities performed in the various business and support
lines, the following actions were carried out: the automation
of the Central Counterparty Clearing House and margin call
processes, and the analysis and planning of actions to adapt the
Interchange and Settlement Centre applications to the migration
to SEPA, as well as to the new regulations governing foreign
economic transactions, and the launch of a project to rationalize
agreements with suppliers in order to obtain enhanced efficiency
through new contractual conditions that are financially more
beneficial. Processes and applications were also adapted to
the new European regulations on the disclosures to be made
regarding collective investment undertakings.
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With regard to association services, actions were carried out
to reduce the related costs. To this end, the processes relating
to the regulatory compliance function were computerized, the
“Ahorro” magazine was digitalized and modernized, and the
efficiency of publication distribution was enhanced.

In order to complete the adjustment and adaptation of
production factors to the competitive demands arising from
the changes in the financial sector, an Early Retirement Plan
was implemented in 2012, for 72 employees. In line with this,
energy consumption and the utilization of spaces and buildings
have been revised and adapted to the Bank’s new structure.

CECA Group
Management Report

4.2.2.2 Growth

Within the strategic growth area, the objectives were focused
on increasing activity levels in operating and financial services,
having achieved the projected increases in the volume of
pensions, pan-European direct debit transactions, payments
between the UK and Spain and transactions channeled through
the dealing room. There has also been a presentation of the new
platform for treasury to newly created entities arising from the
restructuring of the sector.
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With regard to the product and service offering, the range and
activities in the Association Area were increased through the
launch of a new marketing policy and the preparation and
implementation of business plans to market new tools such as
social network monitoring and regulatory monitoring tools for
automation of the regulatory compliance function. The range of
consultancy services was also increased.

It is worth making a special mention of the growth in the
depository activity in 2012 due to the acquisition and
integration of other entities’ business, thereby confirming the
entity’s commitment to the expansion of its Securities Custody
and Settlement and Fund Depositary activity.

CECA Group
Management Report

4.2.2.3 Effectiveness

Functional, technological and structural support services, and
any other service provided to Cecabank’s customers are subject
to annual external process and internal quality assessment,
where furthermore the degree of satisfaction is determined.

This quality level, along with indicators of service availability and
response times, are subjected to an analysis that allows to draw
conclusions that will be used as a basis for setting targets for
improving quality of services. The level of satisfaction for 2012
was 100% of the expected levels.
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4.2.2.4 Innovation

The search for new formulas offering more flexible balance sheet
liquidity led to the introduction of repo transactions in central
clearing houses in currencies other than the euro and three-
party repos. Also, in order to provide the Savings Banks and
their groups with other avenues of financing, the marketing of
derivatives service on the network has begun, integrating it with
the treasury platform.

In addition, the Consulting and Quality Unit provided
methodologies to enable entities to streamline and right-size
central services, manage foreclosed assets and prepare business
continuity plans.

CECA Group
Management Report

With regard to technological services, the acquiring project was
developed and the functionality of terminal (POS terminals and
ATMs) management was increased in order to improve fraud
prevention, raising the security standards of payment systems
and new payment and information methods have been developed
through the “MIRROR” application. Also, the architecture of new
channels has been improved with emphasizing on efficiency
and security of electronic banking and in the consolidation of
interactive services and e-commerce.

The research and development projects in which work has been
made during 2012 are the following:

> Advanced Client Analysis and Management system loyalty
oriented.

> Mercvrio.

> Digitization of processes.

> Client segmentation system based on multichannel and
mobility.

> Automized financial management and control tool in the
web and mobile scope.

> Regina.

> E- banking and mobility.
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> New centralized model of processes for development,
maintenance and system operation.

> New communication platform SWIFTNet.
> New balance management and overall risk control tools.

> New platform for pension funds and investment funds
management.

> New tools and innovative developments for Governance and
Treasury Applications.

4.2.2.5 Capacity development

In relation to management and control information systems,
internal technologies were adapted through the renewal of
software and the development of new modules to widen the
range of operational services. Work was performed to develop
and promote technologies, services and platforms to support the
management of expenses and human resources, and business
management for customers. Software was also integrated in
order to facilitate financial reporting to the Bank of Spain.

With regard to the internal legal context, the bylaws of CECA
and Cecabank were prepared. Internal processes such as that
relating to derivatives were also adapted to the new regulations,
vis-a-vis applications supporting the Treasury Rooms and
those used for managing credit and counterparty risk.

With regard to the risk control and reporting systems, analysis
procedures were applied to the transactions channeled through
central counterparties, and parameters were introduced
to facilitate the calculation of risks associated with the
remuneration policy.
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THOUSANDS OF EUROS
2012 Budget Variance %
“The proﬁt of the Financial margin (*) 188,940 88,550 95,341 102
year grows to Net fee and c.om.mlssmn income 78,189 53,447 24,742 46
. Other operating income and expenses (net) 60,594 65,963 -5,369 -8
€ 34.6 millions” Gross income 327723 213,009 114,714 54
Operating expenses -236,450 -167,765 -68,685 -41
Profit from operations 91,273 45,244 46,029 102
Other losses (net) -44 818 0 -44 818 -100
Profit before tax 46,455 45,244 1,211 3
Income tax -11,801 -12,220 419 3
Profit for the year 34,654 33,024 1,630 5

(*) Includes net interest income, income from equity instruments, the gains and losses on financial assets and
liabilities and exchange differences.

Profit before tax for 2012 exceeded the budget by 3% and after-
tax profit for the year by 5%.
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If the income statement is analyzed with regard to the various
margins composing it, the net interest margin exceeded the
forecast by EUR 95 million, of which EUR 83 million were
obtained from dealing room activity and EUR 12 million of
gains were obtained from equity investments. The extraordinary
income from dealing room activities is the result of an adequate
management of the products offered, the diversification of its
activities and the liquidity position maintained in financial
assets and liabilities.

CECA Group
Management Report

Gross income, which reflects in full the net income obtained
from operating activities, reached EUR 328 million, exceeding
the forecast by EUR 115 million of which, the most significant
amount arises from net interest margin, as mentioned before.
It is also remarkable the EUR 25 million increase obtained from
fees and commissions mainly arising from operations performed
in technical, operational and dealing room services.

The total increase in operating expenses beyond the budgeted
amountwas EUR 69 million andis comprised of an extraordinary
provision of EUR 39 million to meet the obligations for the
early retirement agreements for a total of 72 employees; an
increase in provisions and impairment of financial assets of
EUR 47 million which, using conservative criteria, were used
to increase specific and general allowances for credit, market
and operational risk arising from dealing room activities; a
positive variance of EUR 17 million resulting from a decrease
in staff costs and general administrative expenses (including
amortization) due to the implementation of programs and
initiatives which improved cost efficiency.
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4.2.4. External credit ratings

The ratings assigned to the Cecabank, the entity making the
indirect exercise of the activity of CECA, at 31 December 2012
by the international agencies Fitch Ratings, Moody’s and
Standard & Poor’s are the followings:

CECA Group
Management Report

4.2.6. Significant events subsequent to year-end

No significant events have occurred subsequent to year-end.

4.2.7. Business outlook

horities” Short Run Long Run In the process to incorporate Cecabank, the entity prepared a
autnorities FITCH RATINGS F3 BBB- business plan which was submitted to the authorities and which

MOODYS NP Bal included the following services:

STANDARD & POOR’S B BB+ > Securities Custody and Settlement and Fund Depositary:
the outlook for the entity’s business in this connection is
very positive, with significant growth prospects.

4.2.5. Risk management > Treasury and Banknotes: the entity will continue to conduct

In note 22 through 26 of the annual report is all the information this activity from its highly consolidated market position.

related to objectives, politics and procedures in risk management > Payment Methods and Services: the entity’s technological

of the entity, as its exposure by type of risk. expertise is regarded as a significant support factor for
maintaining its market share.
> Consultancy and Support Services: the activity is to
be carried on in line with the entity’s various areas of
specialization.
— ,
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In order to comply with the strategic guidelines, which represent
the pillars of the balanced scorecard implemented throughout
the organization, on a permanent basis, objectives were set for
each area and were approved by the Board of Directors at its
meeting of 18 December 2012. The content of these objectives
can be outlined as follows:

With regard to institutional representation and development,
the main association objectives will focus on:

> Representing and defending the interests of the member
entities in the domestic and international regulatory agenda
in 2013, the priorities being the new law governing savings
banks and banking foundations, and the implementation of
the Memorandum of Understanding and of CRD |V (the new
capital requirements directive).

>The adaptation of CECA's institutional structure to the new
bylaws and the new situation following the spin-off and the
indirect performance of its financial activity.

CECA Group
Management Report

>The adjustment of the committees and working groups to
the new reality facing the sector.

> A gradual reduction in the Confederacién membership dues,
which will be replaced by the Cecabank dividend as a source
of income to finance CECA’s activity as an association.

Another objective set for 2013 is to carry out a program of
visits to the main domestic and international counterparties,
and to international investors, in order to promote Cecabank’s
institutional brand and services.

With regard to enhancing efficiency and effectiveness, the
objectives focus on ensuring that the entity is managed more
efficiently without increasing resources. In this regard, costs
will be cut in relation to certain services in comparison with
the 2012 budget, and work on the rationalization of services
company management will continue.
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In order for Cecabank to be fully operational from an institutional
point of view, the composition of the Board of Directors will be
modified in line with the principles of good corporate governance,
and the regulations governing the Audit Committee and the
Nomination and Remuneration Committee will be approved.
Furthermore, adjustments will be made at the entity to adapt
it to the new regulatory requirements relating to financial
reporting and control management and systems; the securities
applications will gradually be adapted to the new requirements
relating to the reform of Iberclear, and the management tools
will be optimized in order to focus them on the income obtained
per customer and product.

In relation to growth, the objectives for increasing the level of
activity planned for operational and financial services focus
on the analysis of possible legal and fiscal formulae for the
acquisition or, where appropriate, orderly disposal of businesses
by Cecabank, in accordance with its business plan.

CECA Group
Management Report

In the area of Resources and the ESCA training school, the latter
will focus on specialized training modules relating to regulatory
matters and other services provided by Cecabank, with the aim
of consolidating the benchmark position in the market.

The Technology Area will widen its customer and market
portfolio both within and outside the financial sector, in Spain
and abroad, and will promote technological services, particularly
in: electronic banking, mobility, business intelligence, surveys,
consultancy and the contribution of services to ongoing
mergers and the restructuring plans of banks, savings banks and
foundations, through services that lead to enhanced efficiency.

Lastly, the General Secretary and Legal and Tax Advisory Service
Area will promote the entity’s services in other sectors and in
international markets.

The objectives in relation to innovation center on developing
the portfolio of products and services in order to adapt them to
changes in the sector.
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[Translation of a report originally issued in Spanish. In the event of a discrepancy, the Spanish-language version prevails.]

“CECA and
Cecabank
represent 99.96%
of the Group’s
assets and they
provide 96.21% of
the Group’s profit”

4.3. Confederacion Espafiola de Cajas de
Ahorros and Subsidiaries composing the
CECA

Confederacion Espafiola de Cajas de Ahorros (CECA) is the Parent
of the Confederacién Espafiola de Cajas de Ahorros Group (CECA
Group). The companies composing the Group are detailed in Note
2 to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2012. CECA and Cecabank represent 99.96% of the
Group’s assets and they provide 96.21% of the Group’s profit.

The main aim of this Directors’ report is to provide information
on the most significant initiatives developed by CECA Group in
2012, present the actual results obtained, in comparison with the
budget, and disclose both the most significant matters relating to
risk management and the activities that will be carried out within
the framework of the strategic lines of action defined for 201 3.

4.3.1. Spin-off of the business activity

At its meeting of 21 March 2012, the Board of Directors of CECA
resolved to commence a process to spin off the entity’s financial
business to a newly-created bank. This process was ratified at the
General Assembly on 25 July 2012.
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The aim of this spin-off was, on the one hand, to maintain and
strengthen the association functions performed by CECA, which
consist mainly of the representation of the member entities, either
individually or collectively, before regulators and supervisors
in Spain and abroad; and, on the other, to endow the financial
business with a more flexible structure that is better suited to the
current market situation.

In this regard, on 12 November 2012, the deed for the spin-off of
CECA through the incorporation of a new credit institution named
Cecabank was registered at the Mercantile Registry. Effective 1
January 2012, all the assets and liabilities of CECA were spun off
to Cecabank, which became the company through which CECA
carries on its activity as a credit institution.

Management Report

.

CECA Group
Management Report

At the same time as this process, following a resolution by its
directors, CECA made a repurchase offer to the holders of the
non-voting equity units (“cuotas participativas de asociacion”)
that the entity had issued in 1988, which was conditional on
the simultaneous, irrevocable commitment to subscribe ordinary
shares of Cecabank. Substantially all the holders of the non-voting
equity units accepted the offer (97.34% of the issue) and only
EUR 799 thousand continued to be owned by one of the initial
holders. After this transaction, following authorisation by the
Bank of Spain, CECA retired the acquired securities.

As a result of the transactions described above, CECA owns 89%
of the share capital of Cecabank and the remaining 11% is held by
the previous holders of the non-voting equity units.

71

= ceca | cecabank



yA

“F MANAGEMENT REPORT

annual report 2012

“CECA and
Cecabank
represent 99.96%
of the Group’s
assets and they
provide 96.21% of
the Group’s profit”

y 4

Confederacién Espafiola de Cecabank

Cajas de Ahorros (CECA)
Management Report

4.3.2. Business performance and achievement of
targetsin 2012

In this section relating to business performance and the results
obtained in the development of the business, comment will be
made, on the one hand, on the most significant actions undertaken
in order to comply with the main objectives set by the General
Assembly on 21 December 2011, within the framework of the
permanent strategic lines of action which direct CECA Group’s
activities, and, on the other, on the attainment of the profitability
targets through the various items of the income statement.

In relation to the first of these matters and within the framework
of the contents of each strategic line, worthy of mention was the
performance of the following actions:

Management Report

.

CECA Group
Management Report

4.3.2.1 Institutional representation and development
4.3.2.1.1. Regulatory Matters:

In defense of the interests of savings banks and their groups, a
monitoring of the regulatory matters which are priorities to the
sector such as the implementation of CRD4, the processing of the
directive of credit agreements relating to residential buildings,
and the latest publications on international financial regulatory
policies has been made. In order to boost this strategic focus, it
participated in various working groups created by the European
Central Bank and the Bank of Spain for the development of the
European Target 2-Securities project as member of the technical
work groups; and new taxonomies of CIRBE; the CNMV’s work
groups for the reform of the system for the settlement, clearing
and registration of securities and the negotiation of the sector’s
employment collective agreement. It also continued to develop
the social corporate responsibility, the coordination of savings
banks and their Groups in international debates about non-
financial reporting and the evaluation and renewal of financial
education initiatives and social investment.
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In the second part of the year the bulk of the activity centered
representative interest in monitoring regulatory aspects
included in the MoU (Memorandum of Understanding) signed
between the Eurogroup and the government of Spain. Within
this document there 1s a specific regulation that affects a group
of CECA's member institutions.

4.3.2.1.2. Cooperation

With regards to cooperation, the main objective has been to boost
the collaboration of the sector in the development of projects
aimed at improving the efficiency and effectiveness of the savings
banks and their groups by developing projects in the area of CECA
Group’s Organization, Automation and Service Committee (COAS)
whose new structure has been implemented and has been putinto
operation in 2012. In this connection, mention should be made
to the development of the Bank of Spain’s new financial reporting
application, the promotion of the digital signature, the analysis
and the disclosure in the area of savings banks and their Groups of
the impact of the next European Commission regulation on SEPA
END DATE, the collaboration with the General Management of

Management Report
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Taxes on the FATCA Project, the development and implementation
of new agreements with the government, the implementation in
the field of outsourcing model CORE and the multichannel tour
model by entity and implementation of scorecard loyalty within
the project.

4.3.2.1.3. Advisory

In the midst of the complex transformation of the industry, the
savings banks and their groups have continued to be able to rely on
the firm support of CECA's human and technical resources applied
to the analysis and adaptation of the regulatory modifications
and developments in the scope of legal, tax, solvency and
accounting competencies. In this sense, work has been carried out
for advising the entities that have required the adaptation of the
bylaws of the new societies which have joined CECA as a product
of the new sectorial map and initiatives have been proposed for
cost reduction derived from the application of the registration fee
for mortgage transactions.
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4.3.2.1.4. Social work I
With regard to welfare projects, a sector communication and

reputation plan has been implemented to strengthen and improve
the visibility and distribution of the welfare project brand.

4.3.2.2 Efficiency

As part of the efficiency project, in 2012 scheduled tasks were
performed for the Risk Area, the Integral Cash Management
System, Means of Payment, and Centralized Account
Administration, among others. The aims pursued in the
analyses performed focused on the rationalization of processes
and structures, the reorganization of assigned human resources,
the review of the analytical billing criteria, and the adjustment
of costs to future revenue estimates, in order to eliminate non-
profitable activities.

As a result of the proposed actions, the adaptation of the resources
1s expected to be completed between 2012 and 2013.
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In this same strategic line, with a focus on detecting a better
and more efficient use of available resources, through analyzing
the processes, procedures and the cost components of the
activities performed in the various business and support lines, the
following actions were carried out: the automation of the Central
Counterparty Clearing House and margin call processes, and the
analysis and planning of actions to adapt the Interchange and
Settlement Centre applications to the migration to SEPA, as well as
to the new regulations governing foreign economic transactions,
and thelaunch of a project to rationalize agreements with suppliers

Management Report

.

CECA Group
Management Report

in order to obtain enhanced efficiency through new contractual
conditions that are financially more beneficial. Processes and
applications were also adapted to the new European regulations
on the disclosures to be made regarding collective investment
undertakings.

With regard to association services, actions were carried out to
reduce the related costs. To this end, the processes relating to the
regulatory compliance function were computerized, the “Ahorro”
magazine was digitalized and modernized, and the efficiency of
publication distribution was enhanced.
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In order to complete the adjustment and adaptation of production
factors to the competitive demands arising from the changes in
the financial sector, an Early Retirement Plan was implemented
in 2012, for 72 employees. In line with this, energy consumption
and the utilization of spaces and buildings have been revised and
adapted to the Group’s new structure.

4.3.2.3 Growth

Within the strategic growth area, the objectives were focused
on increasing activity levels in operating and financial services,
having achieved the projected increases in the volume of pensions,
pan-European direct debit transactions, payments between the
UK and Spain and transactions channeled through the dealing
room. There has also been a presentation of the new platform for
treasury to newly created entities arising from the restructuring
of the sector.

With regard to the product and service offering, the range and
activities in the Association Area were increased through the
launch of a new marketing policy and the preparation and
implementation of business plans to market new tools such as
social network monitoring and regulatory monitoring tools for
automation of the regulatory compliance function. The range of
consultancy services was also increased.
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Itis worth making a special mention ofthe growth in the depository
activity in 2012 due to the acquisition and integration of other
entities’ business, thereby confirming the entity’s commitment to
the expansion of its Securities Custody and Settlement and Fund
Depositary activity.

4.3.2.4 Effectiveness

Functional, technological and structural support services, and any
other service provided to customers of the Group are subject to
annual external process and internal quality assessment, where
furthermore the degree of satisfaction is determined.

This quality level, along with indicators of service availability and
response times, are subjected to an analysis that allows to draw
conclusions that will be used as a basis for setting targets for
improving quality of services. The level of satisfaction for 2012
was 100% of the expected levels.

Management Report
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4.3.2.5 Innovation

The search for new formulas offering more flexible balance sheet
liquidity led to the introduction of repo transactions in central
clearing houses in currencies other than the euro and three-
party repos. Also, in order to provide the savings banks and
their groups with other avenues of financing, the marketing of
derivatives service on the network has begun, integrating it with
the treasury platform.
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In addition, the Consulting and Quality Unit provided
methodologies to enable entities to streamline and right-size
central services, manage foreclosed assets and prepare business
continuity plans.

With regard to technological services, the acquiring project was
developed and the functionality of terminal (POS terminals and
ATMs) management was increased in order to improve fraud
prevention, raising the security standards of payment systems
and new payment and information methods have been developed
through the “MIRROR” application. Also, the architecture of new
channels has been improved with emphasizing on efficiency
and security of electronic banking and in the consolidation of
interactive services and e-commerce.

Management Report
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The research and development projects in which work has been
made during 2012 are the following:

> Advanced Client Analysis and Management system loyalty
oriented.

> Mercvrio.

> Digitization of processes.

> Client segmentation system based on multichannel and
mobility.

> Automized financial management and control tool in the
web and mobile scope..

> Regina.

> E- banking and mobility.

> New centralized model of processes for development,
maintenance and system operation.

> New communication platform SWIFTNet.
> New balance management and overall risk control tools.

> New platform for pension funds and investment funds
management.

> New tools and innovative developments for Governance and
Treasury Applications.
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4.3.2.6 Capacity development

In relation to management and control information systems,
internal technologies were adapted through the renewal of
software and the development of new modules to widen the
range of operational services. Work was performed to develop
and promote technologies, services and platforms to support the
management of expenses and human resources, and business
management for customers. Software was also integrated in
order to facilitate financial reporting to the Bank of Spain.

Management Report
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With regard to the internal legal context, the bylaws of CECA and
Cecabank were prepared. Internal processes such as that relating
to derivatives were also adapted to the new regulations, vis-a-vis
applications supporting the Treasury Rooms and those used for
managing credit and counterparty risk.

With regard to the risk control and reporting systems, analysis
procedures were applied to the transactions channeled through
central counterparties, and parameters were introduced
to facilitate the calculation of risks associated with the
remuneration policy.
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“The profit Of the 4.3.3. Income statement

year grows to Given that Cecabank is the entity which performs CECA’s business

€ 34.6 millions“ activity, it is considered relevant to present the comparison of its
results against the budget:

THOUSANDS OF EUROS
2012 Budget Variance %

Financial margin (*) 188,940 93,599 95,341 102
Net fee and commission income 78,189 53,447 24,742 46
Other operating income and expenses (net) 60,594 65,963 -5,369 -8
Gross income 327,723 213,009 114,714 54
Operating expenses -236,450 -167,765 -68,685 -41
Profit from operations 91,273 45,244 46,029 102
Other losses (net) -44,818 0 -44,818 -100
Profit before tax 46,455 45,244 1,211 3
Income tax -11,801 -12,220 419 3
Profit for the year 34,654 33,024 1,630 5

(*) Includes net interest income, income from equity instruments, the gains and losses on financial assets and

liabilities and exchange differences.
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Profit before tax for 2012 exceeded the budget by 3% and after-
tax profit for the year by 5%.

If the income statement is analyzed with regard to the various
margins composing it, the net interest margin exceeded the
forecast by EUR 95 million, of which EUR 83 million were obtained
from dealing room activity and EUR 12 million of gains were
obtained from equity investments. The extraordinary income from
dealing room activities is the result of an adequate management
of the products offered, the diversification of its activities and the
liquidity position maintained in financial assets and liabilities.

Gross income, which reflects in full the net income obtained
from operating activities, reached EUR 328 million, exceeding
the forecast by EUR 115 million of which, the most significant
amount arises from net interest margin, as mentioned before. It
1s also remarkable the EUR 25 million increase obtained from fees
and commissions mainly arising from operations performed in
technical, operational and dealing room services.

y 4
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The total increase in operating expenses beyond the budgeted 4.3.4. External credit ratings
amountwas EUR 69 million andis comprised of an extraordinary
provision of EUR 39 million to meet the obligations for the
early retirement agreements for a total of 72 employees; an
increase in provisions and impairment of financial assets of
EUR 4/ million which, using conservative criteria, were used

The ratings assigned to the Cecabank, the entity making the
indirect exercise of the activity of CECA, at 31 December 2012 by
the international agencies Fitch Ratings, Moody’s and Standard
& Poor’s are the followings:

to increase specific and general allowances for credit, market Short Run Long Rung
and operational risk arising from dealing room activities; a FITCH RATINGS F3 BBB-
positive variance of EUR 17 million resulting from a decrease MOODYS NP Bal

in staff costs and general administrative expenses (including
amortization) due to the implementation of programs and
Initiatives which improved cost efficiency.

STANDARD & POOR’S B BB+

4.3.5. Risk management

I In note 24 through 28 of the annual report is all the information
related to objectives, politics and procedures in risk management

of the entity, as its exposure by type of risk.
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4.3.6. Significant events subsequent to year-end

No significant events have occurred subsequent to year-end.

4.3.7. Business outlook

In the process to incorporate Cecabank, the entity prepared a
business plan which was submitted to the authorities and which
included the following services:

> Securities Custody and Settlement and Fund Depositary:
the outlook for the entity’s business in this connection is
very positive, with significant growth prospects.

> Treasury and Banknotes: the entity will continue to conduct
this activity from its highly consolidated market position.

> Payment Methods and Services: the entity’s technological
expertise is regarded as a significant support factor for
maintaining its market share.

> Consultancy and Support Services: the activity i1s to
be carried on in line with the entity’s various areas of
specialization.

Management Report
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In order to comply with the strategic guidelines, which represent
the pillars of the balanced scorecard implemented throughout the
organisation, on a permanent basis, objectives were set for each
area and were approved by the Board of Directors at its meeting
of 18 December 2012. The content of these objectives can be
outlined as follows:

With regard to institutional representation and development,
the main association objectives will focus on:

> Representing and defending the interests of the member en-
tities in the domestic and international regulatory agenda
in 2013, the priorities being the new law governing savings
banks and banking foundations, and the implementation of
the Memorandum of Understanding and of CRD IV (the new
capital requirements directive).

> The adaptation of CECA’s institutional structure to the new
bylaws and the new situation following the spin-off and the
indirect performance of its financial activity.

> The adjustment of the committees and working groups to the
new reality facing the sector.

> A gradual reduction in the Confederacion membership dues,
which will be replaced by the Cecabank dividend as a source
of income to finance CECA's activity as an association.
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Another objective set for 2013 is to carry out a program of
visits to the main domestic and international counterparties,
and to international investors, in order to promote Cecabank’s
institutional brand and services.

With regard to enhancing efficiency and effectiveness, the
objectives focus on ensuring that the entity is managed more
efficiently without increasing resources. In this regard, costs
will be cut in relation to certain services in comparison with
the 2012 budget, and work on the rationalization of services
company management will continue.

Management Report
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In order for Cecabank to be fully operational from an institutional
point of view, the composition of the Board of Directors will be
modified in line with the principles of good corporate governance,
and the regulations governing the Audit Committee and the
Nomination and Remuneration Committee will be approved.
Furthermore, adjustments will be made at the entity to adapt
it to the new regulatory requirements relating to financial
reporting and control management and systems; the securities
applications will gradually be adapted to the new requirements
relating to the reform of Iberclear, and the management tools
will be optimized in order to focus them on the income obtained
per customer and product.

In relation to growth, the objectives for increasing the level of
activity planned for operational and financial services focus on
the analysis of possible legal and fiscal formulae for the acqui-
sition or, where appropriate, orderly disposal of businesses by
Cecabank, in accordance with its business plan.
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In the area of Resources and the ESCA training school, the latter
will focus on specialized training modules relating to regulatory
matters and other services provided by Cecabank, with the aim of
consolidating the benchmark position in the market.

The Technology Area will widen its customer and market portfolio
both within and outside the financial sector, in Spain and abroad,
and will promote technological services, particularly in: electronic
banking, mobility, business intelligence, surveys, consultancy
and the contribution of services to ongoing mergers and the
restructuring plans of banks, savings banks and foundations,
through services that lead to enhanced efficiency.

Management Report
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Lastly, the General Secretary and Legal and Tax Advisory Service
Area will promote the entity’s services in other sectors and in
international markets.

The objectives in relation to innovation center on developing
the portfolio of products and services in order to adapt them to
changes in the sector.
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[Translation of a report originally issued in Spanish. In the event of a discrepancy, the Spanish-language version prevails.]

Confederacion Espafiola de Cajas de Ahorros (CECA)
BALANCE SHEETS AT 31 DECEMBER 2012 AND 2011 (THOUSANDS OF EUROS)

Page 1 of 3
ASSETS 2012 2011 (®)
1. Cash and balances with central banks (Note 5) - 492,394
2. Financial assets held for trading (Note 6.1) - 5,781,782
2.1 Loans and advances to credit institutions - -
2.2 Loans and advances to customers - -
2.3 Debt instruments - 664,492
2.4 Equity instruments - 39,284
2.5 Trading derivatives - 5,078,006
Memorandum item: Loaned or advanced as collateral - 328,709
3. Other financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (Note 6.2) - 999,877
3.1 Loans and advances to credit institutions - 493,590
3.2 Loans and advances to customers - 506,287
3.3 Debt instruments - -
3.4 Equity instruments - -
Memorandum item: Loaned or advanced as collateral - 169,324
(*) Presented for comparison 4. Available-for-sale financial assets (Note 7) - 3,608,306
e g Notes 110 4.1 Debt instruments : 3,488,733
43 and Appendixes | and Il are an 4.2 Equity instruments = 119,573
I PO RSl Memorandum item: Loaned or advanced as collateral - 1,928,145

31 December 2012.
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BALANCE SHEETS AT 31 DECEMBER 2012 AND 2011 (THOUSANDS OF EUROS)

Page 2 of 3
ASSETS 2012 2011 (*)
5. Loans and receivables (Note 8) 13,542 5,304,647
5.1 Loans and advances to credit institutions 13,542 2,403,417
5.2 Loans and advances to customers - 458,590
5.3 Debt instruments - 2,442,640
Memorandum item: Loaned or advanced as collateral - 611,190
6. Held-to-maturity investments - -
Memorandum item: Loaned or advanced as collateral - -
7. Changes in the fair value of hedged items in portfolio hedges of interest rate risk - -
8. Hedging derivatives (Note 9) - 10
9. Non-current assets held for sale (Note 10) - 84
10. Investments (Note 11) 648,817 515
10.1 Associates - -
10.2 Jointly controlled entities - 451
10.3 Subsidiares 648,817 64
(*) Presented for comparison 11. Insurance contracts linked to pensions - -

purposes only.

The accompanying Notes 1 to

43 and Appendixes | and Il are an
integral part of the balance sheet at
31 December 2012.
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BALANCE SHEETS AT 31 DECEMBER 2012 AND 2011 (THOUSANDS OF EUROS)

Page 3 of 3

ASSETS 2012 2011 (%)

13. Tangible assets (Note 12) - 98,414

13.1. Property, plant and equipment - 97,282

13.1.1 For own use - 97,282

13.1.2 Leased out under an operating lease - -

13.1.3 Assigned to welfare projects - -

13.2 Investment property - 1132

Memorandum item: Acquired under a finance lease - -

14. Intangible assets (Note 13) - 2,446

141 Goodwill - -

14.2 Other intangible assets - 2,446

15. Tax assets 1,372 128,981

151 Current 1,372 639

15.2 Deferred (Note 22) - 128,342

16. Other assets (Note 14) 24 42,031

(*) Presented for comparison TOTAL ASSETS 663,755 16,459,487

purposes only.

g Nt T MEMORANDUM ITEMS

integral part of the balance sheet at 1. Contingent liabilities (Note 28.1) = 137,602

31 December 2012. 2. Contingent commitments (Note 28.3) - 2,297,670
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BALANCE SHEETS AT 31 DECEMBER 2012 AND 2011 (THOUSANDS OF EUROS)

Page 1 of 4
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY 2012 2011 (*)
LIABILITIES
1. Financial liabilities held for trading (Note 6.1) - 5,360,647
1.1 Deposits from central banks - -
1.2 Deposits from credit institutions - -
1.3 Customer deposits - -
1.4 Marketable debt securities - -
1.5 Trading derivatives - 5,017,293
1.6 Short positions - 343,354
1.7 Other financial liabilities - -
2. Other financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss (Note 6.2) - 2,324,724
2.1 Deposits from central banks - 930,840
2.2 Deposits from credit institutions - 352,750
2.3 Customer deposits - 1,041,134

2.4 Marketable debt securities = =
2.5 Subordinated liabilities = =

(*) Presented for comparison . . e
P 2.6 Other financial liabilities - -

purposes only.

The accompanying Notes 1 to

43 and Appendixes | and Il are an
integral part of the balance sheet at
31 December 2012.
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Cajas de Ahorros (CECA) Cecabank CECA Group
BALANCE SHEETS AT 31 DECEMBER 2012 AND 2011 (THOUSANDS OF EUROS)
Page 2 of 4
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY 2012 2011 (*)
LIABILITIES

3. Financial liabilities at amortised cost (Note 15) 101 7,000,314
3.1 Deposits from central banks - 344,845
3.2 Deposits from credit institutions - 2,917,015
3.3 Customer deposits - 3,447709
3.4 Marketable debt securities - -
3.5 Subordinated liabilities - -
3.6 Other financial liabilities 101 290,745
4. Changes in the fair value of hedged items in portfolio hedges of interest rate risk - -
5. Hedging derivatives (Note 9) - 25,759
6. Liabilities associated with non-current assets held for sale - -
7. Liabilities under insurance contracts - -
8. Provisions (Note 16) - 206,302
8.1 Provisions for pensions and similar obligations - 65,467
() Presented for comparison 8.2 Provisions for taxes and other legal contingencies - -
purposes only. 8.3 Provisions for contingent liabilities and commitments - 1/
e a1 are an 8.4 Other provisions : 140,818
integral part of the balance sheet at 9. Tax liabilities (Note 20) - 44,926
31 December 2012 9.1 Current . 8,443
9.2 Deferred - 36,483
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BALANCE SHEETS AT 31 DECEMBER 2012 AND 2011 (THOUSANDS OF EUROS)

Page 3 of 4

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY 2012 2011 (*)

LIABILITIES
10. Welfare fund (Note 27) 215 215
11. Other liabilities (Note 14) 126 763,135
12. Capital repayable an demand - -

EQUITY

1. Own funds 663,313 738,288
1.1 Endowment fund - -
1.1.1 Registered capital - -
1.1.2 Less: Uncalled capital - -
1.2 Share premium - -
1.3 Reserves (Note 19) 653,175 669,481
1.4 Other equity instruments 799 30,051
1.4.1 Equity component of compound financial instruments - -
(*) Presented for comparison 1.4.2 Non-voting equity units and associated funds (Note 18) 755 30,051
?E;p:scesnfgggmg N 1.4.3 Other equity instruments - -
43 and Appendixes | and Il are an 1.5 Less: Treasury shares - B
incegra part ofthe balance shect at 1.6 Profit for the year 9,339 38,756

1.7 Less: Dividends and remuneration = =
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BALANCE SHEETS AT 31 DECEMBER 2012 AND 2011 (THOUSANDS OF EUROS)

Page 4 of 4

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY 2012 2011 (®
EQUITY

2. Valuation adjustments - (4,823)

2.1 Available-for-sale financial assets (Note 17) - 4,823)

2.2 Cash flow hedges - -

2.3 Hedges of net investments in foreign operations - -

2.4 Exchange differences - -

2.5 Non-current assets held for sale - -

2.6 entities accounted for using the equity method - -

2.7 Other valuation adjustments - -

TOTAL EQUITY 663,313 733,465

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY 663,755 16,459,487

(*) Presented for comparison
purposes only.

The accompanying Notes 1 to

43 and Appendixes | and Il are an
integral part of the balance sheet at
31 December 2012.
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[Translation of a report originally issued in Spanish. In the event of a discrepancy, the Spanish-language version prevails.]

INCOME STATEMENTS FOR THE YEARS ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2012 AND 2011 (THOUSANDS OF EURQS)

Page 1 of 3
2012 2011 (®)
1. Interest and similar income (Note 29) 3,008 323,055
2. Interest expense and similar charges (Note 30) - (208,463)
3. Remuneration of capital having the nature of a financial liability - -
4. Income from equity instruments (Note 31) 4,000 115,005
5. Fee and commission income (Note 32) - 103,854
7. Fee and commission expense (Note 33) - (32,710)
8. Gains/losses on financial assets and liabilities (net) (Note 34) - (50,724)
8.1 Held for trading - (35,004)
8.2 Other financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss - (10,577)
8.3 Financial instruments not measured at fair value through profit or loss - (924)
8.4 Other - 4,219)
9. Exchange differences (net) - 27,021
U N 10. Other operating income (Note 35) 13,429 74,369
purposes only. 11. Other operating expenses (Note 38) - (3,142)

The accompanying Notes 1 to
43 and Appendixes | and Il are
an integral part of the income
statement for 2012.
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INCOME STATEMENTS FOR THE YEARS ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2012 AND 2011 (THOUSANDS OF EURQS)

Page 2 of 3

2012 2011 (%

12. Administrative expenses (12,024) (164,660)

12.1 Staff costs (Note 36) (578) (81,734)

12.2 Other general administrative expenses (Note 37) (11,446) (82,926)

13. Depreciation and amortisation (Note 40) - (7,566)

14. Provisions (net) (Note 16) - (132,775)

15. Impairment losses on financial assets (net) (Notes 22 and 39) - 4,798

15.1 Loans and receivables - 9,735

15.2 Other financial instruments not measured at fair value through profit or loss - (4,937)

16. Impairment losses on other assets (net) - -

16.1 Goodwill and other intangible assets - -

16.2 Other assets - -

(*) Presented for comparison 17. Gains (losses) on disposal of assets not classified as non-current assets held for sale - (7)

?E;p:zf;nig]ag@ng Notes 1 to 18. Negative goodwill on business combinations - -
43 and Appendixes | and Il are 19. Gains (losses) on non-current assets held for sale not classified as

el Initeiglial] it eirif i st discontinued operations (Note 12) - 945

statement for 2012.
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INCOME STATEMENTS FOR THE YEARS ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2012 AND 2011 (THOUSANDS OF EUROS)

(*) Presented for comparison
purposes only.

The accompanying Notes 1 to
43 and Appendixes | and Il are
an integral part of the income
statement for 2012.

Page 3 of 3

2012 2011 (¥

D. PROFIT BEFORE TAX 8,413 49,000

20. Income tax (Note 20) 926 (10,244)
21. Mandatory transfer to welfare projects and funds - -
E. PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS 9,339 38,756

22. Profit/Loss from discontinued operations (net) - -
E. PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 9,339 38,756
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[Translation of a report originally issued in Spanish. In the event of a discrepancy, the Spanish-language version prevails.]

STATEMENTS OF RECOGNISED INCOME AND EXPENSE FOR THE YEARS ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2012 AND 2011
(THOUSANDS OF EURQS)

Page 1 of 2
2012 2011 (®)
1. Available-for-sale financial assets 6,890 499
1.1 Revaluation gains (losses) - (1,389)
1.2 Amounts transferred to income statement (Note 34) - 1,888

1.3 Other reclassifications 6,890 -
2. Cash flow hedges - -
2.1 Revaluation gains (losses) - -
2.2 Amounts transferred to income statement - -
2.3 Amounts transferred to the initial carrying amount of hedged items - -

2.4 Other reclassifications - -
(*) Presented for comparison

purposes only. 3. Hedges of net investments in foreign operations - -
The acchpanging Notes 1 to 43 and 21 Revaluation gains (losses) _ _
Appendixes | and Il are an integral i

part of the statement of recognised 3.2 Amounts transferred to income statement - -

ez 20 e e ol ZLHL2 3.3 Other reclassifications - -
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STATEMENTS OF RECOGNISED INCOME AND EXPENSE FOR THE YEARS ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2012 AND 2011
(THOUSANDS OF EURQS)

Page 2 of 2

INCOME / (EXPENSE)

2012 2011 (*)

4. Exchange differences - -
4.1 Revaluation gains (losses) - -
4.2 Amounts transferred to income statement - -
4.3 Other reclassifications - -

5. Non-current assets held for sale - -
5.1 Revaluation gains (losses) - -
5.2 Amounts transferred to income statement - -
5.3 Other reclassifications - -

6. Actuarial gains (losses) on pension plans - -
7. entities accounted for using the equity method - -
7.1 Revaluation gains (losses) - -

(*) Presented for comparison 7.2 Amounts transferred to income statement - -
purposes only.

The accompanying Notes 1 to 43 and
Appendixes | and Il are an integral 8. Other recognised income and expense - -

part of the statement of recognised
income and expense for 2012. 9. Income tax (2,067) (150)

7.3 Other reclassifications = =
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[Translation of a report originally issued in Spanish. In the event of a discrepancy, the Spanish-language version prevails.]

STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN TOTAL EQUITY FOR THE YEARS ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2012 AND 2011
(THOUSANDS OF EURQS)

Page 1 of 2 OWN FUNDS
OTHER EQUITY LESS: PROFIT FOR LESS: TOTAL VALUATION
ENDOWMENT SHARE RESERVES INSTRUMENTS  TREASURY THE YEAR DIVIDENDS AND OWN ADJUSTMENTS TOTAL
FUND PREMIUM (NOTE 19) (NOTE 18) SHARES (NOTE 3) REMUNERATION FUNDS (NOTE 17) EQUITY

1. Ending balance at 31/12/11 = S 669,481 30,051 = 38,756 = 738,288 (4,823) 733,465

1.1. Adjustments due to changes in accounting policies - - - - - - - - - -

1.2.  Adjustments made to correct errors - - - - - - - - - -
2. Adjusted beginning balance = : 669,481 30,051 = 38,756 = 738,288 (4,823) 733,465
3. Total recognised income and expense C = C S C 9,339 C 9,339 4,823 14,162
4. Other changes in equity = = (16,306) (29,252) = (38,756) = (84,314) = (84,314)

41. Increases in endowment fund - - - - - - - - -

4.2. Reductions of endowment fund = = = (29,252) = = = (29,252) = (29,252)

4.3, Conversion of financial liabilities into equity = = = = = = = s =

4.4, Increases in other equity instruments = = = = = = = = =

45, Reclassification of financial liabilities to other equity instruments = = = = = = = = =

4.6. Reclassification of other equity instruments to financial liabilities - - - - - - - - -

4.7.  Remuneration of shareholders - - - - - (1,667) - (1,667) - (1,667)

4.8. Transactions involving own equity instruments - - - - - - - - -

49. Transfers between equity items = = 33,374 = = (33,374) = = =

4.10. Increases (decreases) due to business combinations - - - - - - - - -

4.11. Discretionary transfer to welfare projects and funds = S S S S (3,715) : (3,715) S (3,715)

4.12. Equity-instrument-based payments = S o S o = = S S

4.13. Otherincreases (decreases) in equity S = (49,680) o S S S (49,680) = (49,680)
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STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN TOTAL EQUITY FOR THE YEARS ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2012 AND 2011
(THOUSANDS OF EURQS)

Page 2 of 2 OWN FUNDS
OTHER EQUITY LESS: PROFIT FOR LESS: TOTAL VALUATION
ENDOWMENT SHARE RESERVES INSTRUMENTS  TREASURY THE YEAR DIVIDENDS AND OWN ADJUSTMENTS TOTAL
FUND PREMIUM (NOTE 19) (NOTE 18) SHARES (NOTE 3) REMUNERATION FUNDS (NOTE 17) EQUITY (*)
1. Ending balance at 31/12/10 = S 623,547 30,051 = 52,337 = 705,935 (5172) 700,763
1.1. Adjustments due to changes in accounting policies - - - - - - - - - -
1.2.  Adjustments made to correct errors - - - - - - - - - -
2. Adjusted beginning balance = . 623,547 30,051 = 52,337 = 705,935 (5172) 700,763
3. Total recognised income and expense C . C S S 38,756 C 38,756 349 39,105
4. Other changes in equity = = 45,934 = = (52,337) = (6,403) = (6,403)
41. Increases in endowment fund - - - - - - - - - -
4.2. Reductions of endowment fund - - - - - - - - - -
4.3, Conversion of financial liabilities into equity = = = = = = = = = =
4.4. Increases in other equity instruments = = = = = = = = = =
45, Reclassification of financial liabilities to other equity instruments = = = = = = = = = =
4.6. Reclassification of other equity instruments to financial liabilities - - - - - - - - - -
47.  Remuneration of shareholders - - - - - (2,408) - (2,408) - (2,408)
4.8. Transactions involving own equity instruments - - - - - - - - - -
49. Transfers between equity items = = 45,934 = = (45,934) = = = =
4.10. Increases (decreases) due to business combinations - - - - - - - - - -
411. Discretionary transfer to welfare projects and funds S = S S S (3,995) S (3,995) = (3,995)

4.12. Equity-instrument-based payments - - - - - - = - . -
4.13. Other increases (decreases) in equity = = - - - - - = - -

(*) Presented for comparison purposes only.
The accompanying Notes 1 to 43 and Appendixes | and Il are an integral part of the statement of changes in total equity for 2012.
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[Translation of a report originally issued in Spanish. In the event of a discrepancy, the Spanish-language version prevails.]

CASH FLOW STATEMENTS FOR THE YEARS ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2012 AND 2011

(THOUSANDS OF EURQS)

(*) Presented for comparison
purposes only.

The accompanying Notes 1 to
43 and Appendixes | and Il are
an integral part of the cash flow
statement for 2012.

Page 1 of 4
2012 2011 (¥)
1. Profit for the year 9,339 38,756
. Adjustments made to obtain the cash flows from operating activities (926) 51,496
2.1 Depreciation and amortisation - 7,566
2.3 Other adjustments (926) 43,930
. Net (increase)/decrease in operating assets (80) 4,358,545
3.1 Financial assets held for trading - (149,798)
3.2 Other financial assets at fair value through profit or loss - 3,712,697
3.3 Available-for-sale financial assets - 199,317
3.4 Loans and receivables - 636,604
3.5 Other operating assets (80) (40,275)
. Net (increase)/decrease in operating liabilities (3,517) (4,032,124)
4.1 Financial habilities held for trading - 1,101,664
4.2 Other financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss - (6,398,150)
4.3 Financial liabilities at amortised cost 101 472,859
4.4 Other operating liabilities (3,618) 791,503
. Collections/(Payments) of income tax (390) (47,967)
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CASH FLOW STATEMENTS FOR THE YEARS ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2012 AND 2011
(THOUSANDS OF EURQS)

Page 2 of 4
2012 2011 (®)
6. Payments - (1,961)
6.1 Tangible assets - (1,525)
6.2 Intangible assets - (436)

6.3 Investments - -
6.4 Other business units - -
6.5 Non-current assets held for sale and associated liabilities - -
6.6 Held-to-maturity investments - -
6.7 Other payments related to investing activities - -
7. Collections - 1,050
/.1 Tangible assets - -
7.2 Intangible assets - -
7.3 Investments - -

) Piesianiizs o gomipeiise 7.4 Other business units - -
purposes only. _ o

The accompanying Notes 1 to 7.5 Non-current assets held for sale and associated habilities - 1,050
43 and Appendixes | and |l are 7.6 Held-to-maturity investments - :
an integral part of the cash flow i i o

statement for 2012. 7.7 Other payments related to investing activities - -
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CASH FLOW STATEMENTS FOR THE YEARS ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2012 AND 2011
(THOUSANDS OF EURQS)

Page 3 of 4

2012 2011 (®)

C. CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES (80,599) (2,408)
8. Payments (80,599) (2,408)
8.1 Dividends (1,667) (2,408)
8.2 Subordinated liabilities - -

8.3 Redemption of own equity instruments (29,252) -

8.4 Acquisition of own equity instruments - -

8.5 Other payments related to financing activities (49,680) -

9. Collections - -
9.1 Subordinated liabilities - -
9.2 Issuance of own equity instruments - -
9.3 Disposal of equity instruments - -
9.4 Other collections related to financing activities - -

D. EFFECT OF CHANGES IN EXCHANGE RATES 8 :

(*) Presented for comparison

purposes only. E. NET INCREASE/DECREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (A+B+C+D) (76,173) 365,387
The accompanying Notes 1 to
43 and Appendixes | and Il are F. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 89,715 127,007

an integral part of the cash flow
statement for 2012.
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CASH FLOW STATEMENTS FOR THE YEARS ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2012 AND 2011
(THOUSANDS OF EURQS)

Page 4 of 4
2012 2011 (%)
G. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR 13,542 492,394
MEMORANDUM ITEMS
COMPONENTS OF CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR
1.1. Cash - 56,438
1.2. Cash equivalents at central banks - 435,956

1.3. Other financial assets
1.4. Less: Bank overdrafts refundable on demand

13,542 -

492,394

Total cash and cash equivalents at end of year (Note 5)

(*) Presented for comparison
purposes only.

The accompanying Notes 1 to
43 and Appendixes | and Il are
an integral part of the cash flow
statement for 2012.
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1. Introduction, basis of presentation
of the financial statements and other
information

1.1. Introduction

Confederacién Espafiola de Cajasde Ahorros (“the Confederacion”)
s an entity subject to the rules and regulations applicable to
creditinstitutions operatingin Spain. The Confederacion operates
mainly in Spain. Its registered office is at calle Alcala, 27, Madrid.
Public information on the Confederacion can be consulted both
on the Confederaciéon’s official website (www.ceca.es) and at its
registered office.

The Confederacién is the National Association of all member,
or potential member, popular savings banks, whether or not
they are grouped together in Federations, and provides them
with financial services. Membership of the Confederacién, with
the same rights and obligations, is also open to entities which,
in accordance with current legislation, carry on the financial
activity of one or several savings banks and, in particular, to
those for which certain circumstances prevail, including:

Balance sheets
and accounts
CECA Group

a. The central entities of Institutional Protection Schemes that
include savings banks, as provided for by Article 8.3 d) of Law
13/1985, of 25 May, on the investment ratios, capital and
reporting requirements of financial intermediaries.

b. The instrumental financial institutions through which one
or several savings banks carry on their business activity
indirectly, as provided for by Article 5 of Royal Decree-Law
11/2010, of 9 July, on governing bodies and other aspects
of the legal regime of savings banks.

It is @ community welfare institution governed by current
legislation and regulations in this connection and, particularly,
by its bylaws.

As described below, the Confederacion carries on the activities
relating to its object through a newly-created bank to which
it transferred all its financial business and almost all the non-
financial assets and liabilities attached thereto, in the terms
provided for in Article 5 of Royal Decree-Law 11/2010, of 9 July,
on governing bodies and other aspects of the legal regime of
savings banks.
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The most significant dates in the spin-off process involving the > Lastly, on 12 November 2012, the Confederacién spin-
Confederacién in 2012 and in the creation of the new bank off deed was registered at the Mercantile Registry,
named Cecabank, S.A. are as follows: following authorization by the Ministry of Economy and

Finance. The spin-off involved the creation of the new
credit institution named “Cecabank, S.A”, to which the
Confederacion’s assets and liabilities were spun off and
through which the Confederacién carries on its activity as
a credit institution indirectly.

> 0On 21 March 2012, the Board of Directors of the
Confederacion resolved to change the entity’s regime in order
to carry on its financial activity indirectly, in accordance
with the aforementioned current legislation. In this regard,
the Board of Directors approved the Spin-Off Plan whereby

all the Confederacién’s assets and liabilities except certain The table below includes a comparison of the Confederacion’s
items relating to charitable and social work were spun off balance sheet at 31 December 2011, which was considered the
to a newly-created bank named Cecabank, S.A., which was spin-off balance sheet and forms part of the Confederacion’s
subrogated to all the rights and obligations intrinsic to the separate financial statements for the year then ended, and the
spun-off assets and liabilities. balance sheet at 1 January 2012 after including the effects

arising from the spin-off process which resulted in the transfer of
the financial assets and liabilities relating to its financial activity
to Cecabank, S.A., with the exceptions mentioned above:

> 0On 25 July 2012, the Spin-Off Plan was approved at
the Extraordinary General Assembly, together with the
spin-off balance sheet and the agreement to spin off the
Confederacién’s business to Cecabank, S.A.
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Cajas de Ahorros (CECA) Cecabank CECA Group
Page 1 of 2
Spin-off
ASSETS 31/12/2011 Perimeter 01/01/2012 (1)
Cash and balances with central banks 492,394 402,679 89,715
Financial assets held for trading 5,781,782 5,781,782 -
Other financial assets designated at fair value through profit or 1oss 999,877 999,877 -
Available-for-sale financial assets 3,608,306 3,608,306 -
Loans and receivables 5,304,647 5,304,647 -
Hedging derivatives 10 10 -
Non-current assets held for sale 84 84 -
Investments 515 515 648,817
Tangible assets 98,414 98,414 -
Intangible assets 2,446 2,446 -
Tax assets 128,981 128,981 -
Other assets 42,031 42,031 -
TOTAL ASSETS 16,459,487 16,369,772 738,532
(1) Non-audited figures with the effect of the Spin-off Project.
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Cajas de Ahorros (CECA) Cecabank CECA Group
Page 2 of 2
Spin-off
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY 31/12/2011 Perimeter 01/01/2012 (1)
Financial liabilities held for trading 5,360,647 5,360,647 -
Other financial liabilities at fair value through Profit or loss 2,324,724 2,324,724 -
Financial liabilities at amortized cost 7,000,314 7,000,314 -
Hedging derivatives 25,759 25,759 -
Provisions 206,302 206,302 -
Tax liabilities 44,926 44,926 -
Welfare funds 215 - 215
Other liabilities 763,135 763,135 29
TOTAL LIABILITIES 15,726,022 15,726,022 244
TOTAL EQUITY 733,465 643,994 738,288
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY 16,459,487 16,369,772 738,532
(1) Non-audited figures with the effect of the Spin-off Project.
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As part of the process to create the new entity named Cecabank,
S.A., the Confederacion carried out, through the spin-off of its
assets and liabilities, a non-monetary contribution to this entity’s
share capital, of which it was the sole shareholder at that time,
with a balancing entry of the same amount recognized as an
increase in the balance of “Investments - Subsidiaries” on the
asset side of the balance sheet at that date.

> The price of the repurchase was EUR 16,217.83 per non-
voting equity unit and, as a result, the Repurchase Offer
amounted to EUR 81,089 thousand in total.

> Substantially all the holders of the non-voting equity units
accepted the offer. As a result, the amount recognized
under “Equity - Own Funds - Other Equity Instruments -
Non-Voting Equity Units and Associated Funds” in the

On 13 November 2012, following the resolution of its directors
at the Board meeting held on 21 March 2012 and following
authorization by the Bank of Spain, the Confederacion
repurchased the non-voting equity units (“cuotas participativas
de asociaciéon”) it had issued in 1988 and which were recognized
in equity in its balance sheet at 31 December 2011, through an
offer to the holders of these securities under the following terms
and conditions:

> Acceptance of the Repurchase Offer by the holders of
the non-voting equity units was conditional on the
simultaneous, irrevocable undertaking to subscribe ordinary
shares of Cecabank for a cash amount equal to that of the
repurchased non-voting equity units.

Confederaciéon’s balance sheet at 31 December 2012 was
EUR 799 thousand (see Note 18)

Subsequently, Cecabank, S.A. performed a capital increase
amountingto EUR 78,932,117.60 through theissue 0f 12,256,540
new shares, with the same voting and dividend rights as the
existing shares, of EUR 1 par value each and a share premium of
EUR 5.44 per share. These shares were fully subscribed and paid
by the former holders of the non-voting equity units, following
acceptance of the aforementioned Repurchase Offer and the
Confederacion’s waiver of its pre-emptive subscription right.
Accordingly, at 31 December 2012, the Confederacién held an
89% ownership interest in the share capital of Cecabank, S.A.
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In addition to the operations carried on directly and indirectly
through Cecabank, S.A., the Confederacién is the head of a group
of subsidiaries through Cecabank, S.A. that engage in various
business activities and which compose, together with it, the
Confederacién Espafiola de Cajas de Ahorros Group (“the Group”).
Therefore, the Confederacién is obliged to prepare, in addition
to its own individual financial statements, the Confederacion’s
financial statements, which also include the interests in joint
ventures (jointly controlled entities) and the investments in
associates, if any.

The Confederacion financial statements for 2011 were approved
at the Confederacién’s Annual General Assembly on 22 February
2012. The 2012 Confederacion financial statements have not
yet been approved by the General Assembly. However, the
Confederacién’s Board of Directors considers that they will be
approved without any material changes.
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1.2. Basis of presentation of the financial
statements

The Confederacion financial statements for 2012 were
authorized for issue by the Confederacion’s directors at the
Board of Directors meeting held on 23 January 2013.

The Confederacion financial statements are presented in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as
adopted by the European Union at 31 December 2012 (“IFRSs”),
taking into account Bank of Spain Circular 4/2004, of 22
December, on public and confidential financial reporting rules and
financial statement formats for credit institutions and as amended
thereafter. This Bank of Spain Circular 4/2004 implements and
adapts for the Spanish credit institution industry the International
Financial Reporting Standards approved by the European Union.
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The Confederacién financial statements for 2012 were prepared
taking into account all the mandatory accounting policies and
rules and measurement bases with a material effect on the
financial statements and, accordingly, they present fairly the
Confederacion equity and financial position at 31 December 2012,
and the Confederacién results of its operations, the Confederacion
statement of recognized income and expense and the cash flows in
the year then ended, in accordance with the financial information’s
regulatory framework to be applied in this case, particularly with
the accounting policies and measurement bases contained in the
document mentioned in the previous paragraph.

As explained above, the Confederacioén is the parent of a group of
companies of various kinds, the detail of which at 31 December
2012 is included in Appendices | and Il. Pursuant to Spanish
corporate and commercial law, the Confederacién’s directors
prepared, at the same time as the Confederacién’s separate
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financial statements for 2012, the consolidated financial
statements of the Confederacion Espafiola de Cajas de Ahorros
Group for that year. Per the content of the aforementioned
consolidated financial statements, which were prepared in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
as adopted by the European Union, the total assets and
consolidated equity of the Confederacién Espafiola de Cajas de
Ahorros Group at 2012 year-end amounted to EUR 15,021,526
thousand and EUR 771,857 thousand, respectively, and the
consolidated net profit for 2012 attributable to the Group was
EUR 40,953 thousand.

The principal accounting policies and measurement bases applied
in preparing the Confederacién financial statements for 2012 are
summarized in Note 2.
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1.3. Information relating to 2011

Asindicated above, with effect from 1 January 2012 for accounting
purposes, there was a significant change in the nature, size and
activity of the Confederacién as a result of the asset and liability
spin-off process to Cecabank, S.A. (see Note 1.1).

The Confederacion’s separate financial statements for 2011 were
prepared prior to the spin-off process. Its activity as a credit
institution began as a result of its ownership interest in Cecabank,
S.A., which gave rise to the situation and size of activity reflected
in these 2012 financial statements of the Confederacion.

As a result, the figures for 2011 that are presented for comparison
purposes in the financial statements and the notes to these
financial statements for 2012 may not be considered comparable
with the figures relating to the Confederacion for 2012.

Therefore, although the Confederacion’s directors opted to
present this information with regard to the Confederacion in
relation to 2011 (that does not constitute its 2011 financial
statements) as comparative information from 2011, they note
that these 2011 figures may not be considered comparable with
the figures for 2012 presented in these financial statements.

1.4. Responsibility for the information and use
of estimates

Theinformation in these financial statements is the responsibility
of the Confederacién’s Directors.

In the preparation of the Confederacion’s financial statements
for 2012 estimates were made by the Confederacién’s Directors
in order to quantify certain of the assets, liabilities, income,
expenses and obligations reported herein. These estimates
relate basically to the following:

> The impairment losses on certain assets (see Notes 2.3,
213,214 and 2.16).

> The assumptions used in the actuarial calculation of the
post-employment benefit liabilities and obligations and
other long-term obligations to employees (see Note 2.11).

> The calculation of any provisions required for contingent
liabilities (see Notes 2.10 and 2.15).

> The useful life of the tangible and intangible assets (see
Notes 2.13 and 2.14); and

> The fair value of certain unquoted assets (see Note 2.2.3).
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Although these estimates were made on the basis of the best
information available at 31 December 2012 and at the date
on which these financial statements were authorized for issue
on the events analyzed, future events might make it necessary
to change these estimates (upwards or downwards) in coming
years. Any required changes in accounting estimates would
be applied prospectively in accordance with the applicable
standards, recognizing the effects of the change in estimates in
the income statements for the years in question.

1.5. Agency agreements

Neither at 2012 nor 2011 year-end nor at any other time during
those years did the Confederacién have any agency agreements
in force, as defined in Article 22 of Royal Decree- Law 1245/1995,
of 14 July.
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1.6. Investments in the share capital of credit
institutions

Note 11 details the investments held by the Confederaciéon at
31 December 2012 in the share capital of other Spanish and
foreign credit institutions, representing 5% or more of their
share capital or voting power

At December 2011, the Confederacién did not hold any
ownership interests of 5% or more in the share capital or voting
power of any Spanish or foreign credit institutions.

1.7. Environmental impact

In view of the business activities carried on by the Confederacion, it
does not have a significant impact on the environment. Therefore,
the Confederacién financial statements for 2012 do not contain
any disclosures on environmental issues.
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1.8. Capital management objectives, policies
and processes

Bank of Spain Circular 3/2008 (“Circular 3/2008” or “Solvency
Circular”), of 22th of May, on the calculation and control of
minimum capital requirements, and as amended thereafter,
regulates the minimum capital requirements for Spanish credit
institutions -both as individual entities and as consolidated
groups- and how to calculate them, as well as the various internal
capital adequacy assessment processes the entities should
have in place and the information they should disclose to the
market in this connection. Bank of Spain Circular 3/2008 adapts
Spanish legislation on capital requirements to the Community
Directives, which in turn stem from the Basel Capital Accord
(Basel Il), structured around three core pillars: minimum capital
requirements (Pillar I), the internal capital adequacy assessment
process (Pillar Il) and market disclosures (Pillar ).
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Bank of Spain Circular 7/2012, of 30 November, to credit
institutions on minimum principal capital requirements was
published on 11 December 2012. It introduced the amendments
established by Law 9/2012, of 14 November, on restructuring
and resolution of credit institutions, to Royal Decree-Law
24/2012, of 31 August, on restructuring and resolution of credit
institutions, which established amendments to the principal
capital requirements that must be met by consolidated groups
of credit institutions and by credit institutions not forming
part of a consolidated group of credit institutions, which can
raise refundable funds from the public (these requirements
had been established by Royal Decree-Law 2/2011, of 18
February, for the strengthening of the financial sector). In this
regard, Law 9/2012, of 14 November, converted the principal
capital requirements -the general requirement of 8% and the
10% requirement for entities with difficult access to the capital
markets and for which wholesale financing is a significant source
of funding- into a single requirement of 9% that must be met by
the aforementioned entities and groups as from 1 January 2013.
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The strategic capital management objectives set by the
Confederacién management are as follows:

> To comply, at all times, both atindividual and at consolidated
level, with the applicable regulations on minimum capital
requirements.

> To seek maximum capital management efficiency so that,
together with other profitability and risk variables, the use of
capital is considered as a key variable in any analysis related
to the Confederacion’s investment decisions.

In order to meet these objectives, the Confederacién has in place
a series of capital management policies and processes, the main
cornerstones of which are as follows:

> In the Confederacion’s strategic and operational planning,
the impact of decisions on the Confederacion’s eligible capital
and the use-profitability-risk relationship is considered to be
a key decision-making factor.

> As part of its organizational structure the Confederacién has
monitoring and control units which at all times analyze the
level of compliance with the Bank of Spain regulations on
capital, with alerts in place to guarantee compliance with
the applicable regulations. Therefore, in the spin-off process
of the assets and liabilities and the indirectly carry on of its

activity, performed in 2012 by Cecabank (see Note 1.1), all
the proceeding of risk evaluation, measurement and control
that develop the general risk management policies defined
by the Confederacién Board, have been defined by Cecabank
and must be applied by all the Group.

Circular 3/2008, establishes the elements that are eligible
for inclusion in capital for the purpose of compliance with
the minimum capital requirements set forth therein. Under
this Circular, capital must be classified into Tier 1 and Tier
2 capital. The capital calculated for the purposes of the
Circular differs from the capital calculated in accordance
with accounting standards, since the Circular considers
certain items as capital and establishes certain mandatory
deductions from capital in respect of items which are not
considered to be part of capital under accounting standards.
In accordance with the aforementioned Circular 3/2008,
the Confederacién’s capital is managed and calculated
at the level of its consolidable group of credit institutions,
as defined in the Circular. The consolidable group of credit
institutions, of which the Confederacion is the head, differs
from the economic group of which it is the parent (see
Note 1.2), basically with respect to the consolidation or
measurement methods applied to the Group entities which
are not considered consolidable entities due to their activity
(non-financial entities).
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The Confederacidon’s management of its capital, as regards
conceptual definitions, is in keeping with Circular 3/2008. In this
connection, the Confederaciéon considers eligible capital to be that
specified in Rule Eight of Circular 3/2008, with the deductions
and limits stated in Rules Nine to Eleven of the Circular.

The minimum capital requirements established by the
aforementioned Circular are calculated by reference to the
Confederacién’s exposure to credit and dilution risk (on the
basis of assets, obligations and other memorandum items that
present these risks, depending on their amounts, characteristics,
counterparties, guarantees, etc.), to counterparty risk and position
and settlement risk in the trading book, to foreign exchange and
gold position risk (on the basis of the overall net foreign currency
position and of the net gold position) and to operational risk.
Additionally, the Confederacién is subject to compliance with
the risk concentration limits and the requirements concerning
internal corporate governance, capital adequacy assessment,
interest rate risk measurement and disclosure of information to
the market, also established in Circular 3/2008. With a view to
guaranteeing compliance with the aforementioned objectives, the
Confederacion performs an integrated management of these risks,
in accordance with the policies and processes indicated above.
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Following is a detail, classified into Tier 1 and Tier 2 capital, of
the Confederacion Espafiola de Cajas de Ahorros capital at 31
December 2012 and 2011 calculated in accordance with Circu-

lar 3/2008:

THOUSANDS OF EUROS

2012 2011
Tier 1 capital 703,961 694,007
Tier 2 capital 8,653 61,031
Total eligible capital 712,614 755,038
Minimum Tier capital 304,696 372,959

Tier 1 capital in the above table basically includes the sum of the
Group’sreserves from retained earnings, participation certificates,
non-controlling interests and the portion of consolidated profit
for 2012 which the Group companies proposed be allocated to
unrestricted reserves, less the balance of the intangible assets
owned by the Group.
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Tier 2 capital in the above table basically comprises the 1.9. Minimum reserve ratio
revaluation reserves relating to tangible assets set up in prior
years pursuant to applicable legislation and the percentages
established in Circular 3/2008 applied to the carrying amounts
of the unrealized gains on available-for-sale financial assets
recognized under “Valuation Adjustments” in Group equity and
the part of the allowance that is computed as such according to
the current legislation.

At 31 December 2012, as a result of the spin-off process
performed in 2012 (see Note 1.1), the Confederacién did not
hold any balances in eligible liabilities for these purposes and,
as a consequence, 1t did not hold any balances at the Bank
of Spain at that date. For its part, at 31 December 2011, the
Confederacién met the minimum reserve ratio required by the

applicable Spanish legislation.
At 31 December 2012 and 2011 and throughout these years,

the Group’s eligible capital exceeded the minimum capital
requirements under the applicable legislation.

At 31 December 2011 the Confederacion’s cash balance with
Bank of Spain for these purposes amounted to EUR 35,950
thousand. This ratio is calculated on the basis of the daily
ending balance held by the Confederacion in this account
during the required period.
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1.10. Deposit guarantee fund

In 2011 the following regulations amending the Deposit
Guarantee Fund contribution system were issued:

> Royal Decree-Law 16/2011, of 14 October, creating the
Deposit Guarantee Fund for Credit Institutions, which unifies
the three previously existing deposit guarantee schemes
(the Deposit Guarantee Fund for Savings Banks, the Deposit
Guarantee Fund for Banks and the Deposit Guarantee Fund
for Credit Cooperatives) into a single scheme. Whilst retaining
the function of guaranteeing deposits at credit institutions,
which was already performed by the three previous funds, the
unified scheme seeks to strengthen the second function of
the system: namely to bolster the solvency and functioning
of credit institutions, also known as the “resolution” function,
with a view to ensuring the flexibility of the actions of the
new unified Fund.
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> Rouyal Decree-Law 19/2011, of 2 December, amending

Rouyal Decree-Law 16/2011, of 14 October, which created
the Deposit Guarantee Fund for Credit Institutions. This
Royal Decree-Law completes and reinforces the reform of the
system undertaken through Rouyal Decree-Law 16/2011. It
revises the legally stipulated maximum annual contribution
that entities must make to the Fund, raising it from 2 per
mil to 3 per mil to guarantee the maximum operating
capability of the Fund. It also expressly repeals the ministerial
orders which, pursuant to the legislation previously in force,
had granted powers to temporarily reduce the entities’
contributions, including Ministry of Economy and Finance
Order EHA/3515/2009, of 29 December, which had set
the Confederacién’s contributions at 1 per mil of the base of
the deposits covered by the guarantee. The result of these
changes is the establishment, in a rule that has the status of a
law, of a ceiling on the contributions of 3 per mil of guaranteed
deposits and the establishment of an actual contribution of 2
per mil instead of the aforementioned figures.
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> Additionally, Royal Decree 771/2011 was introduced on
4 June 2011 and amended, among others, Royal Decree
2606/1996 governing deposit guarantee funds at credit
institutions. The new regulation created a new system of
additional contributions to the funds based on remuneration
from the deposits themselves.

2012 saw the publication of Royal Decree-Law 2/2012, of
3 February, on the clean-up of the financial sector, whereby
(by virtue of the provisions contained in Royal Decree-Law
19/2011, of 2 December, which amended Royal Decree-Law
16/2011, of 14 October, creating the Deposit Guarantee Fund
for Credit Institutions, on the performance of the measures
required to restore the balance of the aforementioned Fund to
a sufficient level) on 30 July 2012 the Managing Committee
of the Deposit Guarantee Fund for Credit Institutions resolved
that a supplementary payment was to be made by the entities
participating in the Fund, which would be estimated on the
basis of their contributions at 31 December 2011 and payable
in equal annual installments over the following ten years.
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Also, Law 9/2012, of 14 November 2012, on restructuring and
resolution of credit institutions was published in 2012. This law
requires the Deposit Guarantee Fund, subject to a prior ruling
from the Bank of Spain, to reimburse the amounts of guaranteed
depositsin the event of failure to repay the deposits when past due
and payable, unless the initiation of a process for the resolution
of the entity has been agreed upon. In this regard, the Fund may
adopt measures to support the resolution of a credit institution,
such as granting guarantees, loans or credits, acquiring assets
or assuming liabilities, and may manage the institution itself or
engage a third party to do so.

As indicated in Note 1.1, the Confederacién contributed all its
financial business to another entity and, as a result, it did not
contribute any amounts to the Deposit Guarantee Fund in
2012. The contributions made to this scheme amounted to
approximately EUR 105 thousand in 2011, and the related
expense was recognized under “Other Operating Expenses” in the
accompanying 2011 income statement (see Note 38).
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1.11. Changes in accounting policies

In 2012 there were no significant in the accounting policies
applied by the Confederacion financial statements in 2011.

1.12. Main regulatory changes during the period
from 1 January to 31 December 2012

Bank of Spain Circular 2/2012 of 29 February, which modifies
Bank of Spain Circular 4/2004, of 22 December, to credit
institutions about public and confidential financial information
standards and Financial Statements samples.

On 6 March 2012, the Bank of Spain published Circular 2/2012,
of 29 February, amending Bank of Spain Circular 4/2004, of
22 December, to credit institutions, on public and confidential
financial reporting rules and formats, the main aim of which was
to adapt Circular 4/2004 to the provisions of Royal Decree-Law
2/2012, of 3 February, on the clean-up of the financial sector.

Specifically the main changes of this circular are:

> Adaptations were made to the rules governing coverage

(allowances) for financing and assets foreclosed or received in
payment of debts relating to land for property development
and to property construction or development, corresponding
to credit institutions’ transactions in Spain, both those
existing at 31 December 2011 and those arising from the
refinancing thereof at a later date, in line with the provisions
of the aforementioned Royal Decree-Law on the clean-up of
the financial sector.

Amendments were made to the general rules governing
the accounting recognition of assets foreclosed or received
in payment of debts, determining the value at which these
property assets must be recognized both initially and
subsequently, which is the lower of:

a) the carrying amount of the financial assets applied (debt),
taking into consideration the estimated impairment and,
in all cases, @ minimum of 10%,; and

b) the market appraisal value of the asset received in its
current condition less estimated costs to sell, which in no
case may be less than 10% of this value.
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For the purposes of subsequent measurement, the coverage
percentage of a) above increases to 20%, 30% and 40%
depending on the time that has elapsed since the asset was
included in the balance sheet (more than one, two and three
years, respectively).

The measures established in Royal Decree-Law 2/2012, of 3
February, on the clean-up of the financial sector, and developed in
this Circular must be complied with generally before 31 December
2012, except in the case of entities involved in an integration
process, which will have a further 12 months in which to register
their compliance. In this regard, in view of the activity carried
on by the Confederacion, this does not have any impact on its
financial statements.

Bank of Spain Circular 6/2012, of 28 September, amending
Bank of Spain Circular 4/2004, of 22 December, to credit
institutions on public and confidential financial reporting rules
and formats

On 2 October 2012, the Bank of Spain published Circular 6/2012,
of 28 September, amending Bank of Spain Circular 4/2004, of
22 December, to credit institutions on public and confidential
financial reporting rules and formats, the main aim of which was
to adapt Circular 4/2004 to the provisions of Royal Decree-Law
18/2012, of 11 May, on the clean-up and sale of property assets
of the financial sector.
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Specifically the main changes of this circular are:

> |testablishes certain additional provisioning requirements on
assets connected with the property sector, supplementary to
those already provided for in Royal Decree-Law 2/2012, of
3 February, on the clean-up of the financial sector, whereby,
for loans connected with the property sector classified
as “standard risk”, provisions must be recognized on the
outstanding balance at 31 December 2011, as stipulated
in the aforementioned Royal Decree-Law. Furthermore,
the requirements for transparency in credit institutions’
financial statements were completed, and disclosures must
now include a description of any companies that the credit
institutions may have incorporated to manage these assets
or any investments made by the credit institutions in
companies whose activity is the management of assets of
this kind, with data on the cumulative amount of the assets
transferred to these companies and the financial assets
received in return, indicating the impact on the income
statement and the data relating to the financing lines
granted to these companies.
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> It also establishes the disclosure and presentation of
quantitative information in financial statements in relation
to refinancing, refinanced and restructured transactions,
and requires a brief summary of the policy for refinancing
and restructuring transactions, including an explanation
of the criteria used for assessing the sustainability of the
measures applied. It also requires disclosures in the financial
statements on the detail of loans and advances to customers
by activity, indicating the type of guarantee and the purpose
associated with these transactions, and information relating
to risk concentration by geographical area of operations and
business segment.

> |t also adapts the special accounting register for mortgage
loans to the amendments introduced by the aforementioned
Royal Decree-Law.

In view of the activity carried on by the Confederacion, it did not
record at 31 December 2012 or at 31 December 2011, or during
the years then ended, any construction or property development
financing transactions or any assets acquired in payment of
debts. The only home purchase financing transactions were
those granted to its employees (see Note 22.11).

Bank of Spain Circular 7/2012, of 30 November, to credit
institutions on minimum principal capital requirements.

Bank of Spain Circular 7/2012, of 30 November, to credit
institutions on minimum principal capital requirements was
published on 11 December 2012. Its main objective was to
introduce the amendments established by Law 9/2012, of 14
November, on restructuring and resolution of credit institutions,
to Royal Decree-Law 24/2012, of 31 August, on restructuring
and resolution of credit institutions, which established
amendments to the principal capital requirements that must be
met by consolidated groups of credit institutions and by credit
institutions not forming part of a consolidated group of credit
institutions, which can raise refundable funds from the public
(these requirements had been established by Royal Decree-Law
2/2011, of 18 February, for the strengthening of the financial
sector). In this regard, Law 9/2012, of 14 November, converted
the principal capital requirements -the general requirement of
8% and the 10% requirement for entities with difficult access
to the capital markets and for which wholesale financing is a
significant source of funding- into a single requirement of 9%
that must be met by the aforementioned entities and groups as
from 1 January 2013.

122

= ceca | cecabank



5 CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

annual report 2012

.

Balance sheets and accounts
Confederacién Espafiola de
Cajas de Ahorros (CECA)

Balance sheets
and accounts
Cecabank

This Circular also amends the definition of principal capital in
order to adapt it to the definition used by the European Banking
Authority, with regard to the eligible components and the
applicable deductions, in accordance with its Recommendation
EBA/REC/2011/1. To this end, this Circular details the eligible
instruments to be included in the definition of principal
capital, and defines the way in which they must be calculated,
the requirements for their issuance and, in particular, the
requirements for mandatorily convertible debt instruments.

It also determines how risk-weighted exposures can be adjusted
to ensure that the capital requirement for each risk exposure does
not exceed the value of the exposure itself and that there is con-
sistency between the value of the exposures and the components
of principal capital.

Note 1.8 above contains information on the Group’s principal
capital requirements.
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2. Accounting policies and measurement
bases

The accounting policies and measurement bases applied in
preparing the Confederacién’s financial statements for 2012
were as follows:

2.1. Investments
2.1.1. Subsidiaries

“Subsidiaries” are defined as entities over which the Confederaciéon
has the capacity to exercise control; control is, in general but
not exclusively, presumed to exist when the Confederacién
owns directly or indirectly half or more of the voting power of
the investee or, even if this percentage is lower or zero, when
there are other circumstances or agreements that give the
Confederacién control.
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The investments in Group companies were recognized in these
financial statements under “Investments - Subsidiaries” in the
balance sheet and were measured at acquisition cost, net of any
impairment losses on these investments, which are estimated
and recognized, if any, as described in Note 2.3.4.

Dividends accrued in the year on these investments are recognized
under “Income from Equity Instruments” in the income statement.

In application of the criteria indicated above, the Confederacién
considers Cecabank, S.A., in which it holds an ownership interest
of 89% ofits share capital at 31 December 2012, as a subsidiary
of the Group of which it is the head.

Caja Activa, S.A. and CEA Trade Services Limited, in which it held
ownership interests of 99.99% and 100%, respectively at 31
December 2011, were spun off to Cecabank, S.A. as part of the
spin-off process performed in 2012 (see Note 1.1).

Appendix | to these notes to the financial statements contains
significant information on these entities.

2.1.2. Jointly controlled entities

“Jointly controlled entities” are deemed to be ventures that
are not subsidiaries but which are jointly controlled by the
Confederacién and by one or more other entities, either
individually or in conjunction with the other entities of the group
to which they belong.

Interests in jointly controlled entities are presented in these finan-
cial statements recorded under the heading “Investments - Joint-
ly controlled entities” of the balance sheet and valued at cost of
acquisition, net of any impairment that they may have suffered,
which are estimated and recorded in appropriate, as explained in
Note 2.3.4.

Dividends accrued in the year on these investments are recognized
under “Income from Equity Instruments” in the income statement.

At 31 December 2012 and 2011, in accordance with the
aforementioned rules, only Ahorro y Titulizacion, Sociedad
Gestora de Fondos de Titulizacion, S.A., in which the Confederacion
owned a 50% holding in 2012 and 2011, was considered to be a
jointly controlled entity. Appendix Il to these notes to the financial
statements contains significant information on this entity, as part
of the spin-off process performed in 2012 this ownership interest
were spun off to Cecabank, S.A. (see Note 1.1).
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2.1.3. Associates

“Associates” are defined as companies over which the
Confederacién is in a position to exercise significant influence,
but not control or joint control. Significant influence generally
exists when the Confederacién holds -directly or indirectly- 20%
or more of the voting power of the investee.

Investments in associates, if there are any, are recognized under
“Non-Current Assets Held for Sale - Equity Instruments” in the
balance sheet and are measured by it acquisition price minus
the impairments they may have suffered or that are estimated
and registered, in accordance with Note 2.3.4.

At 31 December 2012 and 2011, in accordance with the
aforementioned criteria, the Confederacion did not hold any
ownership interests in companies considered to be associates.

At 31 December 2012 and 2011, the Confederacion owned 20%
of the share capital of Tevea International, S.A. (formerly, Euro -
Tevea S.A). This investee was neither at 2011 nor 2012 year-

Balance sheets
and accounts
CECA Group

end classified as an associate, as although the Confederacion
owns more than 20% of its voting rights, it does not exercise
significant influence over it. As a result, this investment is
recognized in the financial statements under “Available-for-Sale
Financial Assets - Other Equity Instruments” in the balance
sheet at those dates and is measured at cost, in accordance with
the criteria explained in Note 2.2.4.

At 31 December 2012, the Confederacion owns 22.49% of the
share capital of Eufiserv Payments, S.C.R.L. (31 December 2011:
22.49%). At 31 December 2012 and 2011 this investment was
not considered an associate since, in spite of owning 22.49% of
the voting power; the Confederacién does not exercise significant
influence over this company. Therefore, this investment is
recognized in these financial statements under “Available-for-
Sale Financial Assets - Equity Instruments” in the balance sheet
at that date and 1s measured at cost in accordance with the
criteria explained in Note 2.2.4.

As part of the spin-off process performed in 2012, these
investments were spun off to Cecabank, S.A. (see Note 1.1).
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2.2. Financial instruments - Initial recognition,
derecognition, definitions of fair value and
amortized cost and classification categories and
measurement of financial assets and liabilities

2.2.1. Initial recognition of financial instruments

Financial instruments are initially recognized in the balance
sheet when the Confederacién becomes a party to the contract
originating them in accordance with the terms and conditions
thereof. Specifically, debt instruments, such as loans and cash
deposits, are recognized from the date on which the legal right
to receive or the legal obligation to pay cash arises. Derivative
financial instruments are generally recognized from the trade date.

A regular way purchase or sale of financial assets, defined as one
in which the parties’ reciprocal obligations must be discharged
within a time frame established by regulation or convention
in the marketplace and that may not be settled net, such as
stock market and forward currency purchase and sale contracts,
Is recognized on the date from which the rewards, risks, rights
and duties attaching to all owners are for the purchaser, which,
depending on the type of financial asset purchased or sold,

may be the trade date or the settlement or delivery date. In
particular, transactions performed in the spot currency market
are recognized on the settlement date; equity instruments
traded in Spanish secondary securities markets are recognized
on the trade date and debt instruments traded in these markets
are recognized on the settlement date.

2.2.2. Derecognition of financial instruments
A financial asset i1s derecognized when:

> The contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial
asset expire; or

> The financial asset is transferred and substantially all its
risks and rewards are transferred or, although these are
not substantially transferred or retained, control over the
financial asset is transferred (see Note 2.4).

Also, a financial liability is derecognized when the obligations it
generates have been extinguished or when it is purchased by
the Confederacion, with the intention either to re-sell it or to
cancel it.
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2.2.3. Fair value and amortized cost of financial
instruments

The fair value of a financial instrument on a given date is taken to
be the amount for which it could be bought or sold on that date
by two knowledgeable parties in an arm'’s length transaction.
The most objective and common reference for the fair value of
a financial instrument is the price that would be paid for it on
an organized, transparent and deep market (“quoted price” or
“market price”).

If there 1s no market price for a given financial instrument, its
fair value is estimated on the basis of the price established in
recent transactions involving similar instruments and, in the
absence thereof, of valuation techniques commonly used by the
financial community, taking into account the specific features
of the instrument to be measured and, particularly, the various
types of risk associated with it.

Specifically, the fair value of financial derivatives included in
the portfolios of financial assets or liabilities held for trading
which are traded in organized, transparent and deep markets
i1s deemed to be their daily quoted price and if, for exceptional
reasons, the quoted price at a given date cannot be determined,
these financial derivatives are measured using methods similar
to those used to measure OTC derivatives.

The fair value of OTC derivatives or derivatives traded in scantly
deep or transparent organized markets is taken to be the sum
of the future cash flows arising from the instrument, discounted
to present value at the date of measurement (“present value”
or “theoretical close”) using valuation techniques recognized by
the financial markets: “net present value” (NPV), option pricing
models, etc.

Amortized cost is understood to be the acquisition cost of a
financial asset or liability plus or minus, as appropriate, the principal
and interest repayments and the cumulative amortization (taken
to the income statement), calculated using the effective interest
method, of the difference between the initial cost and the maturity
amount of such financial instruments. In the case of financial
assets, amortized cost furthermore includes any reductions for
impairment or uncollectibility.

At 31 December 2011, the Group had entered into various reverse
repurchase agreements (see Note 6.2.1) and upon maturity of
these agreements the Group had to return title to the securities
used as collateral to the borrower. At 31 December 2011, the
fair value of the securities received as collateral in these reverse
repurchase agreements did not differ significantly from their
carrying amount.
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The effective interest rate is the discount rate that exactly
matches the initial amount of a financial instrument to the
present value of all its estimated cash flows of all kinds during
its remaining life, disregarding future losses from credit risk.
For fixed rate financial instruments, the effective interest rate
coincides with the contractual interest rate established on the
acquisition or arrangement date adjusted, where applicable,
for the fees, premiums, discounts and transaction costs that,
pursuant to the applicable standards, must be included in the
calculation of the effective interest rate. In the case of floating rate
financial instruments, the effective interest rate is determined
using a method similar to that for fixed rate transactions and is
recalculated on each contractual interest reset date, taking into
account any changes in the future cash flows.
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2.2.4. Classification and measurement of financial assets
and liabilities

Financial instruments are classified in the Confederaciéon ‘s
balance sheet as follows:

> Financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit
orloss: pursuant to current legislation, this category includes
financial instruments classified as held for trading and other
financial assets and liabilities classified at fair value through
profit or loss:

* Financial assets held for trading include those acquired for
the purpose of selling them in the near term or those which
are part of a portfolio of identified financial instruments that
are managed together and for which there is evidence of a
recent pattern of short-term profit taking and derivatives
not designated as hedging instruments, including those
separated from hybrid financial instruments pursuant to
the applicable standards.
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* Financial liabilities held for trading include those that have
been issued with an intention to repurchase them in the
near term or that form part of a portfolio of identified
financial instruments that are managed together and for
which there is evidence of a recent pattern of short-term
profit taking; short positions arising from sales of financial
assets acquired under non-optional resale agreements
or borrowed securities, and financial derivatives not
designated as hedging instruments, including those
separated from hybrid financial instruments pursuant to
the applicable standards.

* Other financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
are financial assets designated as such from their initial
recognition, whose fair value may be estimated reliably and
that meet any of the following requirements:

* In the case of hybrid financial instruments for which it
Is compulsory to separate the embedded derivative(s)
from the host contract, the fair value of the embedded
derivative(s) cannot be estimated reliably.

Balance sheets
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* In the case of hybrid financial instruments for which it is

mandatory to separate the embedded derivative(s), the
Confederacion elected from their initial recognition to
classify the entire hybrid financial instrument under this
category, since the requirements established by current
regulations were met in the sense that the embedded
derivative(s) significantly alter the cash flows that the
host contract would have had if it had been considered
separately from the embedded derivative(s) and that there
is an obligation to separate for accounting purposes the
embedded derivative(s) from the host contract.

As aresultofclassifying a financial assetin this category, more
relevant information is obtained because such designation
eliminates or significantly reduces inconsistencies in
recognition or measurement (also known as accounting
mismatches) that would otherwise arise from measuring
assets or liabilities or recognizing the related gains or losses
on different bases or because the gain value basis reflects
management’s investment management or assessment
strategy, as established in the applicable regulations. Note
6 contains details on the financial instruments classified in
this category.
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Other financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are *As a result of classifying a financial liability in this
financial liabilities designated as such from their initial recog- category, more relevant information is obtained because
nition, whose fair value may be estimated reliably and that such designation eliminates or significantly reduces
meet any of the following requirements: inconsistencies in recognition or measurement (also known

as accounting mismatches) that would otherwise arise from
measuring assets or liabilities or recognizing the related
gains or losses on different bases or because the fair value
basis reflects management’s investment management
or assessment strategy, as established in the applicable

* In the case of hybrid financial instruments for which it is regulations. Note 6 contains details on the financial
mandatory to separate the embedded derivative(s), the instruments classified in this category.
Confederaciéon elected from their initial recognition, to
classify the entire hybrid financial instrument under this
category, since the requirements established by current
regulations were met in the sense that the embedded
derivative(s) significantly alter the cash flows that the
host contract would have had if it had been considered
separately from the embedded derivative(s) and that there
1s an obligation to separate for accounting purposes the
embedded derivative(s) from the host contract.

* In the case of hybrid financial instruments for which it is
compulsory to separate the embedded derivative(s) from the
host contract, the fair value of the embedded derivative(s)
cannot be estimated reliably.

Only financial instruments which, from their initial recognition,
would have been classified as financial assets and liabilities at
fair value through profit or loss are included in this category.
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Financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss are
initially measured at fair value. Subsequent to acquisition,
financial instruments classified in this category continue to be
measured at fair value at the reporting date and any changes in
the fair value are recognized under “Gains/Losses on Financial
Assets and Liabilities (Net)” in the income statement, except
for the fair value changes due to accrued returns on financial
instruments other than trading derivatives, which are recognized
under “Interest and Similar Income”, “Interest Expense and Similar
Charges” or “Income from Equity Instruments” in the income
statement, depending on their nature. The accrued returns on
debt instruments included in this category are calculated using

the effective interest method.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, financial derivatives that have as
their underlyings equity instruments whose fair value cannot be
determined in a sufficiently objective manner and are settled by
delivery of those instruments are measured, where appropriate,
at cost.
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> Loans and receivables: pursuant to current legislation, this
category includes unquoted debt instruments, financing
granted to third parties in connection with ordinary lending
activities carried out by the Confederacién (other than those
classified at fair value through profit or loss) and receivables
from users of services.

The financial assets included in this category are initially
measured at fair value adjusted by the amount of the
fees and commissions and transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition or arrangement of
the financial asset and which, in accordance with Circular
4/2004, must be allocated to the income statement by the
effective interest method through maturity. Subsequent to
acquisition, assets included in this category are measured
at amortized cost.

Assets acquired at a discount are measured at the cash
amount paid and the difference between their repayment
value and the amount paid is recognized as finance income
using the effective interest method during the remaining
term to maturity.
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The Confederacién generally intends to hold the loans and
credits included in this category granted by it until their final
maturity and, therefore, they are presented in the balance
sheet at their amortized cost.

Theinterest accrued onthese assets, whichis calculated using
the effective interest method, is recognized under “Interest
and Similar Income” in the income statement. Exchange
differences on assets included in this portfolio denominated
in currencies other than the euro are recognized as set forth
in Note 2.7 Any impairment losses on these assets are
recognized as explained in Note 2.3.

> Available-for-sale financial assets: this category includes
debt instruments not classified as held-to-maturity
investments, as loans and receivables or as financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss and equity instruments
owned by the Confederacién relating to entities other than
subsidiaries, jointly controlled entities or associates that are
not classified at fair value through profit or loss.

Balance sheets
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The instruments included in this category are initially
recognized at fair value adjusted by the amount of the
transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition of the financial asset, which are recognized in the
income statement by the effective interest method, except
for those relating to financial assets with no fixed maturity,
which are recognized in the income statement when the
assets become impaired or are derecognized. Subsequent
to acquisition, financial assets included in this category are
measured at fair value at each reporting date.

However, equity instruments whose fair value cannot be
determined in a sufficiently objective manner are measured
in these financial statements at cost, net of any impairment
loss, calculated as detailed in Note 2.3.
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Changes in the fair value of available-for-sale financial assets
relating to accrued interest or dividends are recognized under
“Interest and Similar Income” (calculated using the effective
interest method) and “Income from Equity Instruments” in
the income statement, respectively. Any impairment losses
on these instruments are recognized as described in Note
2.3. Exchange differences on financial assets denominated in
currencies other than the euro are recognized as explained
in Note 2.7.

Other changes in the fair value of available-for-sale financial
assets from the acquisition date are recognized in equity
under “Valuation Adjustments - Available-for-Sale Financial
Assets” until the financial asset is derecognized, when the
balance recorded under this item is recognized under “Gains/
Losses on Financial Assets and Liabilities (net)” in the income
statement, or in the case of equity instruments considered
to be strategic investments for the Confederacién, they are
recognized under “Gains/(Losses) on Non-Current Assets
Held for Sale not Classified as Discontinued Operations”.
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> Held-to-maturity investments: pursuant to current

legislation, this category includes debt instruments traded
on organized markets with fixed maturity and with fixed or
determinable cash flows that, from inception and at any
subsequent date, are held with the positive intention and
financial ability to hold to maturity.

Debtinstrumentsincludedinthiscategory areinitially measured
at fair value adjusted by the amount of the transaction costs
that are directly attributable to the acquisition of the financial
asset, which are recognized in the income statement by the
effective interest method as defined in Circular 4/2004. They
are subsequently measured at amortized cost calculated using
the effective interest method.

The interest accrued on these securities, which is calculated
using the effective interest method, is recognized under
“Interest and Similar Income” in the income statement.
Exchange differences on assets included in this portfolio
denominated in currencies other than the euro are recognized
as set forth in Note 2.7. Any impairment losses on these
securities are recognized as explained in Note 2.3.
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At 31 December 2012 and 2011 and throughout those years
the Confederacién did not have any financial instruments
classified in this category.

> Financial liabilities at amortized cost: this category includes
the Confederacién’s financial liabilities not included in any
other category.

The financial liabilities included in this category are initially
measured at fair value adjusted by the amount of the
transaction costs that are directly attributable to the issue
or arrangement of the financial liability, which are recognized
in the income statement by the effective interest method (as
defined by Bank of Spain Circular 4/2004) through maturity.

Subsequently, these financial liabilities are measured at
amortized cost calculated using the effective interest method
as defined in Bank of Spain Circular 4/2004.

The interest accrued on these liabilities, which is calculated
using the effective interest method, is recognized under
“Interest Expense and Similar Charges” in the income
statement. Exchange differences on securities included in
this category denominated in currencies other than the euro
are recognized as set forth in Note 2.7.
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2.3. Impairment of financial assets

A financial asset is considered to be impaired -and therefore its
carrying amount is adjusted to reflect the effect of impairment-
when there is objective evidence that events have occurred which:

> |In the case of debt instruments (loans and debt securities),
give rise to an adverse impact on the future cash flows that
were estimated at the transaction date.

> In the case of equity instruments, mean that their carrying
amount may not be fully recovered.

As a general rule, the carrying amount of impaired financial
instruments is adjusted with a charge to the income statement
for the year in which the impairment becomes evident, and the
reversal, if any, of previously recognized impairment losses is
recognised in the income statement for the year in which the
impairment is reversed or reduced, with the exception of any
recovery of previously recognised impairment losses relating
to equity instruments classified as available for sale, which
are not recognised in the income statement but rather in the
balance sheet, under “Valuation Adjustments - Available-for-
Sale Financial Assets”.
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When the recovery of any recognized amount is considered
unlikely, the amount is written off (“written-off asset”), without
prejudice to any actions that the Confederacién may initiate to
seek collection until their contractual rights are extinguished
due to expiry of the statute-of-limitations period, forgiveness or
any other cause.

The criteria applied by the Confederacidon to determine possible
impairment losses in each of the various financial instrument
categories and the method used to recognize such impairment
losses are as follows:

2.3.1. Debt instruments carried at amortized cost

The amount of an impairment loss incurred on a debt instrument
carried at amortized cost is equal to the positive difference
between its carrying amount and the present value of its
estimated future cash flows. The market value of quoted debt
instruments 1s deemed to be a reliable estimate of the present
value of their future cash flows.

In estimating the future cash flows of debt instruments the
following factors are taken into account:

> All the amounts that are expected to be obtained over the
remaining life of the instrument, including, where appropriate,
those which may result from the collateral provided for the
instrument (less the costs for obtaining and subsequently
selling the collateral).

> The various types of risk to which each instrument is subject;
and

> The circumstances in which collections will foreseeably be
made.

These cash flows are subsequently discounted using the
instrument’s effective interest rate (if its contractual rate is fixed) or
the effective contractual rate at the discount date (if it is variable).
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Specifically as regards impairment losses resulting from
materialization of the insolvency risk of the obligors (credit risk),
a debt instrument is impaired due to insolvency:

> When there is evidence of a deterioration of the obligor’s
ability to pay, either because it is in arrears or for other
reasons, and/or;

> When country risk materializes: country risk is defined as the
risk that is associated with debtors resident in a given country
due to circumstances other than normal commercial risk.

Impairment losses on these assets resulting from materialization
of the insolvency risk of the obligors (credit risk) are assessed as
follows:

> Individually, for all significant debt instruments and for
instruments which, although not material, are not susceptible
to being classified in homogeneous groups of instruments
with similar risk characteristics: instrument type, debtor’s
sector and geographical location, type of guarantee or
collateral, age of past-due amounts receivable, etc.

> Collectively: the Confederacion classifies transactions on
the basis of the nature of the obligors, the conditions of
the countries in which they reside, transaction status and
type of collateral or guarantee, age of past-due amounts,
etc. For each risk group it establishes the impairment losses
("identified losses”), which must be recognized in the financial
statements, applying the parameters established by the
Bank of Spain. Impairment losses are estimated taking into
account the possibility of collection of the interest accrued
on these impaired assets.

> In addition, the Confederacion recognizes an overall
impairment loss on risks in relation to which specific l1osses
have not been identified. This loss is quantified by application
of the parameters established by the Bank of Spain based
on experience and on the information available to it on the
Spanish banking industry.
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The amount of the impairment losses on debt instruments at
amortized cost or, as the case may be, their subsequent reversal,
estimated in accordance with the criteria described above, are
recognized under “Impairment Losses on Financial Assets (net)
- Loans and Receivables” and “Impairment Losses on Financial
Assets (net) - Other Financial Assets Not Measured at Fair Value
Through Profit or Loss”, depending on the category of financial
instrument in which the debt instruments are classified (see
Note 2.2).

Pursuant to Circular 4/2004, the Confederacién suspends
interest accrual for debt instruments individually classified
as impaired, and for those for which impairment losses have
been assessed collectively (transactions with identified losses)
because they have payments more than three months past due.

2.3.2. Debt instruments classified as available for sale

The amount of the impairment losses on debt instruments
included in the available-for-sale financial asset portfolio is the
positive difference between their acquisition cost (net of any
principal repayment or amortization) and their fair value less any
impairment loss previously recognized in the income statement.

In the case of impairment losses arising due to the insolvency
of the issuer of the debt instruments classified as available for
sale, the procedure followed by the Confederacién for calculating
such losses is the same as the method used for debt instruments
carried at amortized cost explained in section 2.3.1 above.

When there is objective evidence that the losses arising on
measurement of these assets are due to impairment, they
are removed from the equity item “Valuation Adjustments -
Available-for-Sale Financial Assets” and are recognized, for their
cumulative amount, in the income statement under “Impairment
Losses (net) - Other Financial Instruments Not Measured at Fair
Value Through Profit or Loss”. If all or part of the impairment
losses are subsequently reversed, the reversed amount would
be recognized in the income statement for the period in which
the reversal occurred under “Impairment Losses on Financial
Assets (net) - Other Financial Assets Not Measured at Fair Value
Through Profit or Loss”.
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Similarly, the impairment losses arising on measurement of debt
instruments classified as “non-current assets held for sale” which
are recognized in the Confederacién’s equity are considered to be
realized and, therefore, are recognized in the d income statement
when the assets are classified as “non-current assets held for sale”.

2.3.3. Equity instruments classified as available for sale

The impairment losses on equity instruments included in the
available-for-sale financial asset portfolio are the positive
difference between their acquisition cost (net of any principal
repayment or amortization) and their fair value less any
impairment loss previously recognized in the income statement.

The criteria for recognizing impairment losses on equity
instruments classified as available for sale are similar to those for
debt instruments classified as available for sale (as explained in
Note 2.3.2), with the exception that any reversal of these losses
1s recognized in equity under “Valuation Adjustments - Available-
for-Sale Financial Assets” rather than in the income statement.
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2.3.4. Investments in Group companies, jointly controlled
entities and associates

The impairment losses on investments in Group companies,
jointly controlled entities and associates which, for the purpose
of preparation of these financial statements are not deemed
to be financial instruments, are estimated and recognised as
follows: when, pursuant to Circular 4/2004, there is evidence of
impairment of these investments, the amount of the impairment
loss 1s estimated as the negative difference between their
recoverable amount (calculated as the higher of fair value of
the investment less costs to sell and value in use; value in use
is defined as the present value of the cash flows expected to
be received from the investment in the form of dividends and
the cash flows relating to its sale or other disposal) and their
carrying amount. Impairment losses on these investments
and possible reversals of impairment losses are charged and
credited, respectively, to “Impairment Losses on Other Assets
(Net) - Other Assets” in the income statement. 2.3.5. Equity
instruments carried at cost.
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2.3.5. Equity instruments carried at cost 2.4. Transfers and derecognition of financial assets

The amount of the impairment losses on equity instruments and liabilities

carried at cost is the positive difference between their carrying  The accounting treatment of transfers of financial assets depends
amount and the present value of the expected future cash flows on the extent to which the risks and rewards associated with the
discounted at the market rate of return for similar securities. transferred assets are transferred to third parties:

Impairment losses are recognized in the income statement for > If the Confederacién transfers substantially all the risks
the period in which they arise as a direct reduction of the cost of and rewards of the transferred assets to third parties
the instrument. These losses can only be reversed subsequently —unconditional sale of financial assets sale of financial
if the related assets are sold, assets with a repurchase agreement at its fair value at the

repurchase date, sale of financial assets with a purchased call
option or written put option that is deeply out of the money,
securitization of assets in which the transferor does not retain
a subordinated debt or grant any credit enhancement to new
holders and other similar cases-, the transferred financial
asset is derecognized and any rights or obligations retained
or created in the transfer are recognized simultaneously.
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Itis considered that the Confederacidn transfers substantially
all the risks and rewards if the transferred risks and rewards
represent most of the total risks and rewards of the
transferred assets.

> If the Confederacién retains substantially all the risks and
rewards associated with the transferred financial asset-sale
of financial assets under an agreement to repurchase them
at a fixed price or at the sale price plus interest, a securities
lending agreement in which the borrower undertakes to
return the same or similar assets, securitization of financial
assets in which a subordinated debt or another type of
credit enhancement is retained that absorbs substantially
all the expected credit losses on the securitized assets, and
other similar cases-, the transferred financial asset is not
derecognized and continues to be measured by the same
criteria as those used before the transfer. However, the
following items are recognized, without offsetting:

* An associated financial liability, for an amount equal to
the consideration received; this liability is subsequently
measured at amortized cost, or, if the aforementioned
requirements for classification of other financial liabilities
at fair value through profit or loss are met, at fair value, in
accordance with the aforementioned criteria for this type
of financial liability. (See Note 2.2.4).
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* The income from the transferred financial asset not
derecognized and any expense incurred on the new
financial liability.

> If the Confederacion neither transfers nor retains substantially

all the risks and rewards associated with the transferred
financial asset-sale of financial assets with a purchased call
option or written put option that is not deeply in or out of
the money, securitization of financial assets in which the
transferor retains a subordinated debt or another type of
credit enhancement for a portion of the transferred asset, and
other similar cases- the following distinction is made:

* If the transferor does not retain control, the transferred
financial asset is derecognized and any right or obligation
retained or created in the transfer is recognized.

¢ If the transferor retains control, it continues to recognize the
transferred financial asset in the balance sheet for an amount
equal to its exposure to changes in value and recognizes a
financial liability associated with the transferred financial
asset. The net carrying amount of the transferred asset and
the associated liability is the amortized cost of the rights and
obligations retained, if the transferred asset is measured at
amortized cost, or the fair value of the rights and obligations
retained, if the transferred asset is measured at fair value.
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Accordingly, financial assets are only derecognized when the
cash flows they generate have been extinguished or when
substantially all the significant inherent risks and rewards have
been transferred to third parties.

Notes 28.2 and 28.5 contain a summary ofthe main circumstances
of the principal transfers of assets outstanding at 2012 and 2011
year-end which did not lead to the derecognition of the related
assets (securities lending transactions and sales of asset under
non-optional repurchase agreements). After the spin-off process
performed in 2012, (see Note 1.1), the Confederaciéon did not
carry out any asset transfer transaction as described above.

Balance sheets
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2.5. Reclassification between financial instrument
portfolios

Reclassifications between financial instrument portfolios can
only be made, where appropriate, as follows:

a) Except in the circumstances indicated in paragraph d)
below, financial instruments classified as “at fair value
through profit or loss” cannot be reclassified into or out
of this financial instrument category once they have been
acquired, issued or assumed.

b) If, as a result of a change in intention or financial ability of
an entity, it is no longer appropriate to classify a financial
asset as held to maturity, it s reclassified into the “available-
for-sale financial assets” category. In this case, the same
treatment shall be applied to all the financial instruments
classified as held-to-maturity investments, unless the
reclassification is made in any of the circumstances
permitted under the applicable regulations (sales very close
to maturity, substantially all of the financial asset’s original
principal has been collected, etc.).
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In 2012 and 2011, the Confederacién did not hold any
securities classified as held-to-maturity investments and,
therefore, it did not perform any reclassifications of the type
described in the preceding paragraph.
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d) With the entry into force of Circular 6/2008, from July 1st of

2008, a non-derivative financial asset may be reclassified
out of the held-for-trading category if it is no longer held for
the purpose of selling or repurchasing it in the near term,

: . L , , : rovided that one of the following circumstances occurs:
0) Ifthereis a changeinthe Confederacion’sintention or financial . <

ability, or ifthe two penalty financial years established by the a. In rare or exceptional circumstances, unless the assets
regulations applicable to the sale of financial assets classified could have been included in the loans and receivables
in the held-to-maturity investment category (see paragraph category. For these purposes, rare and exceptional
b) above) have passed, the financial assets (debt instruments) circumstances are those arising from a particular event,
included in the “available-for-sale financial assets” category which is unusual and highly unlikely to recur in the
can be reclassified into the “held-to-maturity investments” foreseeable future.

category. In this case, the fair value of these financial
instruments on the date of reclassification becomes their new
amortized cost and the difference between this amount and
the redemption value is allocated to the income statement
over the remaining life of the instrument using the effective
interest method.

b. When the entity has the intention and financial ability to
hold the financial asset for the foreseeable future or until
maturity, provided that the asset had met the definition
of loans and receivables at initial recognition.

In these circumstances, the financial asset is reclassified at its
fair value on the date of reclassification, any gain or loss already
recognized in profit or loss is not reversed, and this fair value
becomes its amortized cost. The financial assets so reclassified can
In no case be reclassified again into the held-for-trading categoruy.

No reclassifications of the type described in the preceding
paragraph were made in 2012 or 2011.

No reclassifications of the type described in the preceding
paragraph were made during 2012 and 2011.
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2.6. Hedge accounting and mitigation of risk

The Confederacion uses financial derivatives as part of its strategy
to reduce its exposure to interest rate, foreign currency and other
risks. When these transactions meet the requirements with cur-
rent regulations, they qualify for hedge accounting.

When the Confederacién designates a transaction as a hedge it
does so upon initial recognition of the transactions or instruments
included in the hedge, and the hedging transaction is document-
ed appropriately. The hedge accounting documentation includes
identification of the hedged item(s) and the hedging instrument(s),
the nature of the risk to be hedged and the criteria or methods
used by the Confederacién to assess the effectiveness of the hedge
over its entire life, taking into account the risk to be hedged.

The Confederacién only applies hedge accounting for hedges that
are considered highly effective over their entire lives. A hedge is
considered to be highly effective if, during its expected life, the
changes in fair value or cash flows of the hedged item that are
attributable to the risk hedged in the hedging of the financial
instrument(s) are almost fully offset by changes in the fair value or
cash flows, as appropriate, of the hedging instrument(s).

To measure the effectiveness of hedges defined as such, the
Confederacion analyses whether, from the beginning to the end
of the term defined for the hedge, the Confederacidn can expect,
prospectively, that the changes in fair value or cash flows of the
hedged item that are attributable to the hedged risk will be
almost fully offset by changes in the fair value or cash flows, as
appropriate, of the hedging instrument and, retrospectively, that
the actual results of the hedge are within a range of 809% to 125%
of the results of the hedged item.

In 2011 the Confederacién had recognised various transactions
qualifying for hedge accounting, in accordance with the criteria
indicated above, which, pursuant to current legislation, are
considered fair value hedges, since their purpose is protect the
fair value of certain balance sheet positions that can change in
the event of interest rate fluctuations (see Note 9). As a result
of the spin-off process performed in 2012 (see Note 1.1), these
transactions were spun off to Cecabank, S.A.

In fair value hedges, the changes in the fair value of the derivative
and of the hedged item attributable to the hedged risk are
recognised directly under “Gains (Losses) on Financial Assets and
Liabilities (Net)” in the income statement (see Note 34).
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When the hedged item is measured at amortised cost, its carrying
amount is adjusted by the amount of the gain or loss recognised
in the income statement as a result of the hedge. Once this item
ceases to be hedged against the changes in its fair value, the
amount of this adjustment is amortised to profit or loss using
the effective interest rate recalculated as at the date of hedge
discontinuation. The adjustment must be fully amortised at the
date of maturity of the hedged item.

In cash flow hedges, the gains or losses attributable to the portion
of the hedging instruments qualifying as an effective hedge are
recognised temporarily in equity under “Valuation Adjustments
- Cash Flow Hedges” and are taken to the income statement
in the years in which the designated hedged items affect the
income statement. Financial instruments hedged in this type of
hedging transaction are recognised as explained in Note 2.2, with
no change being made in the recognition criteria due to their
consideration as hedged items. At 31 December 2012 and 2011,
and throughout those years, there were no transactions meeting
the requirements for hedge accounting in accordance with the
criteria indicated above.

The Confederacion discontinues hedge accounting when the
hedging instrument expires or is sold, when the hedge no longer
meets the requirements for hedge accounting or the designation
as a hedge is revoked.

2.7. Foreign currency transactions
2.7.1. Functional currency

The functional and reporting currency of the Confederacion is
the euro. Therefore, all balances and transactions denominated
in currencies other than the euro are deemed to be denominated
in “foreign currency”.

Following the spin-off process performed in 2012, there were no
balances recognised in foreign currency at 31 December 2012.

The detail, by currency and item, of the equivalent value in
thousands of euros of the main asset and liability balances
denominated in foreign currencies in the balance sheets at 31
December 2011 is as follows:
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Nature of Foreign
Currency Balances:

Balances in US dollars
Cash and balances with central banks
Financial assets and liabilities held for trading
Loans and receivables
Financial liabilities at amortized cost
Other financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss
Other

Balances in Japanese yen
Cash and balances with central banks
Loans and receivables
Financial liabilities at amortized cost

Balances in pounds sterling
Cash and balances with central banks
Financial assets and liabilities held for trading
Available-for-sale financial assets
Loans and receivables
Tangible assets
Financial liabilities at amortized cost
Other

EQUIVALENT VALUE IN THOUSANDS OF EUROS (*)

2012 2011

Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities

- - 20,160 -
- - 360,005 399,696
- - 130,036 -
- - - 819,097
- - - 930,794
- - 417 417
- - 964 -
- - 77,639 -
- - - 3,257
- - 13,323 -
- - 3,387 1,433
- - 61,933 -
- - - 180,312
- - 100 356

(*) Equivalent value calculated by applying the exchange rates at 31 December 2012 and 2011, respectively.

Page 1 of 2
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Nature of Foreign EQUIVALENT VALUE IN THOUSANDS OF EUROS (*) Page 2 of 2
Currency Balances: 2012 2011
Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities
Balances in Swiss francs
Cash and balances with central banks - - 1,992 -
Loans and receivables - - 90,752 -
Financial liabilities at amortized cost - 19,924

92,744 19,924

Balances in Norwegian krone

Cash and balances with central banks = = 985 =
Loans and receivables = = 3,280 =
Financial liabilities at amortized cost = 3777

4,265 3,777

Balances in Swedish krone

Cash and balances with central banks - - 550 -
Loans and receivables - - 3,793 -
Financial liabilities at amortized cost - - - 2,757
Other

4,343 2,757

Balances in other currencies

Cash and balances with central banks - - 8,954 -
Loans and receivables = = 19,822 =
Financial liabilities at amortized cost - - - 17438
Other

Total balances denominated in foreign currencies - 798,092 2,379,258

(*) Equivalent value calculated by applying the exchange rates at 31 December 2012 and 2011, respectively.
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In addition to the currency positions recognized in the balance 1. Monetary assets and liabilities are translated at the closing
sheets at 31 December 2011 shown in the preceding table, rate, which is taken to be the average spot exchange rate at
the Confederacion recognized various currency derivatives and the date of the financial statements.

forward foreign currency contracts which are used to manage

the exchange rate risk to which it is exposed and which should

be considered together with the balance sheet positions for a

correct understanding of the Confederacién’s exposure to such

risks (see Note 23). 3.Non-monetary items measured at fair value are translated
to the functional currency at the exchange rate at the date
when the fair value was determined.

2.Non-monetary items measured at historical cost are
translated to the functional currency at the exchange rate
at the date of acquisition.

2.7.2. Translation of foreign currency balances
4. Income and expenses are translated at the exchange rate

Foreign currency transactions performed by Confederacién are prevailing at the transaction date.
initially recognized in the financial statements at the equivalent

value in their functional currencies, translated using the

exchange rates prevailing at the transaction date. Subsequently, 2.7.3. Exchange rates

the following rules are applied:
d PP The exchange rates used by the Confederacion in translating the

foreign currency balances to euros for the purpose of preparing the
financial statements, taking into account the methods mentioned
above, were those published by the European Central Bank.
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2.7.4. Registro de las diferencias de cambio

The exchange differences arising on the translation of foreign
currency balances (using the aforementioned translation methods)
to the functional currency of the Confederacién are generally
recognized at their net amount under “Exchange Differences (net)”
in the income statement, except for exchange differences arising
on financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss, which
are recognized under “Gains/Losses on Financial Assets and
Liabilities (net)” in the income statement, without distinguishing
them from other changes in their fair value.

However, exchange differences arising on non-monetary items
measured at fair value through equity and exchange differences
arising on the translation to euros of the financial statements
which are not denominated in euros are recognized in equity under
“Valuation Adjustments - Exchange Differences” in the balance
sheet until they are realized. Exchange differences recognized in
equity are taken to the income statement when realized.

2.8. Recognition of income and expenses

Themostsignificantaccountingcriteria used by the Confederaciéon
to recognize its income and expenses are summarized as follows:

2.8.1. Interest income, interest expenses, dividends and
similar items

Interest income, interest expenses, dividends and similar items
are generally recognized on an accrual basis using the effective
interest method. Dividends received from other companies, are
recognized as income when the Confederacion’s right to receive
them arises.
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2.8.2. Commissions, fees and similar items

Fee and commission income and expenses that are not to
be included in the calculation of the effective interest rate of
transactions and/or are not included in the acquisition cost of
financial assets or liabilities other than those classified as at
fair value through profit or loss are recognized in the income
statement using criteria that vary according to their nature. The
main criteria are as follows:

> Fee and commission income and expenses relating to the
acquisition of financial assets and liabilities measured at fair
value through profit or loss are recognized in the income
statement when collected or paid.

> Those arising from transactions or services that are
performed over a period of time are recognized in the income
statement over the life of these transactions or services.

> Those relating to services provided in a single act are
recognized in the income statement when the single act is
carried out.
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2.8.3. Non-finance income and expenses

These are recognized for accounting purposes on an accrual
basis.

2.8.4. Deferred collections and payments

These are recognized for accounting purposes at the amount
resulting from discounting the expected cash flows at market
rates.

2.9. Offsetting

Asset and liability balances are offset, i.e. reported in the balance
sheet at their net amount, when, and only when, they arise from
transactions in which a contractual or legal right of set-off exists
and the Confederacion intends to settle them on a net basis, or
to realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.
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2.10. Financial guarantees and provisions for
financial guarantees

“Financial guarantees” are defined as contracts whereby an entity
undertakes to make specific payments on behalf of a third party if
the latter fails to do so, irrespective of the various legal forms they
may have, such as guarantees, irrevocable documentary credits
issued or confirmed by the Confederacién, etc.

In accordance with Bank of Spain Circular 4/2004, the financial
guarantees provided by the Confederacion are treated as
financial instruments.

Financial guarantees, regardless of the guarantor, instrumentation
orothercircumstances, are reviewed periodically so astodetermine
the credit risk to which they are exposed and, if appropriate,
to consider whether a provision is required. The credit risk is
determined by application of criteria similar to those established
for quantifying impairment losses on debt instruments carried at
amortized cost (described in Note 2.3.1 above).
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The provisions for financial guarantees are recognized
under “Provisions - Provisions for Contingent Liabilities and
Commitments” on the liability side of the balance sheet (see
Note 16). These provisions are recognized and reversed with a
charge or credit, respectively, to “Provisions (Net)” in the income
statement.

2.11. Staff costs

As part of the spin-off process performed in 2012 (see Note 1.1),
Cecabank, S.A. succeeded to the Confederacidon and, with effect
from 1 January 2012, was subrogated to all the commitments
that the Confederaciéon held with current and former employees
who, as a result of the spin-off, began to render their services at
Cecabank, S.A.
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2.11.1. Pension obligations

Under the Collective Labour Agreement currently in force, the
Confederacién is required to supplement the social security
benefits accruing to its employees or their beneficiary right
holders in the event of retirement, disability, death of spouse or
death of parent.

The Confederacién’s post-employment obligations to its
employees are deemed to be “defined contribution plans” when
the Confederacion makes pre-determined contributions to a
separate entity and will have no legal or effective obligation to
make further contributions if the separate entity cannot pay the
employee benefits relating to the service rendered in the current
and prior periods. Post-employment obligations that do not
meet the aforementioned conditions are classified as “defined
benefit plans”.

The actuarial gains and losses on the measurement of defined
benefit plans are recognized in the income statement by the
Confederacion in the year in which they arise.
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The Confederacién had set up an external fund known as the
“CECA Employees’ Pension Plan” and had taken out insurance
policies to cover its pension obligations to its employees. The
external fund, in turn, comprised three subplans: a defined
benefit plan (for employees hired by the entity prior to 30
May 1986 who opted not to convert their benefits into defined
contribution benefits and for early retirees) and two defined
contribution retirement benefit subplans (for employees hired
by the entity prior to 30 May 1986 who opted to convert their
benefits into defined contribution benefits, as described below,
and for employees hired by the entity after 29 May 1986,
respectively). The pension plan also included the obligations to
the beneficiaries of the benefits.

In 2003 the defined benefit pension subplan was converted into
a defined contribution scheme for most current employees for
whom this possibility was envisaged in the Collective Company
Agreement on Early Retirement and Supplementary Employee
Welfare Benefits (“the Agreement”) entered into by the entity and
representatives of its Workers’” Committee and Workplace Trade
Union Branch on 2 April 2001.
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In 2011, the Control Committee of the CECA Employees’ Pension
Plan, pursuant to the obligations previously acquired, resolved to
take out an insurance policy to cover the supplementary vested
pension income payable to the beneficiaries of the pension plan.
The policy is in line with the benefits payable to the group of ben-
eficiaries of the pension plan in order to ensure these obligations
are met.

In 2011, the accrued expense for the contributions to be made to
the external pension fund, relating to defined contribution plans,
amounted to EUR 772 thousand, which are recognized under
“Administrative Expenses - Staff Costs” in the income statement
(see Note 36).

Pursuant to the aforementioned Agreement, in 2003 the
Confederacién decided toinsure contributions to the pension plan
in excess of the current legal and tax ceilings by arranging two
insurance policies with Caja de Seguros Reunidos, Compafiia de
Seguros y Reaseguros, S.A. (“Caser”). In 2004 the Confederacion
converted one of these policies into a single-premium policy.
The premiums on these policies and on other insurance policies
covering pension obligations and other obligations to employees
totaled EUR 4,203 thousand in 2012,and this amount was
recognized under “Administrative Expenses - Staff Costs” in the
income statement (see Note 36).

At 31 December 2011, the total pension obligations to current
and retired employees amounted to EUR 166,042 thousand.
Of this amount, EUR 159,922 thousand were covered by the
aforementioned external pension fund and insurance policies and
EUR 6,119 thousand by an internal provision recognized under
“Provisions - Provisions for Pensions and Similar Obligations” in
the balance sheet (see Note 16) that had not yet been transferred
to the external pension fund at 31 December 2011.

The actuarial assumptions used in calculating these obligations
were: PERM 2000-P mortality tables; a discount rate of 4.27%
for the obligations covered by the external pension plan and
the interest rate guaranteed in the insurance policies for the
obligations covered by them; an adjustable pension increase
rate of 1.5%; an adjustable salary increase rate of 2.68%; an
expected rate of return on pension plan assets of 4.27%; and
estimated increase rates ranging from 2.50% to 4.75% for
the obligations covered by insurance policies, based on the
characteristics thereof.

As a result of the spin-off process performed in 2012 (see Note
1.1), Cecabank, S.A. subrogated to all the commitments that the
Confederacién held, and have been aforementioned.
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2.11.2. Other long-term benefits
2.11.2.1. Early retirements

Theaforementioned AgreemententeredintobytheConfederacion,
the Workplace Trade Union Branch and the representatives of
the Workers” Committee envisaged the possibility of voluntary
early retirement for certain Confederacién employees who met
specific age requirements on the date the Agreement came into
force in the form of several non-discriminatory offers, which
ended on 31 December 2003. Employees who did not accept
early retirement during the offer period were excluded from
further offers in subsequent years.

On 7 April 2011, an agreement was entered into between the
entity, the Workplace Trade Union Branch and the representatives
of the Workers” Committee, under which a Pre-Retirement Plan
was established for all employees who at 31 December 2011 were
at least 55 years of age and had been in the entity’s employ for
at least ten years. The general registration period for employees
wishing to participate in this plan ended on 13 May 2011.
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At 31 December 2011, the obligations in respect of future salaries,
future social security costs and incentives relating to early retirees,
as well as the obligations for future contributions to the Pension
Plan (all of which were considered as defined benefit obligations)
were covered by an internal provision amounting to EUR 59,348
thousand, which was recognized under “Provisions - Provisions
for Pensions and Similar Obligations” in the balance sheet (see
Note 16) and related to early retirement obligations incurred as
a result of the aforementioned Agreement dated 7 April 2011. At
31 December 2011 this provision covered the full amount of the
entity’s early retirement obligations at those dates.

The obligations covered by this internal provision were
calculated by an independent actuary, using: a discount rate
of 1.896%, PERM/F 2000-P, 1.5% increase in adjustable pre-
retirement salaries.

As a result of the spin-off process performed in 2012 (see Note
1.1), Cecabank, S.A. subrogated to all the commitments that the
Confederacién held, and have been aforementioned.
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2.11.2.2. Death and disability

The commitments for death or disability of current employees are
included in the benefits covered by the aforementioned pension
fund, and as a result of the spin-off process performed in 2012
(see Note 1.1) Cecabank, S.A. subrogated to this commitments.

2.11.2.3. Long-service bonuses

The Confederacion has undertaken to pay a bonus to employees
reaching 25 years of service at the entity.

The amounts paid in this connection at 2011 year-end totaled
approximately EUR 265 thousand, approximately. In 2012,
no balance had been recognised in this item, after the spin-off
process performed in 2012.

2.11.3. Termination benefits

Under current legislation, Cecabank, S.A. is required to pay
termination benefits to employees terminated without just cause.

The Confederacion recognised EUR 3,116 thousand in this
connection in 2011.

These expenses were recognised under “Administrative Expenses
- Staff Costs” in the 2011 income statement (see Note 36). No
balance had been recognised in this item in 2012.

Also, the Confederacion had agreements with some of its
executives and/or directors to pay them certain benefits in the
event that they are terminated without just cause. The amount
of the benefit, which in any case would not have a material
effect on the Confederacién, would be charged to the income
statement when the decision to terminate the employment of
the executive or director concerned was made.
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2.11.4. Loans to employees

Under the collective labour agreement in force and the additional
agreements entered into in 2004 with Confederacion's
employees, employees are entitled to apply for mortgage loans
from the Confederacién for a maximum period of 40 years at an
interest rate of 70% of Euribor with lower and upper limits for
2011 of 1.50% and 5.25%, respectively.

Under the applicable industry collective labour agreement and
pursuant to collective agreements reached by the Confederacion
implementing it, employees of the Confederacion may, in specific
cases, apply for interest free advances and other “welfare” loans or
loans for the expansion of their residence, with a repayment period
of 10 and 15 years, respectively, at the Euribor interest rate.

In the event of exceptional circumstances requiring an employee
of the Confederacién. to apply for a type of loan that does
not fully or partially comply with the regulations stipulated in
the industry collective labour agreement, or its implementing
regulations, the employee may apply for the loan through the
ALCO, indicating the exceptional circumstances.

These loans are recognized at amortized cost under “Loans
and Receivables - Loans and Advances to Customers” in the
balance sheet.

Balance sheets
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2.12. Income tax

The income tax expense is recognized in the income statement,
except when it results from a transaction recognized directly in
the Confederacion’s equity, in which case the income tax is also
recognized in the Confederaciéon’s equity.

The current income tax expense is calculated as the tax payable
with respect to the taxable profit for the year, adjusted by the
amount of the changes in the year in the assets and liabilities
(deferred taxes) recognized as a result of temporary differences
and tax credit and tax loss carry forwards (see Note 20).

The Confederacién considers that there is a temporary difference
when there is a difference between the carrying amount of an
asset or liability and its tax base. The tax base of an asset or
liability is the amount attributed to that asset or liability for
tax purposes. A taxable temporary difference is one that will
generate a future obligation for the Confederacién to make a
payment to the related tax authorities. A deductible temporary
difference is one that will generate a right for the Confederaciéon
to a refund or a reduction in its tax charge in the future.
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Tax credit and tax loss carry forwards are amounts that, after
performance of the activity or obtainment of the profit or loss
giving entitlement to them, are not used for tax purposes in the
related tax return until the conditions for doing so established in
the tax regulations are met and the Confederacion considers it
probable that they will be used in future periods.

Current tax assets and liabilities are the taxes that are expected
to be recoverable from or payable to the related tax authorities
within 12 months from the balance sheet date. Deferred tax
assets and liabilities are the taxes that are expected to be
recoverable from or payable to the related tax authorities in over
12 months from the balance sheet date.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for all taxable temporary
differences. However, deferred tax labilities arising from the
initial recognition of goodwill are not recognized.

Balance sheets
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The Confederaciéon only recognizes deferred tax assets arising
from deductible temporary differences and from tax credit
and for tax loss carry forwards when the following conditions
are met:

> Ifitis considered probable that the Confederacién will obtain
sufficient future taxable profit against which the deferred tax
assets can be utilized; and

> In the case of deferred tax assets arising from tax loss carry
forwards, the tax losses result from identifiable causes which
are unlikely to recur.

No deferred tax assets or liabilities are recognized if they arise
from the initial recognition of an asset or liability (except in the
case of a business combination) that at the time of recognition
affects neither accounting profit nor taxable profit.

The deferred tax assets and liabilities recognized are reassessed
at each balance sheet date in order to ascertain whether they
still exist, and the appropriate adjustments are made on the
basis of the findings of the analyses performed.
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2.13. Tangible assets
2.13.1. Property, plant and equipment for own use

Property, plant and equipment for own use includes the
assets that are held by the Confederacion for present or future
administrative purposes other than those of welfare projects, or
for the production or supply of goods and services and which are
expected to be used for more than one year. Property, plant and
equipment for own use is recognized at acquisition cost in the
balance sheet as defined in the Circular 4/2004, less:

> The related accumulated depreciation, and

> Any estimated impairment losses (net carrying amount
higher than recoverable amount).

In accordance with current regulations, as a result of the entry
into force of Circular 4/2004, with effect from 1 January 2004,
the Confederacion measured certain items of property, plant and
equipment for own use at fair value at that date and this fair value
was deemed to be their new acquisition cost for all purposes.

Depreciation is calculated by the straight-line method on the
basis of the acquisition cost of the assets less their residual value.
The land on which the buildings and other structures stand has
an indefinite life and, therefore, is not depreciated.

The tangible asset depreciation charge is recognized under
“Depreciation and Amortization” in the income statement and
Is calculated basically using the following depreciation rates
(based on the average years of estimated useful life of the
various assets):

ANNUAL RATE

Property 2% to 4%
Furniture and office equipment 10% to 15%
Computer hardware 15% to 25%
Fixtures 8% to 12%
Transport equipment 16%
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The Confederacién assesses at the reporting date whether
there is any internal or external indication that an asset may
be impaired (i.e. its carrying amount exceeds its recoverable
amount). If this is the case, the carrying amount of the asset
1s reduced to its recoverable amount and future depreciation
charges are adjusted in proportion to the revised carrying
amount and to the new remaining useful life (if the useful life
must be re-estimated). When necessary, the carrying amount
of property, plant and equipment for own use is reduced with
a charge to “Impairment Losses on Other Assets (Net) - Other
Assets” in the income statement.

Similarly, if there is an indication of a recovery in the value of a
previously impaired tangible asset, the Confederacion recognizes
the reversal of the impairment loss recognized in prior periods
with the related credit to “Impairment Losses on Other Assets
(Net) - Other Assets” in the income statement and adjusts the
future depreciation charges accordingly. In no circumstances
may the reversal of an impairment loss on an asset raise its
carrying amount above that which it would have if no impairment
losses had been recognized in prior years.

Balance sheets
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The estimated useful lives of the items of property, plant and
equipment for own use are reviewed at least once a year with
a view to detecting significant changes therein. If changes are
detected, the useful lives of the assets are adjusted by correcting
the depreciation charge to be recognized in theincome statement
in future years on the basis of the new useful lives.

Upkeep and maintenance expenses relating to property, plant
and equipment for own use are recognized as an expense
under “Administrative Expenses - Other General Administrative
Expenses” in the income statement in the year in which they
are incurred.

2.13.2. Property, plant and equipment assigned to welfare
projects

“Tangible Assets - Property, Plant and Equipment Assigned to
Welfare Projects” in the balance sheet includes the carrying
amounts of the tangible assets assigned to the Confederaciéon’s
welfare projects.
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The criteria used to recognize the acquisition cost of assets
assigned to welfare projects, to calculate their depreciation and
their respective estimated useful lives and to recognize any
impairment losses thereon are consistent with those described in
relation to property, plant and equipment for own use (see Note
2.13.1), the only exception being that the depreciation charges
and the recognition and reversal of any impairment losses on
these assets are not recognized in the income statement but
rather under “Welfare Fund” on the liability side of the balance
sheet (see Note 27).

At 31 December 2012 and 2011, and throughout those years,
there were no tangible assets assigned to welfare projects.

2.13.3. Investment property

“Tangible Assets - Investment Property” in the balance sheet
reflects the net values of the land, buildings and other structures
held either to earn rentals or for capital appreciation.

Balance sheets
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The criteria used to recognize the acquisition cost of investment
property, to calculate its depreciation and its estimated
useful life and to recognize any impairment losses thereon are
consistent with those described in relation to property, plant
and equipment for own use (see Note 2.13.1).

2.14. Intangible assets

Intangible assets are identifiable non-monetary assets without
physical substance which arise as a result of a legal transaction
or which are developed internally by the Confederacién. Only
intangible assets whose cost can be estimated reasonably
objectively and from which the Confederacién considers it probable
that future economic benefits will be generated are recognized.

Intangible assets are recognized initially at acquisition or
production cost and are subsequently measured at cost
less any accumulated amortization and any accumulated
impairment losses.
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2.14.1. Other intangible assets

Intangible assets other than goodwill are recognized in the
balance sheet at acquisition or production cost, less the related
accumulated amortization and any accumulated impairment
losses.

Intangible assets can have an indefinite useful life -when, based
on an analysis of all the relevant factors, it is concluded that
there is no foreseeable limit to the period over which the asset is
expected to generate net cash inflows for the Confederacion- or
a finite useful life, in all other cases.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are not amortized,
but rather at the end of each reporting period the Confederacién
reviews the remaining useful lives of the assets in order to
determine whether they continue to be indefinite and, if this is
not the case, to take the appropriate steps. At 31 December
2012 and 2011, and throughout these years, there were no
intangible assets with indefinite useful lives.

Balance sheets
and accounts
CECA Group

Intangible assets with finite useful lives are amortized on a
straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives, which range
from three to five years depending on the class of asset. The
period amortization charge for intangible assets with finite
useful lives is recognized under “Depreciation and Amortization”
in the income statement.

For intangible assets other than goodwill with indefinite useful
lives and with finite useful lives, the Confederacidn recognizes
any impairment loss on the carrying amount of these assets, and
any reversal of previously recognized impairment losses, with a
charge or credit, as appropriate, to “Impairment Losses on Other
Assets (net) - Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets” in the income
statement. The criteria used to recognize the impairment losses
on these assets and, where applicable, the reversal of impairment
losses recognized in prior years are similar to those used for
property, plant and equipment for own use (see Note 2.13.1),
except that in no circumstances may any impairment recognized
for goodwill in the balance sheet be reversed.
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2.15. Provisions and contingent liabilities

When preparing the financial statements, the directors made a
distinction between:

> Provisions: credit balances covering present obligations at
the balance sheet date arising from past events which could
give rise to a loss for the entities, which is considered to be
likely to occur and certain as to its nature but uncertain as
to its amount and/or timing; and

> Contingent liabilities: possible obligations that arise from
past events and whose existence will be confirmed only
by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future
events not wholly within the control of the Confederacion.

The Confederacién’s financial statements include all the material
provisions with respect to which itis considered that itis more likely
than not that the obligation will have to be settled. Contingent
liabilities are not recognized in the financial statements, but rather
are disclosed, as required by the applicable standards.
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Provisions, which are quantified on the basis of the best
information available on the consequences of the event giving
rise to them and are reviewed and adjusted at the end of each
year, are used to cater for the specific obligations for which
they were originally recognized. Provisions are fully or partially
reversed when such obligations cease to exist or are reduced.

The provisions considered necessary pursuant to the foregoing
criteria and their eventual reversal, should the reasons for their
recognition disappear, are recognized with a charge or credit,
respectively, to “Provisions (net)” in the income statement.

2.15.1. Litigation and/ or claims in process
At 2012 year-end, there were no litigation or claims in process.

At the end of 2011 certain litigation and claims were in process
against the Confederacién arising from the ordinary course of
its operations. The Confederacién’s legal advisers and directors
consider that the outcome of litigation and claims will not have
a material effect on the financial statements for the years in
which they are settled.
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2.16. Non-current assets held for sale

“Non-Current Assets Held for Sale” in the balance sheet
includes the carrying amount of items -individual items,
disposal groups or items forming part of a business unit
earmarked for disposal (“discontinued operations”)- which,
because of their nature, are estimated to have a realization
or recovery period exceeding one year, but are earmarked for
disposal by the Confederacién and whose sale in their present
condition is highly probable to be completed within one year
from the date of the financial statements.

Investments in associates that meet the requirements set forth
in the foregoing paragraph are also considered to be non-current
assets held for sale.

Therefore, the carrying amount of these items -which can be
of a financial nature or otherwise- will foreseeably be recovered
through the proceeds from their disposal rather than from
continuing use.

Specifically, property or other non-current assets received by
the Confederaciéon as total or partial settlement of its debtors’
payment obligations to it are deemed to be non-current assets
held for sale, unless the entities has decided classified as
property, plant and equipment for own use, investment property
or inventories on the basis of their nature and intended use (see
Note 2.13.3).

These assets are initially recognized at cost, which is taken
to be the carrying amount of the debts giving rise to them,
calculated in accordance with the regulations applicable to the
Confederacién. Subsequently, these assets are measured as
indicated in this Note.

Symmetrically, “Liabilities Associated with Non - Current Assets
Held for Sale” in the balance sheet includes the balances payable,
if any, associated with disposal groups and the Confederacion’s
discontinued operations.
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In general, non-current assets held for sale are measured at the
lower of their carrying amount calculated as at the classification
date and their fair value less estimated costs to sell. Tangible
and intangible assets that are depreciable and amortizable by
nature are not depreciated or amortized during the time they
remain classified in this category.

If the carrying amount of the assets exceeds their fair value less
costs to sell, the Confederacién adjusts the carrying amount of
the assets by the amount of the excess with a charge to “Gains/
(Losses) on Non-Current Assets Held for Sale not Classified as
Discontinued Operations” in the income statement. If the fair
value of such assets subsequently increases, the Confederaciéon
reverses the losses previously recognized and increases the
carrying amount of the assets without exceeding the carrying
amount prior to the impairment, with a credit to “Gains/
(Losses) on Non-Current Assets Held for Sale not Classified as
Discontinued Operations” in the income statement.

Despite the foregoing, financial assets, assets arising from
remuneration to employees and any deferred tax assets that are
part of a disposal group or of a discontinued operation are not
measured as described in the preceding paragraphs, but rather
in accordance with the accounting policies and rules applicable
to these items, which were explained in previous sections of
Note 2.

2.17. Welfare Fund

The Confederacion’s Welfare Fund is recognized under “Welfare
Fund” on the liability side of the balance sheet (see Note 27).

Transfers to the welfare fund are recorded as an appropriation
of the Confederacién’s profit. Welfare project expenses are
presented in the balance sheet as deductions from the welfare
fund and in no case may they be recognized in the income
statement. Tangible assets and liabilities assigned to welfare
projects, if any, are included in separate asset and liability items
in the balance sheet.
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2.18. Cash flow statements

The following terms are used in the cash flow statements with
the meanings specified:

> Cash flows: inflows and outflows of cash and cash
equivalents, which are short-term, highly liquid investments
that are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

> Operating activities: the principal revenue-producing
activities of credit institutions and other activities that are
not investing or financing activities. Operating activities also
include interest paid on any financing received, even if this
financing is considered to be financing activity. Activities
performed with the various financial instrument categories
detailed in Note 2.2.4 above are classified, for the purpose of
this statement, as operating activities.

> Investing activities: the acquisition, sale or disposal by
other means of long-term assets and other investments not
includedin cash and cash equivalents, such astangible assets,
intangible assets, investments, non-current assets held for
sale and associated liabilities, equity instruments classified
as available for sale which are strategic investments and
debt instruments included in held-to-maturity investments.

> Financing activities: includes the cash flows from activities
that result in changes in the size and composition of the
equity and liabilities that are not operating activities.

For cash flow statement preparation purposes, the balance of
“Cash and Balances with Central Banks” on the asset side of
the balance sheet, disregarding any impairment losses, was
considered to be “cash and cash equivalents”.
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2.19. Statements of changes in Equity

The statement of changes in equity presented in these financial
statements shows the total changes therein in equity during the
year. This information 1s disclosed to turn in two statements:
the statement of comprehensive income and the statement of
changes in equity. The following explains the main features of the
information contained in both parts of the statement:

2.19.1. Statement of recognized income and expense

The statement of recognized income and expense presents
the income and expenses generated by the Confederacion as
a result of its business activity in the year, and a distinction
1s made between the income and expenses recognized in the
income statement for the year and the other income and
expenses recognized, in accordance with current regulations,
directly in equity.

Accordingly, this statement presents:

a) Profit for the year.

b) The net amount of the income and expenses recognized
temporarily in equity under “Valuation Adjustments”.

¢) The net amount of the income and expenses recognized
definitively in equity during the year and other items that
are recognized directly and definitively in equity, if any.

d) The income tax incurred in respect of the items indicated in
b) and c) above.

e) The total recognized income and expenses, calculated as
the sum of a) and d) above.

The changes in income and expenses recognized in equity under
“Valuation Adjustments” are broken down as follows:

a) Revaluation gains/(losses): includes the amount of the
income, net of the expenses incurred in the year, recognized
directly in equity. The amounts recognized in the year under
“Valuation Adjustments” are recorded in this line item, even
though they are transferred in the same year to the income
statement, to the initial value of other assets or liabilities, or
are reclassified into another line item.
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b) Amounts transferred to the income statement: includes
the amount of the revaluation gains and losses previously
recognized in equity, albeit in the same year, which are
recognized in the income statement.

¢) Amount transferred to the initial carrying amount of
hedged items: includes the amount of the revaluation gains
and losses previously recognized in equity, albeit in the same
year, which are recognized in the initial carrying amount of
the assets or liabilities as a result of cash flow hedges.

d) Other reclassifications: includes the amount of the
transfers made in the year between valuation adjustment
items in accordance with current regulations.

The amounts of these items are presented gross and the related
tax effect is recognized in this statement under “Income Tax”.

2.19.2. Statement of changes in total equity

The statement of changes in total equity presents all the changes
in equity, including those arising from changes in accounting
policies and from the correction of errors. Accordingly, this
statement presents a reconciliation of the carrying amount at
the beginning and end of the year of all the equity items, and
the changes in the year are grouped together on the basis of
their nature into the following items:

a) Adjustments due to changes in accounting policies and
adjustments made to correct errors: include significant
changes in equity arising as a result of the retrospective
restatement of the balances in the financial statements
due to changes in accounting policies or to the correction
of errors.

b) Recognized income and expense: includes the total
recognized income and expenses reported in the statement
of recognized income and expense.

¢) Other changes in equity: includes the remaining items
recognized in equity, including, inter alia, distribution of
Confederaciéon profit, transfers between equity items and
any other increases or decreases in equity.
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3. Distribution of the Confederacién’s profit 4. Remuneration of directors and senior

The distribution of the Confederacion’s net profit for 2012 that executives
the Board of Directors will propose for approval by the General
Assembly (the figures for 2011 are presented for comparison
purposes only) is as follows: The members of the Board of Directors of the Confederacion,
receive an attendance fee for attendance of meetings. The detail
for 2012 and 2011 is shown in the table below.

4.1. Remuneration of directors

THOUSANDS OF EUROS

2012 2011
Reserves 1,339 33,374
(Tl:laorlzfez;t)o welfare fund 8 000 3715
Return on participation certificates
(Note 18) ) 1,667
Net profit for the year 9,339 38,756
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THOUSANDS OF EUROS THOUSANDS OF EUROS
2012 2011 2012 2011
Alzamora Carbonell, Fernando 4 17 lturbe Otaegui, Xabier 3 17
Ambrosio Orizaola, Enrique Manuel 2 - Mata Tarragd, Enric = 5
Arvelo Hernandez, Alvaro 2 17 Medel Camara, Braulio 30 38
Beltran Aparicio, Fernando - 6 Mestre Gonzalez, Jordi 5 12
Bravo Cafiadas, Victor Manuel 2 17 Olavarrieta Arcos, José Antonio - 11
Cifré Rodriguez, Josep 16 - Olivas Martinez, José Luis 2 15
Crespo Martinez Modesto s 29 Peman Gavin, Juan Maria 15 -
De Rato Figadero, Rodrigo 12 35 Pulido Gutiérrez, Antonio 20 17
Del Canto Canto, Evaristo 20 12 Soriano Cairols, Rafael 17 -
Egea Krauel, Carlos 34 43 Todo Rovira, Adolfo - 17
Fainé Casas, Isidro 35 43 Total 286 445
Fernandez-Velilla Hernandez, Juan 2 8

In 2012, the directors were paid fees for attending Standing

Fernandez Gayoso, Julio 2 12 Committee meetings and representing the Board amounting to
Fernandez Pelaz, Mario 19 - EUR 243 thousand (2011: EUR 22 thousand). Note 41 details
Franco Lahoz, Amado 42 43 the Confederacién’s other balances with its directors and entities
Garcia Pefia, Francisco Manuel 2 17 or individuals related to them.

Gofii Beltran de Garizurieta, Enrique -

Herndndez Pérez, Lucas -
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4.2. Remuneration of senior executives and of
members of the Board of Directors in their capacity
as Confederacion executives

As a result of the spin-off process performed in 2012 (see Note
11), the Confederacién’s employees began to render their
services at Cecabank, S.A.

In this regard, for the purposes of the preparation of these
financial statements, the senior executives of the Confederacién
in 2012 were considered to be the CEO, the Deputy Manager of
the Association Area, the General Secretary - Manager of Legal
Counsel, the Manager of Tax Advisory Services, and the Head of
the Planning and Control Division of Cecabank, S.A., who provide
services to the Confederacién on a part-time basis. (In 2011 the
Confederacién’s senior executives were considered to be the 13
members of the Management Committee.).

Balance sheets
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In 2012 none of the members of the Board of Directors worked
In an executive capacity and, as a result, no remuneration was
earned in this connection. The senior executives’ short-term
remuneration in the year amounted to EUR 549 thousand
(2011: 4,812 thousand, an amount that, at that date, included
senior executives, of which, EUR 4,018 thousand related to
short-term remuneration and EUR 794 thousand related to
post-employment obligations).

No additional remuneration was earned by senior executives in
2012 and 2011 in connection with other long-term benefits, or
share-based payments as defined by Circular 4/2004.

In 2012, no consolidated pension rights were recognised either
for the senior executives or for the members of the Board of
Directors in their capacity as executives of the Confederacion.
This amount stood at EUR 2,737 thousand in 2011.

In 2012 and 2011, no additional remuneration was earned
in connection with the post-employment obligations of the
Confederacidn’s directors and senior executives.
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5. Cash and balances with central banks

After the spin-off process performed in 2012, (see Note 1.1). no
balance had been recognised in this item in the balance sheet
at 31 December 2012. The detail of “Cash and Balances with
Central Banks” at 31 December 2011 is as follows:

THOUSANDS OF EUROS

2012 2011
Cash - 56,438
Balances with the Bank of Spain - 435,950
- 492,388
Valuation adjustments:
Of which-
Other valuation adjustments - 6
- 492,394

Note 21 includes information on the fair value of these
instruments at 31 December 2012 and 2011. Note 24
provides information on the liquidity risk associated with
financial instruments, including information on the maturities
of these assets.

The balance of “Cash and Balances with Central Banks” at 31
December 2012 and 2011 represents the maximum exposure
to credit risk assumed by the Confederacién in relation to
these instruments.

At 31 December 2012 and 2011, there were no assets with
uncollected past-due amounts or impaired classified under
“Cash and Balances with Central Banks”.
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6. Financial instruments through profit
or loss

6.1. Financial assets and liabilities held for trading

6.1.1. Financial assets and liabilities held for trading -
Breakdown

After the spin-off process performed in 2012, no balance had
been recognised in this item in the balance sheet (see Note 1.1).
Following is a detail of the balances of “Financial Assets/Liabilities
Held for Trading” in the balance sheet at 31 December 2011.

THOUSANDS OF EUROS

Financial Assets Held for Trading Financial Liabilities Held for Trading

2012 2011 2012 2011

Debt instruments - 664,492 - -

Equity instruments - 39,284 - -
Trading derivatives-

Derivatives traded in organized markets - - - 38

OTC derivatives - 5,078,006 - 5,017,255

Short positions - - - 343,354

- 5,781,782 - 5,360,647
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Note 22 discloses information on the credit risk assumed by
the Confederacion in relation to the financial assets, other than
equity instruments, included in this category. In addition, Notes
23 and 24 include information on the market and liquidity risks,
respectively, associated with the financial instruments included
in this category.

Note 21 provides information on the fair value of the financial
instruments included in this category. Note 26 includes
information on the concentration of risk relating to the financial
assets held for trading. Note 25 shows information on the
exposure to interest rate risk.

6.1.2. Financial assets and liabilities held for trading -
Trading derivatives

After the spin-off process performed in 2012, no balance had
been recognised in this item in the balance sheet (see Note
1.1). Following is a breakdown, by type of risk, of the fair value
of the trading derivatives arranged by the Confederacion and
of their notional amount (on the basis of which the future
payments and collections on these derivatives are calculated)
at 31 December 2011:

THOUSANDS OF EUROS

2012 2011

Fair Value N el Fair Value N el

Asset Balances Liability Balances Amount Asset Balances Liability Balances Amount
Interest rate risk - - - 4,997,181 4,963,919 136,526,220
Foreign currency risk - - - 80,493 47359 4,359,361
Share price risk - - - 332 337 119,417
Credit risk - - - - 5,678 45,000
- - - 5,078,006 5,017,293 141,049,998
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The notional amount of the contracts entered into does not
reflect the actual risk assumed by the Confederacién for these
contracts, since the net position in these financial instruments is
the result of offsetting and/or combining them and of offsetting
and/or combining them with other asset or lability positions.

6.1.3. Financial liabilities held for trading - Short positions

After the spin-off process performed in 2012, no balance had been
recognised in this item in the balance sheet (see Note 1.1). The
detail, by type of transaction, of the balance of this item in the
balance sheets at 31 December 2011 is as follows:

THOUSANDS OF EUROS

2012 2011
Classification:
Borrowed securities-
Equity instruments - -
Short sales-
Debt instruments - 343,354
- 343,354

“Short Positions - Short Sales - Debt Instruments” in the
foregoing table includes the fair value of the Confederacion’s debt
instruments purchased under reverse repurchase agreements
and, therefore, as such not recognized on the asset side of the
balance sheet, which have been sold and will be repurchased
by the Confederacién before maturity of the reverse repurchase
agreement in which they are used as collateral, in order for the
Confederacién to return them at the maturity date.

6.2. Other financial instruments at fair value
through profit or loss

6.2.1. Other financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

This heading includes reverse repurchase agreements arranged
by the Confederacién which are managed jointly with repurchase
agreements relating to financial assets classified in “Other
Financial Liabilities at Fair Value Through Profit or Loss” and with
interest rate derivatives and financial instruments classified as
held for trading and other available-for-sale financial assets.
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After the spin-off process performed in 2012, no balance had been THOUSANDS OF EUROS
recognised in this item in the balance sheet (see Note 1.1). The de- 2012 2011

tail, by nature, of the financial assets included in “Other Financial
Assets at Fair Value Through Profit or Loss” in the balance sheets
at 31 December 2011 is as follows:

Loans and advances to
credit institutions-

Reverse repurchase agreements - 493,166

Valuation adjustments-

Accrued interest - 236
Revaluation gains - 188
- 424
- 493,590

Loans and advances to customers-
Reverse repurchase agreements - 506,351
Valuation adjustments-

Accrued interest - 122
Revaluation gains - (186)
- (64)
- 506,287

= 999,877

Note 22 includes information on the Confederacién’s exposure to
credit risk at 31 December 2011 associated with these financial
instruments.
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Note 21 discloses information on the fair value of these financial
instruments at 31 December 2011. Note 23 provides information
on the exposure to market risk of these financial instruments.
Note 25 shows information on the Confederacion’s exposure to
interest rate risk.

Note 24 contains information on the liquidity risk associated
with the financial instruments owned by the Confederacion at 31
December 2011, including information on the terms to maturity
at those dates of the financial assets included in this category.

Note 26 includes information on the concentration risk relating to
these financial instruments at 31 December 2011.

In view of the characteristics of the transactions included in this
category (reverse repurchase agreements), the counterparties
and collateral provided, it is estimated that substantially all the
changes in the fair value of these financial instruments in 2012
recognized in the income statement are attributable to market
risk and, more specifically, to interest rate risk. . The fair value of
these assets was estimated by calculating the present value of
their cash flows.

Balance sheets
and accounts
CECA Group

6.2.2. Other financial liabilities at fair value through profit
or loss

This heading includes repurchase agreements arranged by the
Confederacion which are managed jointly with reverse repurchase
agreements relating to financial assets classified in “Other
Financial Assets at Fair Value Through Profit or Loss” and with
interest rate derivatives and financial instruments classified as
held for trading and other available-for-sale financial assets.

After the spin-off process performed in 2012, no balance had
been recognised in this item in the balance sheet (see Note 1.1).
The detail, by nature, of the financial liabilities included in “Other
Financial Liabilities at Fair Value Through Profit or Loss” in the
balance sheets at 31 December 2011 is as follows:
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THOUSANDS OF EUROS THOUSANDS OF EUROS
2012 2011 2012 2011
Deposits from central banks- Customer deposits-
Repurchase agreements with the Repurchase agreements with the
- 930,504 ) - i
European Central Bank Public Treasury
Valuation adjustments- Repurchase agreements to entities with ) 987673
central counterparties '
Accrued interest - 222 .
. . Repurchase agreements with other
Revaluation gains - IIBIE resident sectors in Spain i 46,391
- soe Repurchase agreements with other
- 930,840 non-resident sectors in Spain - -
Deposits from credit institutions- Valuation adjustments-
]Iiesglté[]ctf]wsr?: agreements with credit i 350757 Accrued interest - 4,635
Revaluation gains - 2,435
Valuation adjustments- - 7,070
Accrued interest - 6 - 1,041,134
Revaluation gains - (13) - 2,324,724
- (7)
- 352,750
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In view of the characteristics of these financial liabilities (sales of
assets under non-optional repurchase agreements arranged by
the Confederacién), the significant changes in the fair value of
these financial instruments in at 31 December 2011 are attrib-
utable to market risk (mainly interest rate risk) rather than credit
risk. The fair value of these financial liabilities is deemed to be a
reliable estimate of the present value of their future cash flows.

The amounts shown in the above table, net of their related valu-
ation adjustments for “Revaluation Gains”, represent the amor-
tized cost of these liabilities at 31 December 2011, which does
not differ significantly from the amount that would be payable
by the Confederacion if they matured at that date.

Note 21 discloses information on the fair value of the financial
liabilities included in this category at 31 December 2011. Note
24 provides information on the liquidity risk associated with
these financial liabilities.

Note 23 shows certain information on the market risk associ-
ated with these financial liabilities and Note 25 contains infor-
mation on interest rate risk.

/. Available-for-sale financial assets

After the spin-off process performed in 2012, no balance had
been recognised in this item in the balance sheet (see Note 1.1).
Following is a detail of the balances of “Available-for-Sale Financial
Assets” in the balance sheets at 31 December 2011:
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THOUSANDS OF EUROS
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and accounts
CECA Group

THOUSANDS OF EUROS

2011 2012 2011
Debt instruments- Equity instruments-
Governmenta 2869089 o s - 51,215
Of which: Shares not quoted on organized ) 3246
Treasury bills 2026369  markets
Government debt securities 842,720 . 83,461
Other securities 14,979 Valuation adjustments-
Securities of other Public institutions 638,738 Revaluation gains - 42,338
3,522,806 Impairment losses - (6,226)
Valuation adjustments- ) 36,112
Accrued interest 19,325 ) 119,573
Revaluation losses (51,268)
Impairment losses (2,130)
(34,073)
3,488,733
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Note 21 contains certain information on the fair value of the
financial instruments included in this category.

Note 22 includes information on the credit risk to which the debt
instruments included in this financial instrument category are
subject.

Note 23 shows certain information on the market risk to which
the Confederacién is exposed in relation to these financial assets.
Note 25 shows information on the exposure to interest rate risk.

Note 24 discloses certain information on the Confederacién’s
liquidity risk, including information on the terms to maturity of
these financial assets at 31 December 2011. Note 26 includes
information on the concentration risk associated to these
financial assets.

8. Loans and receivables

8.1. Breakdown

Following is a detail of the financial assets included in “Loans
and Receivables” in the balance sheets at 31 December 2012
and 2011:
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THOUSANDS OF EUROS
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THOUSANDS OF EUROS

2012 2011 2012 2011
Loans and advances to Valuation adjustments-
credlt 1nst1t.utlons- Impairment losses = (1,996)
Time deposits ) 811,789 Accrued interest - 222
Other. éccou nt§ 13,542 1,288,775 _ (1.774)
Securities lending (*) = 293,629 ) 458 590
Other financial assets - 7929
13,542 2,402,122 Debt instruments-
Valuation adjustments- Issued by Spanish Public - -
| , : ) 5 Administrations
mpalrmgnt 05563 ©) Issued by non-residents in Spain - 101,168
Accrued interest - 1;2(5) Issued by residents in Spain - 2,366,564
- Doubtful assets - 99,388
13,542 2,403,417
Loans and advances to customers- Valuatlén SV SHTIEES
Deposits for futures transactions and _ 97778 Impairment lgsses . - (129:452)
other guarantees given ) Other valuation adjustments ) 4972
Unsettled stockexchange transactions - 42,938 lerorieees)
Mortgage secured loans ) 49,576 = 2Ai2fenl
Unsecured credits and loans = 69,575 Lelinr BP0k feed
Secliied eredizandiodns . 200,000 (*) Relates to the amount delivered by the Confederacién. as security for
Other assets - 456 securities lending transactions (see Note 28.5)
Doubtful assets - 41
= 460,364
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At, 31 December 2012 the balance of “Loans and Receivables”
includes a current account held with Cecabank, S.A. (see Note 41).

Note 22 discloses certain relevant information on the credit
risk relating to the financial assets included in this financial
instrument category at 31 December 2011. Note 21 provides
information on the fair value at 31 December 2011 of the
financial assets included in this category.

Note 23 includes information on the market risk associated with
these financial assets at 31 December 2011.

Note 24 contains information on the liquidity risk associated
with the Confederacién’s financial instruments at 31 December
2011, including information on the terms to maturity at those
dates of the financial assets included in this category.

Note 25 shows information on the exposure to interest rate
risk. Note 26 includes information on the concentration risk
associated with the financial assets included in this category at
31 December 2011.

Balance sheets
and accounts
CECA Group

9. Hedging derivatives

Fair value hedges

After the spin-off process performed in 2012, no balance had
been recognised in this item in the balance sheet (see Note
1.1). As of 31 December 2011, the Confederacion entered into
financial derivatives transactions with various counterparties
of recognized creditworthiness which are considered fair value
hedges of certain balance sheet positions against fluctuations in
market interest rates.

The Confederacion’s hedged balance sheet positions relate to
fixed-rate debt instruments (guaranteed issues, government
bonds and treasury bills). These securities are issued by the
Spanish government, Spanish private sector financial institutions
and other resident sectors.
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Given that the positions giving rise to the risk are long-term
transactions tied to a fixed interest rate, the main aim of the
hedge is to change the returns of the hedged items from fixed to
floating and, accordingly, their performance to changes in market
interest rates. To this end, the Confederaciéon uses OTC interest
rate derivatives (basically swaps such as call money swaps).

The Confederacién used call money swaps to hedge each
group of debt instruments, which were grouped on the basis
of their sensitivity to changes in interest rates, and documents

the related efficiency analyses of the hedges to verify that,
at inception and throughout the life of these hedges, the
Confederacién can expect, prospectively, that the changes in fair
value of the hedged items attributable to the hedged risk will be
almost fully offset by changes in the fair value of the hedging
instruments and, retrospectively, that the actual results of the
hedge are within a range of 80% to 125% of the results of the
hedged item. The aforementioned hedges are highly effective.

Following is a detail of the fair value of the hedging instruments
at 31 December 2011:

THOUSANDS OF EUROS
Fair value of hedging instruments

2012 2011
Asset Liability Asset Liability
balances balances balances balances
Hedged instrument
Loans and receivables - - 10 18,097
Available-for-sale assets - - - 7,662
- - 10 25,759
182
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Gains/losses on hedging instruments and hedged items are
recognized under “Gains/Losses on Financial Assets and
Liabilities (Net)” in the income statement of the Confederacién
(see Note 34).

10. Non-current assets held for sale

After the spin-off process performed in 2012, no balance had
been recognised in this item in the balance sheet (see Note 1.1).
The breakdown of the balance of “Non-Current Assets Held for
Sale” in the balance sheets at 31 December 2011 is as follows:

THOUSANDS OF EUROS

2012 2011

Tangible assets -
Foreclosed residential assets - -
Other residential assets - 84
Equity instruments -
Investments in associates - -
Impairment losses - -

- 84

The only change recognized in this balance sheet line item in
2011 was the sale for EUR 1,050 thousand of a residential
asset, the carrying amount of which was EUR 77 thousand. The
gain obtained on this sale, EUR 945 thousand, was recognized
with a credit to “Gains (Losses) on Non-Current Assets Held
for Sale Not Classified as Discontinued Operations” in the
income statement.

11. Investments

The detail of the investments held by the Confederacién in Group
companies and jointly controlled entities at 31 December 2012
and 2011 is as follows:
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PROPORTION OF OWNERSHIP CARRYING VALUE
INTEREST (%) (THOUSAND OF EUROS)
entity Location 2012 2011 2012 2011
Subsidiaries:
Cecabank, S.A. Madrid 89 - 648,817 -
Caja Activa, S.A. Madrid - 99.9 - 60
CEA Trade Services Limited Hong Kong - 100 - 4
648,817 64

Jointly controlled entities:

Ahorro y Titulizacion, Sociedad Gestora de .
Fondos de Titulizacién, S.A. Madrid - 50 - 451

648,817 515

The changes in “Investments” in the Confederacién’s balance 12.Ta ngjb]e assets
sheet in 2012 arose from the spin-off process performed in that _ _
year, whereby the Confederacion spun off to Cecabank, S.A, inter  After the spin-off process performed in 2012, no balance had

alia, the investments held in the share capital of Caja Activa, S.A.,, been recognised ".” this item in the. balancg sheet (see_Note
CEA Trade Services Limited and Ahorro y Titulizacién, Sociedad ~ 1-1)- The changesin 2012 and 2011 in “Tangible Assets” in the
Gestora de Fondos de Titulizacién, S.A. The only investment it~ DPalance sheets were as follows:

held on its balance sheet at 31 December 2012 was the 89%
ownership interest in the share capital of Cecabank, S.A. (see Note
1.1). At 31 December 2011 the Confederacién did not have any
investments classified as “Associates”.
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Page 1 of 2

THOUSANDS OF EUROS

Property, Plant and Equipment for Own Use

Furniture, IT Equipment

Land and Fixtures and and Related Investment

Buildings Vehicles Fixtures Property Total
Cost:
Balance at 1 January 2011 121,668 46,219 22,065 1,333 191,285
Additions - 555 970 - 1,525
Disposals - (1,437) (6,131) - (7,568)
Transfers (1,770) 1,770 - - -
Other - (314) (167) - (481)
Balance at 31 December 2011 119,898 46,793 16,737 1,333 184,761
Spin-off effect (Note 1.1) (119,898) (46,793) (16,737) (1,333) (184,761)
Additions
Disposals - - - - -
Transfers - - - - -
Other - - - - -

Balance at 31 December 2012 - - - - i
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Page 2 of 2

THOUSANDS OF EUROS

Property, Plant and Equipment for Own Use

Furniture, IT Equipment

Land and Fixtures and and Related Investment

Buildings Vehicles Fixtures Property Total
Accumulated depreciation:
Balance at 1 January 2011 (32,407) (35,845) (19,200) (165) (87617)
Charge for the year (Note 40) (2,051) (3,177) (1,512) (36) (6,776)
Disposals - 1,437 6,131 - 7,568
Transfers 277 277) = = =
Other - 327 151 - 478
Balance at 31 December 2011 (34,181) (37,535) (14,430) (201) (86,347)
Spin-off effect (Note 1.1) 34,181 37,535 14,430 201 86,347
Charge for the year (Note 40)
Disposals - - - - -
Transfers - - - - -
Other - - - - -

Balance at 31 December 2012 - - - - i

Tangible assets, net:
Net balance at 31 December 2011 85,717 9,258 2,307 1,132 98,414
Net balance at 31 December 2012 = = = = =
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At 31 December 2011, property, plant and equipment for own
use totaling (gross) approximately EUR 36,886 thousand had
been depreciated in full.

At 31 December 2011, the tangible assets owned by the
Confederacién were not impaired and there were no changes in
this connection in those years.

The rental income earned from investment property owned
by the Confederacién amounted to approximately EUR 808
thousand in 2011 (see Note 35).

13. Intangible assets

13.1. Intangible assets - Other intangible assets

After the spin-off process performed in 2012, no balance had
been recognised in this item in the balance sheet (see Note
1.1). The balance of “Other Intangible Assets” relates in full to
computer software, developed mainly by the Confederacion,

Balance sheets
and accounts
CECA Group

which is amortized by the straight-line method on the basis of
its estimated useful life over a period of three to five years, The
breakdown of the balance of “Other Intangible Assets” in the
balance sheets at 31 December 2011 is as follows:

THOUSANDS OF EUROS

2012 2011
Intangible assets with finite useful life - 5,492
Less:
Accumulated amortization - (3,046)
Impairment losses -
TOTAL NET - 2,446

At 31 December 2011, the intangible assets owned by the
Confederacion were not impaired and there were no changes in
this connection in those years.

At 31 December 2011 the balance of fully amortized intangible
assets in use was EUR 1,022 thousand.
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The changes in 2012 and 2011 in “Other Intangible Assets” in

the balance sheets were as follows:

THOUSANDS OF EUROS

Cost:

Balance at 1 January 2011 5,056
Additions 436
Disposals -
Balance at 31 December 2011 5,492
Spin-off effect (Note 1.1)) (5,492)
Additions -
Disposals -
Balance at 31 December 2012 =
Accumulated amortization:

Balance at 1 January 2011 (2,256)
Charge for the year (Note 40) (790)
Disposals -
Balance at 31 December 2011 (3,046)
Spin-off effect (Note 1.1.) 3,046
Charge for the year (Note 40) -
Disposals -
Balance at 31 December 2012 -
Intangible assets, net:

Net balance at 31 December 2011 2,446

Net balance at 31 December 2012
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14. Other assets and liabilities
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THOUSANDS OF EUROS

2012 2011

The breakdown of the balance of “Other Assets” and “Other Other liabilities

Liabilities” in the balance sheets at 31 December 2012 and .

_ Accrued expenses and deferred income

2011 is as follows: .

Fees and commissions payable - 2,747
THOUSANDS OF EUROS Accrued expenses 126 55113
2012 2011 Accrued revenues - 254

Other assets Other liabilities-

Prepayments and accrued income Transactions in transit - 698,575
Fees and commissions receivable - 5.958 Other . 6 446
Commissions for guarantees ) 13129 126 763.135
received
Prepayments 24 100 “Prepayments and Accrued Income - Fees and Commissions

Other assets- - 5.865 Receivable” includes the accrued commissions receivable by the
Transactions in transit - 5.029 Confederacion in relation to various services provided, basically
Other - 11.950 in relation to the payment methods business and the custody

24 42 031 business for collective investment undertakings and pension funds.

“Other Assets - Transactions in Transit” and “Other liabilities
- Transactions in Transit” mainly include temporary balances
which relate basically to securities underwriting transactions
and other unsettled OTC transactions within the Securities
Clearing and Settlement Service.
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15. Financial liabilities at amortized cost

15.1. Breakdown

The detail of the items composing the balance of “Financial
Liabilities at Amortized Cost” in the balance sheets at 31

December 2012 and 2011 is as follows:

THOUSANDS OF EUROS

15.2. Financial liabilities at amortized cost -
Deposits from central banks

After the spin-off process performed in 2012, no balance had
been recognised in this item in the balance sheet (see Note 1.1).
The breakdown of the balance of this item in the balance sheets
at 31 December 2011 is as follows:

THOUSANDS OF EUROS

2012 2011 2012 2011
Deposits from central banks - 344,711 Deposits from Bank of Spain - 344711
Deposits from credit institutions - 2,915,765 Deposits from other central banks ; -
Customer de.posiits. B i dratilee Valuation adjustments - 134
Other financial liabilities 101 290,745 ) 344,845

101 6,991,409
Valuation adjustments - 8,905

101 7,000,314
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15.3. Financial liabilities at amortized cost - THOUSANDS OF EUROS
Deposits from credit institutions 2012 2011

After the spin-off process performed in 2012, no balance had 2 GEEEEpTEE. (e EeeT:

been recognised in this item in the balance sheet (see Note =Eall] . 2,078,865
1.1). The breakdown, by geographical area of residence of the Other EMU countries . 530,704
counterparty and type of instrument, of the balance of this item Rest of the world . 307,446
in the balance sheets at 31 December 2011 is as follows: - 2,917,015
By type of instrument:
Demand deposits and other-
Other accounts - 1,943,385
Time deposits-
Time deposits - 685,626
Repurchase agreements - 286,754
- 2,915,765
Valuation adjustments: - 1,250
- 2,917,015
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15.4. Financial liabilities at amortized cost -
Customer deposits

After the spin-off process performed in 2012, no balance had
been recognised in this item in the balance sheet (see Note
1.1). The breakdown, by geographical area of residence of the
counterparty, type of instrument and type of counterparty, of
the balance of this item in the balance sheets at 31 December
2011 is as follows:

Balance sheets
and accounts
CECA Group

THOUSANDS OF EUROS

2012 2011
By geographical location:
Spain - 2,587,027
Other EMU countries - 858,175
Rest of the world - 2,507
- 3,447,709
By counterparty:
Resident public sector - 194,470
Non-resident public sector - 1,484
Other resident sectors - 2,386,729
Other non-resident sectors - 21,368
Central counterparties - 836,137
- 3,440,188
Valuation adjustments - 7,521
- 3,447,709
By type of instrument:
Current accounts - 2,532,722
Other demand deposits - 24,044
Fixed-term deposits - 24,044
Repurchase agreements - 247,285
- 3,440,188
Valuation adjustments = 7521
- 3,447,709
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15.5. Financial liabilities at amortized cost - Other

financial liabilities

The balance of “Special Accounts” in the foregoing table
includes, among other items, unsettled securities underwriting
transactions and other unsettled transactions performed

The breakdown of the balance of this item in the balance sheets at in organized markets totaling EUR 35,203 thousand at 31

31 December 2012 and 2011 is as follows:

THOUSANDS OF EUROS

December 2011.

The balance of “Other” in the above table includes EUR 162,900

thousand at 31 December 2011 relating the means of payments

2012 2011
Payment obligations 45 9,023
Collateral received - 20,076
Tax collection accounts 56 6,676
Special accounts - 35,362
Other - 219,608

101 290,745

operating procedures of certain credit institutions done through
the Bank. The related balances are transitory and are settled on
the first business day following the date on which they arose.
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16. Provisions THOUSANDS OF EUROS
NET ADDITIONS/

16.1. Provisions (net) (REVERSALS)

2012 2011

After the spin-off process performed in 2012, no balance had

. . . . Additions to/(Reversal of) provisions
been recognised in this item in the balance sheet (see Note

for pensions and similar obligations - 58,504
1.1). The detail, according to the purpose of the net provisions (Note 16.2)
recognized, of this item in the income statements for 2011 is Additions to/ (Reversal of) provisions for
as follows: contingent liabilities and commitments - 3
(Note 16.3)
Additions to/ (Reversal of) other .
provisions (Note 16.3) IASE
- 132,775
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16.2. Provisions - Provisions for pensions and
similar obligations

After the spin-off process performed in 2012, no balance had been
recognised in this item in the balance sheet (see Note 1.1). The
breakdown of this item in the balance sheets at 31 December
2012 and 2011 and the changes therein in 2012 and 2011, are
as follows:

THOUSANDS OF EUROS

PENSION OTHER LONG-
OBLIGATIONS TERM BENEFITS
(NOTE 2.11.1) (NOTE 2.11.2.1) TOTAL
Balances at 1 January 2011 9,453 - 9,453
Net addition/(reversal) charged/(credited) to income (Note 16.1) (3,744) 62,248 58,504
Payments to early retirees and contributions to the external pension plan - (3,470) (3,470)
Current service cost (Note 36) 59 - 59
Financial cost (Note 30) 351 570 921
Balances at 31 December 2011 6,119 59,348 65,467
Spin-off effect (Note 1.1) (6,119) (59,348) (65,467)
Net addition/(reversal) charged/(credited) to income (Note 16.1) - - -
Payments to early retirees and contributions to the external pension plan - - -
Current service cost (Note 36) - - -
Financial cost (Note 30) - - -
Balances at 31 December 2012 - - -
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16.3. Provisions - Provisions for contingent liabilities
and commitments and other provisions

The changesin 2012 and 2011 in the balances of these items
in the balance sheets at 31 December 2012 and 2011 were
as follows:

THOUSANDS OF EUROS

PROVISIONS FOR

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES OTHER
AND COMMITMENTS PROVISIONS
(NOTES 2.10 AND 22)
Balances at 1 January 2011 14 66,559
Net addition/(reversal) charged/(credited) to income (Note 16.1) 3 74,268
Amounts used - 9)
Balances at 31 December 2011 17 140,818
Spin-off effect (Note 1.1.) (17) (140,818)

Net addition/ (reversal) charged/(credited) to income (Note 16.1)

Amounts used

lances at 31 December 2012

At 31 December 2011, the balance of “Other Provisions” in
the foregoing table included the amounts allocated by the
Confederacién to cover certain liabilities and contingencies
arising from its business activities.
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17. Valuation adjustments

17.1. Valuation adjustments - Available-for-sale
financial assets

This item in the balance sheets at 31 December 2011 includes
the amount, net of the related tax effect, of changes in the fair
value of assets classified as available-for-sale assets (see Note
7) which, as stated in Note 2, should be recognized in the
Confederaciéon’s equity; these changes are recognized in the
income statements when the assets which gave rise to them are
sold or when these assets become impaired. The accompanying
statements of recognized income and expense show the changes
in 2012 and 2011 in this item in the balance sheets at 31
December 2012 and 2011.

18. Non-voting equity units and
associated funds

“Equity - Other Equity Instruments - Non-Voting Equity Units
and Associated Funds” in the balance sheets at 31 December
2011 included EUR 30,051 thousand, which corresponded to
the carrying value of the 5000 participation certificates of
EUR 6,010.12 face value each, issued by the Confederaciéon
and fully subscribed and paid by the federated member savings
banks. These certificates, which were deemed to be equity,
can only be transferred between federated savings banks.

As part of the spin-off process (see Note 1.1), on 13 November
2012, the Confederacién repurchased the non-voting equity units
issuedin 1988 which were recognized in equityinits balance sheet
at 31 December 2011. It made an offer to the holders of these
non-voting equity units, the acceptance of which would give rise
to a simultaneous, irrevocable commitment to subscribe ordinary
shares of Cecabank, S.A. for a cash amount equal to that of the
repurchased non-voting equity units. As previously stated, in the
Note 1.1 the Confederacion had developed its activities indirectly
through Cecabank. The repurchase offer amounted to EUR
81,089 thousand, i.e. EUR 16,217.83 per non-voting equity unit.
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Since most of the holders of the non-voting equity units
accepted this offer and, as a result, became shareholders of
Cecabank, S.A., the amount recognized under “Own Funds
- Other Equity Instruments - Non-Voting Equity Units and
Associated Funds” in the Confederacién’s equity at 31
December 2012 was EUR 799 thousand, relating to the non-
voting equity units that had not been redeemed. These non-
voting equity units are transferable between the savings banks
and the entities that form part of a single group of savings banks.

According to the Confederaciéon’s bylaws, each year the General
Assembly, at the proposal of the Board of Directors, will set the
remuneration on the non-voting equity units depending on the
balance of the income statement. If the balance were zero or
negative, there would be no remuneration agreement.

19. Reserves

The breakdown of “Reserves - Accumulated Reserves (Losses)”
in the balance sheets at 31 December 2012 and 2011 is as
follows:

THOUSANDS OF EUROS

2012 2011

Reserves attributed to the
Confederacion’s:

Voluntary reserves 653,175 630,387
Asset revaluation reserves = 39,094

653,175 669,481

At, 31 December 2011 the balance of “Asset Revaluation
Reserves” in the foregoing table includes the net reserves that
arose on the revaluation of certain tangible assets on the
date of first-time application of Bank of Spain Circular 4/2004
(1 January 2004). The difference in the amount recognized in
this connection at 31 December 2012 and 2011 relates to the
amount transferred to unrestricted reserves under the spin-off
process undergone in 2012 (see Note 1.1).
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20. Tax matters

The Confederacionisthe parent company ofthe Tax Consolidation
Group number 508/12, Cecabank, S.A. being the only subsidiary.

The Confederacioén fileindividualincome tax returnsin accordance
with the applicable tax regulations.

20.1. Years open for review by the tax authorities

Pursuant to current legislation, tax settlements cannot be
deemed to be definitive until they have been reviewed by the
tax authorities or until the related statute-of-limitations period
has expired.

Accordingly, at 31 December 2012, the Confederaciéon had open
for review by the tax authorities the taxes to which their business
activities are subject, and for which at that date, had not passed
within four years from the end of his term voluntary declaration.

Balance sheets
and accounts
CECA Group

Because of the varying interpretations that can be made of the
tax legislation, the outcome of any reviews of the open years
by the tax authorities might give rise to tax liabilities which
cannot be objectively quantified at the present time. However,
the tax advisers and directors of the Confederacion consider that
the possibility of material liabilities arising in this connection
additional to those already recognized is remote.

In any event, in this regard it is important to take into
consideration that, as a result of the spin-off described in
Note 1.1, Cecabank, S.A. became the successor entity to the
Confederacién and assumed, in accordance with Article 90 of
the Spanish Corporation Tax Law (“the TRLIS”), approved by
Legislative Royal Decree 4/2004, of 5 March, all tax rights and
obligations in relation to the assets and rights transferred by the
Confederacién, and the obligation of satisfying the requirements
arising from the tax incentives held by the transferor insofar as
they refer to the transferred assets and rights.
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In 2012 the Confederacién was involved in a corporate
restructuring subject to the special tax neutrality regime
regulated by Title VII, Chapter VIII of the TRLIS approved by
Legislative Royal Decree 4/2004, of 5 March (see Note 1.1).

In order to comply with the provisions of Article 93 of the TRLIS
with regard to the spin-off performed by the Confederaciéon to
Cecabank, S.A,, it is hereby stated that the carrying amount
of the spun-off assets and liabilities is the same as that of the
shares of Cecabank, S.A. obtained as a result of this transaction.

20.2. Income tax

The detail of “Income Tax” in the income statements for 2012
and 2011 is as follows:

THOUSANDS OF EUROS

2012 2011
Income tax expense for the year (926) 11,020
Prior years’ and other adjustments - (776)

(926) 10,244
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20.3. Reconciliation of accounting profit to taxable
profit

The reconciliation of the income tax expense recognized for
2012 and 2011 to the accounting profit before tax multiplied
by the tax rate applicable to the Confederaciéon, and the income
tax charge recognized at 31 December 2012 and 2011 are as
follows:

THOUSANDS OF EUROS

2012 2011
Accounting profit before tax 8,413 49,000
Tax rate 30% 30%
2,524 14,700
Permanent differences:
Increases 150 36
Decreases (2,400) (1,144)
Total 274 13,592
(Tax credits)/(Tax relief) (1,200) (2,572)
Income tax expense for the year (926) 11,020
Temporary differences:
Increases - 51,392
Decreases - (15,165)
Tax withholdings and prepayments (390) (38,804)
Income tax charge for the year (1) (1,316) 8,443

(1) This amount is recognized
under “Tax assets - Current” and
“Tax Liabilities - Current” in the
balance sheets at 31 December
2012 and 2011.
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The permanent decreases in the taxable profit in the foregoing
table include, among other items, the deduction of EUR 8,000
thousand relating to the amounts the Confederacion assigned
to welfare projects in 2012 (2011: EUR 3,715 thousand) (see
Note 3).

“Tax Credits/Tax Relief” in the foregoing table includes, inter
alia, tax credits for double taxation of dividends regulated by the
Spanish Corporation Tax Law.

20.4. Tax recognized in equity

The income tax expense recognized directly in the Confede-
racién’s equity gave rise to a net credit of EUR 2,067 thousand
in 2012 and a net charge of EUR 150 thousand in 2011 to
“Valuation Adjustments”.

20.5. Deferred taxes

After the spin-off process performed in 2012 (see Note 1.1), no
balance had been recognised in this item in the balance sheet at
31 December 2012.

Pursuant to the tax legislation in force, in 2011 and previous
years certain temporary differences arose that must be taken
into account when quantifying the related income tax expense.
The deferred taxes recognized in the balance sheet at 31
December 2011 was as follows:
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THOUSANDS OF EUROS

2012 2011

Deferred tax assets arising from:
Additions and contributions to pension provisions and funds and other long-term i 31 035
obligations to employees '
Additions to provisions - 41,664
Impairment losses - 33,377
Available-for-sale debt instruments - 19,309
Available-for sale equity instruments portfolio - 1,197
Other - 1,760

- 128,342

THOUSANDS OF EUROS

2012 2011
Deferred tax liabilities arising from:
Revaluation of property - 18,044
Available-for-sale equity instruments - 13,899
Available-for-sale debt instruments - 4,540
- 36,483
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20.6. Tax credit for reinvestment of extraordinary
benefits

The amount of the income qualifying for the reinvestment tax
credit and deductions for each year is as follows:

THOUSANDS OF EUROS

INCOME RENT
YEAR QUALIFYING ACCREDITED TAX CREDIT
2010 10,681 4,448 534
2011 846 1,820 218
11,527 6,268 752

21. Fair value

21.1. Fair value of financial assets and liabilities

The fair value of the Confederacion’s financial instruments at 31
December 2011 is broken down, by class of financial asset and
liability, into the following levels in these financial statements.

> LEVEL 1: financial instruments whose fair value was
determined by reference to their quoted price in active
markets, without making any change to these assets.

> LEVEL 2: financial instruments whose fair value is estimated
by reference to quoted prices in organized markets for similar
instruments or using other valuation techniques in which
all the significant inputs are based on directly or indirectly
observable market data.

> LEVEL 3: instruments whose fair value is estimated using
valuation techniques in which certain significant inputs are
not based on observable market data.

For the purposes of Levels 2 and 3, the prices were obtained
using standard quantitative models fed by market data, which
are either directly observable or can be calibrated or calculated
using observable data. The most widely used models are the
Black, Libor Market and Hull-White models for interest rates, the
Black&Scholes model for equities and foreign currency, and the
Jarrow-Turnbull and LHP models for credit products; the most
common observable data are the interest rate, exchange rate
and certain implied volatilities, and the most widely used non-
observable data are implied correlations, certain implied volatilities
and issuer curve spreads.
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The fair value of the Confederacion’s financial instruments at 31 December 2012 and 2011, broken down as indicated above, is as
follows:

Financial assets - fair value at 31 December 2012-

THOUSANDS OF EUROS

CASH AND BALANCES WITH FINANCIAL ASSETSHELD ~ OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS AT

CENTRAL BANKS FOR TRADING FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE LOANS AND RECEIVABLES HEDGING DERIVATIVES
(NOTE 5) (NOTE 6) OR LOSS (NOTE 6) FINANCIAL ASSETS (NOTE 7) (NOTE 8) (NOTE 9)
CARRYING FAIR CARRYING FAIR CARRYING FAIR CARRYING FAIR CARRYING FAIR CARRYING FAIR

AMOUNT VALUE AMOUNT VALUE AMOUNT VALUE AMOUNT VALUE AMOUNT VALUE AMOUNT VALUE

Level 1:

Debt instruments - - - = = - - - , _ R -
Equity instruments - - - = = - - - - _ R -
Derivatives = - - - = = = - - - - -

Level 2:

Cash and balances with central banks - - - - - = - - - i , _
Loans and advances to credit institutions - - - - - - - - 13,542 13,542 = -
Loans and advances to customers - - - - - = - - - - i, -
Debt instruments = - - - = = = - - - - -
Equity instruments - - - = = - - - - - - _
Trading derivatives - - - = - - - - R - - _
Hedging derivatives - - - = = - - - - - - i}

Level 3:
Debt instruments - - = = = - - - - _ _ -
Equity instruments carried at cost - - - = = - - - . - R -

- - - - - - - - 13,542 13,542 - -
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Financial liabilities - fair value at 31 December 2012-

THOUSANDS OF EUROS

OTHER FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH FINANCIAL LIABILITIES AT
HELD FOR TRADING PROFIT OR LOSS AMORTIZED COST HEDGING DERIVATIVES
(NOTE 6) (NOTE 6) (NOTE 15) (NOTE9)
CARRYING FAIR CARRYING FAIR CARRYING FAIR CARRYING FAIR

AMOUNT VALUE AMOUNT VALUE AMOUNT VALUE AMOUNT VALUE

Level 1:
Trading derivatives - - - = - - - _
Short positions - - = = - - - -

Level 2:
Deposits from central banks - - - = - - - -
Deposits from credit institutions - - - = - - - -
Customer deposits - - - = - - - -
Trading derivatives - - = = - - - -
Other financial liabilities - - - - 101 101 - =
Hedging derivatives = - - = = - - -
- - - - 101 101 = -

Level 3:

Deposits from credit institutions - - - = - - - -
Customer deposits - - = = - . - i
Trading derivatives - - = = - - - -
Hedging derivatives - - = = - - - R
Other financial liabilities - - - = = : - -

- - - - 101 101 - -
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Financial assets - fair value at 31 December 2011-

THOUSANDS OF EUROS

CASH AND BALANCES WITH FINANCIAL ASSETSHELD ~ OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS AT

CENTRAL BANKS FOR TRADING FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT ~ AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE LOANS AND RECEIVABLES HEDGING DERIVATIVES
(NOTE 5) (NOTE 6) OR LOSS (NOTE 6) FINANCIAL ASSETS (NOTE 7) (NOTE 8) (NOTE 9)
CARRYING FAIR CARRYING FAIR CARRYING FAIR CARRYING FAIR CARRYING FAIR CARRYING FAIR
AMOUNT VALUE AMOUNT VALUE AMOUNT VALUE AMOUNT VALUE AMOUNT VALUE AMOUNT VALUE
Level 1:
Debt instruments = - 659,571 659,571 = - 3,332,492 3,332,492 1,704,087 1,690,155 = =
Equity instruments = = 39,284 39,284 = = 42,029 42,029 = = = =
Derivatives = = = = = = = = = = = =
= - 698,855 698,855 = - 3,374,521 3,374,521 1,704,087 1,690,155 = =
Level 2:
Cash and balances with central banks 492,394 492,394 - - - - - - - - - -
Loans and advances to credit institutions - - - - 493,590 493,590 - - 2,403,417 2,403,417 - -
Loans and advances to customers - - - - 506,287 506,287 - - 458,590 458,590 - -
Debt instruments - - 4,921 4,921 - - 156,241 156,241 738,553 776,299 - -
Equity instruments - - - - - - 77544 77544 - - - -
Trading derivatives - - 5,078,006 5,078,006 - - - - - - - -
Hedging derivatives - - - - - - - - - - 10 10
492,394 492,394 5,082,927 5,082,927 999,877 999,877 233,785 233,785 3,600,560 3,638,306 10 10
Level 3:
Debt instruments - - - - - - - - - 35 - -
Equity instruments carried at cost - - - - - - - - - - - -
= = = = = = = = = 35 = =
492,394 492,394 5,781,782 5,781,782 999,877 999,877 3,608,306 3,608,306 5,304,647 5,328,496 10 10
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Financial liabilities - fair value at 31 December 2011-

THOUSANDS OF EUROS

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES ~ OTHER FINANCIAL LIABILITIES ~ FINANCIAL LIABILITIES AT

HELD FOR TRADING AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH AMORTIZED COST HEDGING DERIVATIVES
(NOTE 6) PROFIT OR LOSS (NOTE 6) (NOTE 15) (NOTE 9)
CARRYING FAIR CARRYING FAIR CARRYING FAIR CARRYING FAIR
AMOUNT VALUE AMOUNT VALUE AMOUNT VALUE AMOUNT VALUE
Level 1:
Trading derivatives 38 38 = = = = = =
Short positions 343,354 343,354 = S = S = =
343,392 343,392 = = = = = =
Level 2:
Deposits from central banks = = 930,840 930,840 344,845 344,845 S =
Deposits from credit institutions - - 352,750 352,750 2917015 2,917,015 - -
Customer deposits - - 1,041,134 1,041,134 3,447709 3,447709 - -
Trading derivatives 5017255 5,017,255 - - - - - -
Other financial liabilities - - - - 290,745 290,745 - -
Hedging derivatives - - - - - - 25759 25,759
5,017,255 5,017,255 2,324,724 2,324,724 7,000,314 7,000,314 25,759 25,759
Level 3:

Deposits from credit institutions - - = = - - - _
Customer deposits - - = = - - - _
Trading derivatives - - = = - - - R
Hedging derivatives - - = = - - - _
Other financial liabilities - - - = = - - ;

5,360,647 5,360,647 2,324,724 2,324,724 7,000,314 7,000,314 25,759 25,759
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It should be mentioned, with respect to the fair values included At 31 December 2012, the fair value of the financial assets and
in the foregoing tables, that: liabilities recognised in the Confederacién’s balance sheet was

. L not significantly different from their carrying amount.
> The fair value of the loans and advances to credit institutions 9 J Jing

and the loans and advances to customers classified under Following is a detail of the changes in fair value of the Confede-
“Loans and Receivables” in the foregoing tables is the same racién’s financial instruments in respect of unrealized gains
as their carrying amount since, in view of their features and losses at 31 December 2011 which were recognized in the
(counterparties, interest rates and maturities), their fair value financial statements for 2011. The fair value of these financial
1s not significantly different from their amortized cost. instruments is calculated applying a valuation technique in

which variables are obtained from observable market data (Level
2) or using valuation techniques in which certain significant
inputs are not based on observable market data (Level 3):

> The fair value of the asset balances relating to cash and
balances with central banks shown in the foregoing tables
was estimated to be the same as their carrying amount, since
it was considered that the fair value of these items was not
significantly different from their carrying amount.

> The fair value of the liabilities classified as financial liabilities at
amortized cost in the foregoing tables was the same as their
carrying amount, since it was considered that, in view of the
maturities and interest rates of these labilities, their fair value
was not significantly different from their amortized cost.
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THOUSANDS OF EUROS
NET GAIN/ (LOSS)
2012 2011
Level 2
Financial assets held for trading
Derivatives - 1,086,899
Debt instruments - 102
Other financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Loans and advances to credit institutions - 539
Loans and advances to customers - 855
Financial liabilities held for trading
Derivatives = (1,040,071)
Hedging derivatives (asset balances) - (159)
Hedging derivatives (liability balances) - (21,182)
Other financial liabilities at fair value through profit or 1oss
Deposits from central banks - (117)
Deposits from credit institutions - 29
Customer deposits - (11,934)
Loans and receivables
Debt instruments - B
Available-for-sale financial assets
Debt instruments - -
Equity instruments - -
- 14,961
Level 3
Financial assets held for trading
Debt instruments - B
- 14,961
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21.2. Fair value of tangible assets

After the spin-off process performed in 2012, no balance had been
recognised in this item in the balance sheet (see Note 1.1). The
only tangible assets owned by the Confederacién whose carrying
amount differs significantly from their fair value are the properties
owned by it. At 31 December 2011, the carrying amount of
these properties amounted to EUR 86,849 thousand and their
estimated fair value at that date was EUR 145,106 thousand.

The aforementioned fair value was estimated by Tinsa, S.A. using
generally accepted valuation techniques.

Balance sheets
and accounts
CECA Group

22. Exposure to credit risk associated with
financial instruments

22.1. Credit risk management objectives, policies
and processes

Credit risk i1s defined as the risk that affects, or might affect,
results or capital as a result of non-compliance by a borrower
with its contractual obligations, or of the borrower failing to act
as agreed. This category includes:

> Principal risk: the risk of loss of the principal delivered.

> Replacement cost or counterparty risk: this relates to the
counterparty’s ability and intention to meet its contractual
obligations on maturity. Credit risk exists throughout the
term of the transaction, but it can vary from one day to
the next due to the settlement mechanisms involved and to
changes in the marking to market.

> |ssuer risk: this risk arises when trading the financial assets
of an issuer as a result of a change in the market perception
of the issuer’s economic and financial strength.
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> Settlement or delivery risk: the risk that one of the
parties to the transaction fails to deliver the agreed-upon
consideration.

> Country risk: it is the credit risk associated with debts held
by debtors in a given country due to circumstances other
than normal commercial risk. It may take the form of transfer
risk, sovereign risk or other risks arising from international
financial activity.

> Concentration risk: measures the extent of the concentration
of credit risk exposure to a specific geographical area/
country, economic sector, product and customer group.

> Residual risk: includes risk derived from hedging strategies,
credit risk mitigation techniques, securitization, etc.

After the spin-off process performed in 2012, the Confederacion
spun off its financial activity to Cecabank, S.A. and, accordingly,
at 31 December 2012, the Confederacion’s directors consider
that it does not have any credit risk exposure (see Note 1.1),
since the only financial asset it had recognised in its balance
sheet is the current/demand account held with Cecabank, S.A.

22.2. Maximum credit risk exposure level

After the spin-off process performed in 2012 (see Note 1.1), the
Confederacién’s maximum level of credit risk exposure relates to
the amount recognised under “Loans and Receivables - Loans
and Advances to Credit Institutions”, which relates to the current/
demand account held with Cecabank, S.A . The following tables
show the maximum level of exposure to credit risk assumed by
the Confederacion at 31 December 2011 by class and category
of financial instrument, without deducting the collateral or other
guarantees received by the Confederacion to ensure debtors
meet their obligations:
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Page 1 of 3
31 December 2011: THOUSANDS OF EURO
ASSETS
FINANCIAL ASSET AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS
AVAILABLE-
FINANCIAL FOR-SALE
ASSET HELD FINANCIAL LOANS AND HEDGING
FORTRADING  OTHER ASSETS ASSETS RECEIVABLES DERIVATIVES ~ MEMORANDUM
(NOTE6.1)(1)  (NOTE6.2) (NOTE 7) (NOTE 8) (NOTE 9) ITEMS TOTAL
1. Debt instruments
1.1. Loans and advances to credit institutions - 493166 - 2,402,122 - - 2,895,288
Reverse repurchase agreements - 493166 - - - - 493,166
Time deposits - - - 811,789 - - 811,789
Guarantee deposts on securities i i ) 193 629 i i 193 629
lending transactions
Doubtful assets - - - - - - -
Other accounts and other - - - 1,296,704 - - 1,296,704
1.2. Debt instruments 664,492 - 3,522,806 2567120 - - 6,754,418
Government debt securities 623,043 - 842,720 - - - 1,465,763
Treasury bills - - 2,026,369 - - - 2,026,369
Other public institutions - - 14,979 - - - 14,979
Spanish credit institutions 22,359 - 170,166 1,916,195 - - 2,108,720
Non-resident credit institutions - - 110,070 - - - 110,070
Private sector (Spain) 19,090 - 332,330 450,369 - - 801,789
Private sector (rest of the world) - - 26172 101,168 - - 127,340
Doubtful assets - - - 99,388 - - 99,388

(1) The maximum credit risk exposure of the instruments included in the foregoing table was taken to be their fair value at 31 December 2011.
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Page 2 of 3
THOUSANDS OF EURO
ASSETS
FINANCIAL ASSET AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS
AVAILABLE-
FINANCIAL FOR-SALE
ASSET HELD FINANCIAL LOANS AND HEDGING
FORTRADING ~ OTHER ASSETS ASSETS RECEIVABLES ~ DERIVATIVES ~ MEMORANDUM
(NOTE6.1)(1)  (NOTE6.2) (NOTE 7) (NOTE 8) (NOTE9) ITEMS TOTAL
1.3. Loans and advances to customers - 506,351 - 460,364 - - 966,715
Reverse repurchase agreements - 506,351 - - - - 506,351
Mortgage loans - - - 49,576 - - 49,576
Guarantee deposits on securities i i i i i i i
lending transactions
Other loans and credits - - - 269,575 - - 269,575
Doubtful assets - - - 41 - - 41
Other assets - - - 141172 - - 141172
Total debt instruments 664,492 999,517 3,522,806 5,429,606 - - 10,616,421
2. Contingent liabilities
Financial guarantees (Note 28.1) - - - - - 68,445 68,445
Documentary credits (Note 28.1) - - - - - 6,072 6,072
Total contingent liabilities - - - - - 74,517 74,517
3.0ther exposures
Derivatives 5,078,006 - - - 10 - 5,078,016
Contingent commitments (Note 28.3) - - - - - 1,260,860 1,260,860
Total other exposures 5,078,006 - - - 10 1,260,860 6,338,876

(1) The maximum credit risk exposure of the instruments included in the foregoing table was taken to be their fair value at 31 December 2011.
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Page 3 of 3
THOUSANDS OF EURO
ASSETS
FINANCIAL ASSET AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS
AVAILABLE-
FINANCIAL FOR-SALE
ASSET HELD FINANCIAL LOANS AND HEDGING
FORTRADING  OTHER ASSETS ASSETS RECEIVABLES DERIVATIVES  MEMORANDUM
(NOTE6.1)(1)  (NOTE6.2) (NOTE 7) (NOTE 8) (NOTE 9) ITEMS TOTAL
4, Less: recognized impairment losses - - (2,130) (131,453) - 17) (133,600)

Maximum credit risk exposure
level (1+2+3+4)

Valuation adjustments - 360
5,742,498 999,877

5,742,498 999,517

Total accounting balance

3,520,676 5,298,153 10 1,335,360 16,896,214

(31,943) 6,494 - - (25,089)
3,488,733 5,304,647 10 1,335,360 16,871,125

(1) The maximum credit risk exposure of the instruments included in the foregoing table was taken to be their fair value at 31 December 2011.

With respect to the credit derivatives arranged by the
Confederacioén, the foregoing tables include only the fair value
thereof at 31 December 2011.

The contingent liabilities are presented at the maximum amount
guaranteed by the Confederaciéon. In general, it is considered
that most of these balances will expire without any actual

financing obligation arising for the Confederacién. The collateral
on these transactions must also be taken into account (see
Note 22.3 below). The (drawable) balances of the contingent
liabilities are presented at the maximum amounts drawable by
the counterparties.
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22.3. Collateral received and other credit
enhancements

Contractual netting and financial guarantee or collateral
agreements

The Confederacién’s policy with regard to the arrangement of
transactionsinvolving financial derivative products, repos, sell/buy
backs and securities lending is to enter into contractual netting
agreements drafted by national or international associations.
These agreements enable the transactions performed thereunder
to be terminated and settled early in the event of default by the
counterparty in such a way that the parties can only claim the
net balance resulting from the settlement of such transactions.

Derivative financial instruments are arranged using ISDA Master
Agreements, which are subject to the laws of England and Wales
or the State of New York, or the Framework Agreement for
Financial Transactions (CMOF) which is subject to Spanish law,

Balance sheets
and accounts
CECA Group

depending on the counterparty. Financial guarantee agreements,
namely the Credit Support Annex for ISDA Master Agreements
and Appendix lll for CMOFs, are entered into to hedge derivative
financial instruments exceeding certain risk levels.

Standard Global Master Repurchase Agreements (GMRA) are
enteredintofor repo and sell/buy back transactions, while standard
European Master Agreement (EMA) or Global Master Securities
Lending Agreements (GMSLA) are used for securities lending
transactions. The clauses of these types of contractual netting
agreements include regulations on the financial guarantees or
spreads on the transactions.

Following is a detail of the Confederacion’s maximum credit risk
exposure to each financial instrument class secured by collateral or
other credit enhancements in addition to the personal guarantee
of the borrower, disregarding recognized impairment losses, at 31
December 2011:
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THOUSANDS OF EURO

SECURED
BY SPANISH SECURED
GOVERNMENT  BY OTHER
GOVERNMENT- DEBT FIXED-INCOME ~ SECURED BY NETTING SECURED BY

GUARANTEED
SECURED BY BY CREDIT

BACKED SECURITIES SECURITIES SHARES AGREEMENTS MORTGAGE ~ CASH DEPOSITS  INSTITUTIONS TOTAL
1. Debt instruments
1.1. Loans and advances to credit institutions : 229,313 263,853 293,629 S S = = 786,795
Reverse repurchase agreements = 229,313 263,853 = = = = = 493166
endng ransactons ' ' D R ' - . =
Time deposits = = = = = = = = =
1.2. Debt instruments 2,618,242 = S S S S S = 2,618,242
1.3. Loans and advances to customers - 403,004 303,347 = = 49,576 = s 755,927
Reverse repurchase agreements = 403,004 103,347 = = = = = 506,351
Mortgage loans S S S S S 49,576 S S 49,576
Qe eyt n s . T L
Total debt instruments 2,618,242 632,317 567,200 293,629 = 49,576 4,160,964
2. Contingent liabilities
Financial bank guarantees - 68,445 - - - - - - 68,445
Documentary credits = = = = = = = 6,072 6,072
Total contingent liabilities = 68,445 = = = = = 6,072 74,517
3. Other exposures
Derivatives = = = = 2,341,089 = = 2,341,089
Total other exposures = = = = 2,341,089 = = 2,341,089
Total amount covered 2,618,242 700,762 567,200 293,629 2,341,089 49,576 = 6,072 6,576,570
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22.4. Credit quality of unimpaired, non-past-due
financial assets

22.4.1. Analysis of credit risk exposure by credit rating

At 31 December 2011, 65% of the exposure had been rated by a
credit rating agency recognized by the Bank of Spain.

The distribution, by rating, of the rated exposure is as follows:

LEVEL RATING (*) PERCENTAGE

1 AAA-AA 4.6%
2 A 26.6%
3 BBB 44.6%
4 BB 18.6%
5 B 0%
6 CCC and below 5.6%

TOTAL 100%

(*) The exposures were classified taking the most conservative of the ratings
granted by the three rating agencies used to manage the Confederacién’s
risk: Fitch, Moody’s and S&P.

Balance sheets
and accounts
CECA Group

The table shows that, at 31 December 2011, Levels 2 and 3 ac-
counted for 71% of rated exposure, of which the savings banks
represented 44%, since most Spanish savings banks were in
these categories.

After the spin-off process performed in 2012 (see Note 1.1.), the
credit risk exposure is not presented by credit rating, since the
only financial asset held by the Confederacion in its balance
sheet at 31 December 2012 is a current/demand account it
holds with Cecabank, S.A .

22.4.2. Classification of credit risk exposure by counterparty

As indicated above in Note 15, the only financial asset held by
the Confederacion in its balance sheet at 31 December 2012 is
a current/demand account held with Cecabank, S.A., which was
recognised under “Loans and Receivables - Loans and Advances
to Credit Institutions ”.
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Following is a detail, by counterparty, of the maximum credit risk exposure (disregarding recognized impairment losses) in connection
with financial assets not past-due or impaired at 31 December 2011:

31 December 2011:

THOUSANDS OF EUROS Page 1 of 2
RESIDENT OTHER NON-RESIDENT OTHER
RESIDENT PUBLIC CREDIT RESIDENT OTHER NON-RESIDENT CREDIT NON-RESIDENT
SECTOR INSTITUTIONS ENTITIES RESIDENTS PUBLIC SECTOR INSTITUTIONS SECTORS TOTAL
1. Debt instruments
1.1. Loans and advances to credit institutions = 2,671,632 = = = 223,656 = 2,895,288
Reverse repurchase agreements = 493166 = = = = = 493166
Time deposits = 746,351 = = = 65,438 = 811,789
E‘;i:ﬁgtf;s::ﬁgj:” securities : 289,659 - : - 3,970 - 293629
Other accounts = 1,134,947 = = = 153,828 = 1,288,775
Other = 7,509 = = = 420 = 7929
1.2. Debt instruments 3,507,102 2,108,720 801,789 = 9 110,070 127,340 6,655,030
1.3. Loans and advances to customers 308 = 617,395 118,740 13 s 230,218 966,674
Reverse repurchase agreements = = 506,351 = = = = 506,351
Guarantee deposits on securities ) i i ) i ) i )
lending transactions
Other loans and credits 308 = = 69,146 13 = 200,090 269,575
Mortgage loans = = = 49,576 = = = 49,576
Other assets = = 111,044 = = = 30,128 141,172
Total debt instruments 3,507,410 4,780,352 1,419,184 118,740 22 333,726 357558 10,516,992
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Page 2 of 2
31 December 2011:
THOUSANDS OF EUROS
RESIDENT OTHER NON-RESIDENT OTHER
RESIDENT PUBLIC CREDIT RESIDENT OTHER NON-RESIDENT CREDIT NON-RESIDENT
SECTOR INSTITUTIONS ENTITIES RESIDENTS PUBLIC SECTOR INSTITUTIONS SECTORS TOTAL

2. Contingent liabilities

Financial bank guarantees = 68,445 = = 68,445

Documentary credits S S 6,072 S S 6,072
Total contingent liabilities = 68,445 6,072 74,517
3. Other exposures

Derivatives = 2,970,390 1,604,141 = = 503,485 5,078,016

Contingent commitments 875,550 26,761 358,249 = = = 300 1,260,860
Total other exposures 875,550 2,997,151 1,962,390 503,485 300 6,338,876
Total 4,382,960 7,845,948 3,387,646 118,740 22 837,211 357,858 16,930,385

22.5. Information on non-performing loans ratios

After the spin-off process performed in 2012 (see Note 1.1), the
Confederaciéon had not recognised any doubtful assets in its
balance sheet at 31 December 2012. In view of the activities
carried on by the Confederacién and the risk profile assumed by it,
its non-performing loans ratios, measured as doubtful assets as a
percentage of total credit risk, was 0.59% at 31 December 2011.

22.6. Financial assets renegotiated in the year

Itis worth mentioning thatduring 2012 and 2011, given activities
carried on by the Confederacion and the risk profile assumed by
it, no financial instruments had their original financial terms and
conditions significantly renegotiated.
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22.7. Impaired assets

After the spin-off process performed in 2012 (see Note 1.1), the
Confederacion had not recognised any impaired assets in its
balance sheet at 31 December 2012. Following is a detail, by
method used to calculate impairment losses, of the financial
assets considered to be impaired due to credit risk at 31
December 2011:

THOUSANDS OF EUROS

31 DECEMBER 2012 31 DECEMBER 2011
FINANCIAL ASSETS FINANCIAL ASSETS FINANCIAL ASSETS FINANCIAL ASSETS
INDIVIDUALLY COLLECTIVELY INDIVIDUALLY COLLECTIVELY
ASSESSED AS ASSESSED AS TOTAL IMPAIRED ASSESSED AS ASSESSED AS TOTAL IMPAIRED
IMPAIRED IMPAIRED ASSETS IMPAIRED IMPAIRED ASSETS
1. Debt instruments
1.1. Loans and advances to credit institutions g g . = g g
1.2. Debt instruments - - - 99,388 - 99,388
1.2.Loans and advances to customers - - - 41 - 41
Total debt instruments = = = 99,429 = 99,429
2. Contingent liabilities
2.1. Financial bank guarantees - - - - - -
2.2.Documentary credits - - - - - -
Total contingent liabilities = = = = = =
3. Other exposures
3.1. Derivatives - - - - - -
3.2.Contingent commitments - - - - - -
Total other exposures = = s = = S
Total = = = 99,429 = 99,429
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Assets (secured loans) presented by the Confederacién in the
foregoing table as “individually impaired” at 31 December
2011 were classified on the basis of an analysis of each such
transaction, taking into account factors such as the financial
position and solvency of the debtors, adverse changes in the fair
value of the assets, gave rise to impairment, and other evidence
justifying their classification as individually impaired under
current legislation.

In connection with the information provided in the foregoing
tables, it should be noted that financial assets classified as at fair
value through profit or loss which might be impaired due to credit
risk were not included, since when such assets are measured at
fair value, any impairment losses are recognized as an adjustment
to fair value in the Confederacién’s financial statements.

All the transactions considered by the Confederaciéon to be
impaired at 31 December 2011 were classified under the “Loans
and Receivables” category.

22.8. Changes in impairment losses

After the spin-off process performed in 2012 (see Note 1.1), no
balance had been recognised in this item in the balance sheet at
31 December 2012. Following are the changes in the impairment
losses due to credit risk recognized by the Confederaciéon in
2012 and 2011:
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2012:
THOUSANDS OF EUROS
NET ADDITIONS
BALANCE AT SPIN-OFF EFFECT (REVERSALS) TRANSFERS AMOUNTS BALANCE AT
31 DECEMBER 1 JANUARY2012 CHARGED (CREDITED) BETWEEN USED IN THE 31 DECEMBER
2011 (NOTE 1.1) TO INCOME ITEMS YEAR 2012
1. Impairment losses not specifically identified
1.1. Debt instruments
Loans and advances to credit institutions 5 (5) = S = =
Debt instruments 2,130 (2,130) = = = =
Loans and advances to customers 1,962 (1,962) = S = =
Total debt instruments 4,097 (4,097) = = = =
1.2. Contingent liabilities
Financial bank guarantees 17 17) = S S =
Total contingent liabilities 17 a7 = S = =
1.3. Other exposures- = = S = = =
TOTAL 4,114 4,114) = - - -
2.Specifically identified impairment losses
2.1. Debt instruments
Loans and advances to credit institutions - - - - - -
Debt instruments 129,452 (129,452) - - - -
Loans and advances to customers 34 (34) - - - -
Total debt instruments 129,486 (129,486) = S S S
2.2. Contingent liabilities = = = = = =
Total contingent liabilities - - - - - -
2.3. Other exposures - - - - - -
TOTAL 129,486 (129,486) = = = =
Total impairment losses (1+2) 133,600 (133,600) = = = =
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2011:
THOUSANDS OF EUROS
NET ADDITIONS
BALANCE AT (REVERSALS) AMOUNTS OTHER BALANCE AT
1 JANUARY CHARGED (CREDITED) TRANSFERS USED IN THE CHANGES 31 DECEMBER
2011 TO INCOME (**) BETWEEN ITEMS YEAR *) 2011
1. Impairment losses not specifically identified
1.1. Debt instruments
Loans and advances to credit institutions 59 (54) = = = 5
Debt instruments 2,819 (689) = = = 2,130
Loans and advances to customers 1,127 835 S = = 1,962
Total debt instruments 4,005 92 = = 3 4,097
1.2. Contingent liabilities
Financial bank guarantees 14 3 S = = 17
Total contingent liabilities 14 2 = = = 17
1.3. Other exposures S = = = = =
(*) Basically includes adjustments TOTAL 4,019 95 = = = 4114
for differences in change. 2. Specifically identified impairment losses
(**) Of the total, EUR 10,424 2.1. Debt instruments
Ehous:_and arelrecognizeciunden Loans and advances to credit institutions = = = = = =
ey et e Debt instruments (+*%) 142,969 (10,526) : (3,858) 867 129,452
under “ Provisions (net) (see Note Loans and advances to customers 24 10 = = = 34
16.1) in the income statement for Total debt instruments 142,993 (10,516) = (3,858) 867 129,486
the year 2011. 2.2. Contingent liabilities - - - - - -
(***) Of the total of EUR 129,452 Total contingent liabilities - - - - - -
T - - - - :
securities, 30,065 thousand relate TOTAL 142,993 (10,516) = (3,858) 867 129,486
to providing substandard. Total impairment losses (1+2) 147,012 (10,421) = (3,858) 867 133,600
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After the spin-off process performed in 2012 (see Note 1.1), no
balance had been recognised in thisitem in the income statement
at 31 December 2012. Following is a detail, by financial
instrument category, of the impairment losses recognized by the
Confederacién due to credit risk at 31 December 2011:

Page 1 of 2
31 December 2011:
PROVISIONS FOR
CONTINGENT
LIABILITIES AND
AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE LOANS AND COMMITMENTS
FINANCIAL ASSETS RECEIVABLES (NOTE 16.3) TOTAL
1. Impairment losses not specifically identified
1.1. Debt instruments
Loans and advances to credit institutions - 5 - 5
Debt instruments 2,130 - - 2,130
Loans and advances to customers - 1,962 - 1,962
Total debt instruments 2,130 1,967 - 4,097
1.2. Contingent liabilities
Financial bank guarantees - - 17 17
Total contingent liabilities - - 17 17
1.3. Other exposures - - - -
TOTAL 2,130 1,967 17 4,114
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Page 2 of 2
PROVISIONS FOR
CONTINGENT
LIABILITIES AND
AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE LOANS AND COMMITMENTS
FINANCIAL ASSETS RECEIVABLES (NOTE 16.3) TOTAL
2. Specifically identified impairment losses
2.1. Debt instruments
Loans and advances to credit institutions = = - =
Debt instruments = 129,452 = 129,452
Loans and advances to customers = 34 = 34
Total debt instruments = 129,486 = 129,486
2.2. Contingent liabilities - - - -
2.3. Other exposures - - - -
TOTAL = 129,486 = 129,486
Total impairment losses (1+2) 2,130 131,453 17 133,600

As previously stated, pursuant to the applicable legislation,
the Confederacién does not calculate impairment losses due to
credit risk on equity instruments owned by the Confederacion
(impairment losses on these financial assets are calculated as
set forth in Note 2.3) and on debt instruments classified at fair

value through profit or loss since, because they are carried at fair
value, any changes in fair value due to credit risk are recognized
immediately in the income statement. Accordingly, these
impairment losses are not included in the foregoing tables.
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22.9. Past-due but not impaired assets

At 31 December 2012 and 2011 the Confederacién had not
recognized any material past-due but not impaired assets in its
financial statements.

22.10. Write-off of impaired financial assets

At 31 December 2012 and 2011 the Confederacién did not
have any material financial assets that, pursuant to the criteria
set forth in Note 2, had been written off due to credit risk, and
there were no significant changes in this connection in 2012
and 2011.

22.11. Exposure to real estate risk

After the spin-off process performed in 2012, no balance had
been recognised in this item in the balance sheet (see Note 1.1).
The only operations granted by the Confederacion concerning
real state exposure are those loans intended to be used for
housing acquisition, which are granted to its employees.
Following is a detail of the loans and credits, with or without
mortgage to households for house purchase included in this the
balance sheet as of 31 December 2011:

THOUSANDS OF EUROS

FROM WHICH:
GROSS AMOUNT DOUBTFUL

Credit for house
purchase
Without mortgage 1,991 23
guarantee
With mortgage guarantee 49,576 -

51,567 23
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Following is the breakdown of credit with mortgage guarantee
to households for house purchase, according to the percentage
represented by the total risk over the amount of the last available
valuation (loan to value) of 31 December 2011:

THOUSANDS OF EUROS

RISK OVER THE AMOUNT OF THE LAST AVAILABLE VALUATION

MORE THAN 40% AND MORE THAN 60% MORE THAN 80%

LESS OR EQUAL THAN LESS OR EQUAL AND LESS OR EQUAL  AND LESS OR EQUAL
40% THAN 60% THAN 80% THAN 100% MORE THAN 100% TOTAL

Gross amount 18,951 7940 16,519 6,166 = 49576
From which: Doubtful = - = - i

22.12. Other disclosures on credit risk

At 31 December 2012 and 2011 the amount of accrued un-
collected past-due receivables on impaired financial assets was
not material. In 2012 and 2011 no guarantees associated with
financial assets owned by the Confederacién were executed in
order to guarantee the collection thereof.
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23. Exposure to market risk

23.1. Market risk management

Market risk is defined as the risk that affects results or capital
as a result of adverse changes in the prices of bonds, securities
and commodities and in the exchange rates of transactions
recognized in the trading book. This risk arises in market making
and trading activities and the taking of positions in bonds,
securities, foreign currencies, commodities and derivatives (on
bonds, securities, currencies and commaodities). This risk includes
foreign currency risk, which is defined as the actual or potential
risk that affects results or capital as a result of adverse changes
in exchange rates in the banking book.

After the spin-off process performed in 2012 (see Note 1.1), the
Confederacién spun off its financial activity to Cecabank, S.A.
and, accordingly, its exposure to this risk at 31 December 2012
was considered insignificant.

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the exposure to market fluctuations due to
changes in the general level of interest rates. The exposure to
interest rate risk can be divided into the following two elements:

> Directional, slope and basis risk

Directional risk is the sensitivity of income to parallel shifts
in the interest rate curve, while interest rate curve risk is the
sensitivity of gains to changes in the structure of the rate
curve, due to a change either in the slope or the shape of
the curve.

Basis risk is the potential loss arising from unexpected
changes in the spreads between the various interest rate
curves with respect to which portfolio positions are held.
Liguidity conditions in markets and the perception of the
specific risk usually trigger this type of fluctuation, although
other factors can also play a part.

> Spread risk

Spread risk arises from holding corporate bond positions
(and credit derivatives) and is defined as the exposure to the
specific risk of each issuer.

Certain circumstances relating to the market and/or the issue
itself can widen the spreads due to the liquidity premium.
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> Foreign exchange risk

Foreign exchange risk arises on the net positions of one
currency against the euro or one currency against another.
Therefore, foreign exchange risk is the potential fluctuation
in spot exchange rates affecting the value of positions.

> Interest rate spread risk

Net interest rate spread risk arises from the difference
between interest rates in two different currencies and its
effect on forward foreign currency positions.

> Equity risk

This represents the risk of incurring losses as a result of
changes in share prices.

At 31 December 2012, the Confederacion did not hold any
positions on its balance sheet subject to the risks described
above and, therefore, the exposure to these risks is considered
insignificant.
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24. Liquidity risk
24.1. Liquidity risk management

The aim of the Confederacién as regards liquidity risk is to have
in place at all times the instruments and processes to enable
it to meet payment commitments, so that it has available to
it the instruments to enable it to maintain sufficient levels of
liquidity to meetits payment commitments without significantly
compromising the Confederacién’s results, and to maintain the
mechanisms to enable it to meet its payment commitments in
the event of various eventualities.

Liquidity risk
Liguidity risk is defined as:

> The uncertainty regarding the availability, at reasonable prices,
of funds to enable the Confederacion to meet its commitments
when recourse to external financing is difficult for a particular
period of time.

> The maintenance or generation of levels of liquidity required to
finance future business growth.
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In other words, this risk reflects the probability of incurring
losses or having to reject new business or growth in current
business as a result of being unable to meet commitments
normally when they fall due or being unable to finance
additional needs at market rates. In order to mitigate this risk,
the Confederacién periodically monitors its liquidity conditions
and assesses any action that may be required. Furthermore,
the Confederacién has planned measures to enable it to restore
the Confederaciéon’s overall financial equilibrium in the event of
a possible shortfall in liquidity.

24.2. Analysis of the liquidity gap

The liquidity gap is the profile of maturities and settlements by
risk type (assets and liabilities classified by residual maturity plus
the interest flows arising from all the balance sheet aggregates)
and shows the mismatch structure in the balance sheet in terms
of cash inflows and outflows. Its purpose is to measure the net
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funding required or the net excess of funds for various time
horizons. Accordingly, it reflects the liquidity level maintained
under normal market conditions. This measure provides
information on contractual and non-contractual cash inflows and
outflows (pursuant to historical-behavior based assumptions to
which statistical analyses are applied).

After the spin-off process performed in 2012 (see Note 1.1), since,
at 31 December 2012, the Confederacion held available-for-sale
financial assets that exceeded the financial liabilities due to mature,
its exposure to this risk was considered. Following is a detail at
31 December 2011 of the Confederacién’s main financial assets
and liabilities (other than derivatives) at those dates, classified by
residual maturity and estimated on the basis of their contractual
conditions, excluding the related valuation adjustments:
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At 31 December 2011 Page 1 of 2
THOUSANDS OF EUROS
LESS THAN 1705 AFTER 5
ON DEMAND 1 MONTH 1TO3MONTHS 3 TO 12 MONTHS YEARS YEARS TOTAL

Assets:

Cash and balances with central banks 92,388 400,000 - - - - 492,388
Financial assets held for trading - Debt instruments - 1,172 55,315 233,762 210,702 163,541 664,492
Financial assets held for trading - Other equity instruments - - - - - 39,284 39,284
e D - aael6 49550 - - asaaes
g;gegdﬁvr;ear]régsLsscslfgsoi;cg?;r value through profit or loss - Loans ) 410,955 ) 95,396 ) ) 506,351
Available-for-sale financial assets - Debt instruments (*) - - 438,640 2,270,366 416,222 365,635 3,490,863
Available-for-sale financial assets - Other equity instruments (**) - - - - - 119,573 119,573
Loans and receivables - Loans and advances to credit institutions 592,437 1,672,051 105,539 31,275 700 120 2,402,122
Loans and receivables - Loans and advances to customers 162,439 240,854 4 261 3,367 53,439 460,364
Loans and receivables - Debt instruments - - 52,918 2,102,966 233,096 178,140 2,567,120
Total at 31 December 2011 847,264 3,168,648 701,966 4,734,026 864,087 919,732 11,235,723

(*) Including valuation adjustments relating to accrued interest and valuation gains or losses.
(**) Presented at fair value.
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Cajas de Ahorros (CECA) Cecabank CECA Group
At 31 December 2011 Page 2 of 2
THOUSANDS OF EUROS
LESS THAN 1705 AFTER 5
ON DEMAND 1 MONTH 1TO3MONTHS 3 TO 12 MONTHS YEARS YEARS TOTAL

Liabilities:

Financial liabilities held for trading - short positions - 343,354 - - - - 343,354
Other financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss - : ) _ :

Deposits from central banks 683,551 Slalss 95050,
Other ﬁnancial h'abjh'ﬁes at fair value through profit or loss - } 352,757 ) ) . } 352,757
Deposits from credit institutions

Other financial h_ablhtles at fair value through profit or loss - ) 573358 123103 337603 ) ) 1034,064
Customer deposits

Financial liabilities at amortised cost - Deposits from central banks - 4,935 339,776 - - - 344,711
Fmapqal liabilities at amortised cost - Deposits from credit 1070326 1775929 21057 48453 ) ) 2915765
institutions

Financial liabilities at amortised cost - Customer deposits 2,556,765 41,107 916 836,717 1,725 2,958 3,440,188
Total at 31 December 2011 3.627.091 3.704.791 802.005 1.222.773 1.725 2.958 9.361.343
Assets minus liabilities at 31 December 2011 (2.779.827) (536.143) (100.039) 3.511.253 862.362 916.774 1.874.380
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With a view to the correct interpretation of the information
contained in the foregoing tables, it should be stated that the
assets and liabilities were classified therein in accordance with
their contractual terms and conditions and, accordingly, there
are liabilities, such as current accounts on the liability side of the
balance sheet, which are more stable and more permanent than
“on demand” (the criteria used to classify them in the foregoing
tables). Also, the assets classified as financial assets held for trading
will generally be realized earlier than their respective maturity
dates (the criterion used to classify them in the foregoing tables).

Followingis a summary ofthe main assumptions used to construct
the liquidity gap:

> For demand deposits (without contractual maturities) and
non-sensitive assets, a settlement assumption is performed
on the basis of a quantitative model which analyses the
performance of the historical balances for the last two years.

> For transactions related to securitizations, early repayment
and default assumptions based on the historical behavior of
the portfolio using information provided by the securitizations
vehicle are used.

> Dividends from equity securities and investees are included
in the gap on the assumption that they are paid at year-end
and that their amount is at least equal to the yield on a one-
year deposit.

25. On-balace-sheet interest rate risk
management

On-balance-sheet structural interest rate risk can be defined as
the exposure of the economic and financial position -resulting
from the varying maturity and repricing dates of balance sheet
items- to adverse fluctuations in interest rates. This risk is a
substantial part of the banking business and can considerably
affect the net interest margin and the economic value of capital.
Consequently, interest rate risk management that keeps this risk
at prudent levels is essential to the security and strength of the
Confederacion. (See Notes 2.6 and 9).

After the spin-off process performed in 2012, (see Note 1.1), the
Confederacion were spun off to Cecabank, S.A its financial activity.
therefore, at 31 December 2012 the exposure to these risks is
considered little significant.
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26. Risk concentration

26.1. Risk concentration by activity and
geographical area

After the spin-off process performed in 2012, (see Note 1.1),
the only financial asset held by the Confederacién is a current
account held with Cecabank, S.A., which was recognised
under “Loans and Receivables - Loans and Advances to Credit
Institutions” and was therefore classified in terms of activity as
a financial institution resident in Spain. Following is a detail, by
geographical area of residence of the counterparty, and type
and category of financial instrument, of the carrying amount
of the Confederacién’s most significant financial assets at 31
December 2011:
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31 December 2011:

THOUSANDS OF EUROS

OTHER EMU
SPAIN COUNTRIES REST OF THE WORLD TOTAL

By type of financial instrument
Loans and advances to credit institutions 2,672,702 132,730 91,580 2,897,012
Loans and advances to customers 625,837 338,628 2,374 966,839
Debt instruments 6,315,353 265,781 16,861 6,597,995
Equity instruments 138,064 20,793 - 158,857
Trading derivatives 4,574,532 249,846 253,628 5,078,006

14,326,488 1,007,778 364,443 15,698,709
By financial instrument category-
Financial assets held for trading 5,277763 250,390 253,629 5,781,782
Other financial assets at fair value through 889,327 110,550 - 999,877
profit or loss
Available-for-sale financial assets (1) 3,473,536 136,900 - 3,610,436
Loans and receivables (2) 4,685,862 509,938 110,814 5,306,614

14,326,488 1,007,778 364,443 15,698,709

(1) Excluding impairment losses on debt instruments.
(2) Excluding not specifically identified impairment losses on debt instruments and loans and advances to customers included in this category.
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26.2. Concentration of equity instruments

After the spin-off process performed in 2012, no balance had
been recognised in this item in the balance sheet (see Note
1.1). Following 1s a detail, by type of market listing, if any, and
issuer, of the equity instruments held by the Confederacion at
31 December 2011:

31 December 2011:

Balance sheets
and accounts
CECA Group

THOUSANDS OF EUROS

FINANCIAL ASSETS AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE
HELD FOR TRADING FINANCIAL ASSETS
(NOTE 6.1) (NOTE 7) TOTAL
By market listing
Shares listed in the Spanish secondary market 38,749 22,671 61,420
Shares listed in secondary markets in the rest of the world 535 19,360 19,895
Unlisted shares - 77,542 77,542
39,284 119,573 158,857
By issuer type
Spanish financial institutions 12,737 7,974 20,711
Other Spanish companies 26,011 91,282 117,293
Other foreign companies 536 20,317 20,853
39,284 119,573 158,857
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27. Welfare fund The changesin 2012 and 2011 in the balance of “Welfare Fund”

on the liability side of the balance sheets are as follows:
Confederacion Espafiola de Cajas de Ahorros, within the framework

of its welfare projects, finances Fundacién de las Cajas de Ahorros THOUSANDS OF EUROS

(FUNCAS), a private not-for-profit organisation that engages 2012 2011
in activities that benefit Spanish society, promote saving, and Beginning balance before distribution 715 266
contribute to the raising of public awareness of savings banks by of profit

facilitating the service provided by them to societu. (Tl:laorlzf%r) charged to prior period profit 3,715 3,995
In particular, the objectives of the Fundacién are: Maintenance expenses for the year:

Depreciation/amortization of assets

> the promotion of economic and social studies and research : :
assigned to welfare projects

> the organisation of public events, and
ganisati public ev ; Ehuedgzzid current expenses for (3715)  (4,046)
> cultural dissemination in the broadest sense of the term .
_ o _ _ Other expenses from previous years - -
and the fostering of all activities leading to a heightened . L
Ending balance before distribution 215 215

awareness of the Spanish economy and society, thus of profit
encouraging useful recommendations regarding economic
and social policy.

At 31 December 2012 and 2011 and throughout those years,
the Confederacién’s Welfare fund was not invested in any
tangible or intangible assets.
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28. Other significant disclosures

28.1. Contingent liabilities

After the spin-off process performed in 2012, no balance had been
recognised in this item in the balance sheet (see Note 1.1). The
breakdown of the balance of “Memorandum Items - Contingent
Liabilities” in the balance sheet at 31 December 2011 is as follows:

THOUSANDS OF EUROS

2012 2011
Financial guarantees provided
Financial bank guarantees - 68,445
Documentary credits = 6,072
- 74,517
Other bank guarantees and indemnities - 63,085
- 137,602

“Financial Guarantees Provided” are defined as the amounts that
would be payable by the Confederacién on behalf of third parties
as a result of the commitments assumed by the Confederacion in
the course of its ordinary business, if the parties who are originally
liable to pay fail to do so. Note 22 includes information on the
credit risk assumed by the Confederacion in relation to financial
guarantees provided.

A significant portion of these guarantees will expire without any
payment obligation materializing for the Confederacién and,
therefore, the aggregate balance of these commitments cannot
be considered as an actual future need for financing or liquidity to
be provided by the Confederacién to third parties.

The fee and commission income from these financial guarantees
is recognized under “Fee and Commission Income” in the income
statement (see Note 32).

The provisions made to cater for the financial guarantees provided,
which were calculated using criteria similar to those applied in
the calculation of the impairment of financial assets measured at
amortized cost, were recognized under “Provisions - Provisions
for Contingent Liabilities and Commitments” in the balance sheet
(see Note 16).
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28.2. Assets delivered as security

After the spin-off process performed in 2012, no balance had been
recognised At 31 December 2011 in this item. At 31 December
2011, assets owned by the Confederacion had been provided as
security for transactions performed by it or by third parties, as
well as for various liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed by
the Confederacién. The nominal amount, of the financial assets
delivered as security for these liabilities, contingent liabilities and
similar items at 31 December 2011 was as follows:

THOUSANDS OF EUROS

2012 2011
Spanish government debt securities
classified as available-for-sale = 20,000
financial assets
Oth.er securities dgss1ﬁ¢d as ) 1071782
available-for-sale financial assets
- 1,091,782

Balance sheets
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At 31 December 2011, the Confederacién had securities with
a face value of EUR 1,091,782 thousand as security for the
performance of the Confederacion’s obligations relating to
transactions with the clearing and settlement services.

In addition, at 31 December 2011, the Confederacién had
entered into repurchase agreements for securities in its portfolio
and reverse repurchase agreements for a total amount of EUR
3,037,368 thousand.

“Memorandum Item: Loaned or Advanced as Collateral”, which is
shown in each of the Confederacidon’s financial asset categories
in the balance sheets at 31 December 2011, includes the
amount of financial assets transferred, lent out or delivered as
security in which the assignee is entitled, contractually or by
custom, to retransfer them or pledge them as security, such as
securities lending transactions or sales of financial assets under
an agreement to repurchase them at a fixed price or at the sale
price plus interest.
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28.3. Contingent commitments 28.4. Transactions for the account of third parties
After the spin-off process performed in 2012, no balance had After the spin-off process performed in 2012, no balance had
been recognised in this item in the balance sheet (see Note 1.1). been recognised in this item in the balance sheet (see Note
The breakdown of the balance of “Contingent Commitments” at 1.1). The breakdown of the most significant transactions for the
31 December 2011 is as follows: account of third parties at 31 December 2011 is as follows:

THOUSANDS OF EUROS

2012 2011 THOUSANDS OF EUROS
Drawable by third parties (Note 22): 2012 2011
Public sector - Spain - 875,550 Financial instruments _ 98 542,046
Credit institutions 26 761 entrusted by third parties
it instituti -
_ ; - Conditional bills and other
Other resident sectors i 358,249 securities received for - 2,211,084
Non-resident sectors - 300 collection
- 1,260,860 Borrowed securities )
(Note 28.5) S
Financial asset forward purchase ) 4944 - 101,070,677
commitments '
Regular way financial asset ) 954,852
purchase contracts
Other contingent commitments - 77014
- 2,297,670

[[B
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28.5. Financial assets lent and borrowed

Pursuant to current legislation, the securities received by the
Confederacioén in securities lending transactions are not recog-
nized in the balance sheet unless the Confederacion sells these
securities in short sales transactions, in which case they are
recognized as financial liabilities under “Financial Liabilities Held
For Trading - Short Positions” on the liability side of the balance
sheet (see Note 6).

Similarly, securities lending transactions in which the Confeder-
acion lends securities to third parties are not recognized in the
balance sheet. The securities lent can be securities previously
lent to the Confederacién or securities owned by it, and in the
latter case these are not derecognized.

Deposits provided or received as security or guarantee for the
securities received or lent by the Confederacién, respectively,
are accounted for as a financial asset or a financial liability, re-
spectively, and the interest associated therewith is recognized
as interest and similar income or as interest expense and similar
charges, respectively, in the income statement, by applying the
corresponding effective interest rate.

After the spin-off process performed in 2012, (see Note 1.1). no
balance had been recognised in this item in the Profit and Loss
account Following is a detail of the fair value of the financial as-
sets borrowed and lent by Confederacion in securities lending
transactions at 31 December 2011:
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THOUSANDS OF EUROS

2012 2011
Securities lent by the Confederacion
Equity instruments-
Issued by credit institutions - 56,923
Issued by other resident sectors - 63,960
Issued by other non-resident sectors - 168,618
Debt instruments
Issued by credit institutions - 203,969
Issued by other resident sectors - 35,019
Issued by Public Spanish Administrations - 53,232
Issued by non-resident Spanish Public sector - 20,689
- 602,410
Securities borrowed by the Confederacion (Note 28.4)
Equity instruments
Issued by credit institutions - 55,834
Issued by other resident sectors - 74,620
Issued by other non-resident sectors - 175,313
Debt instruments
Issued by Public sector - Spain - 11,780
- 317,547
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Finance income recognized by the Confederaciéon in 2011 in
relation to securities lent totaled EUR 37446 thousand and is
recognized under “Interest and Similar Income” in the income
statement for 2011 (see Note 29).

In 2011, finance costs relating to securities borrowed amounted
to EUR 89,735 thousand and were recognized under “Interest
Expense and Similar Charges” in the income statement for 2011
(see Note 30).

28.6. The Confederacién’s Customer Care Service

Following is a summary of the complaints and claims received
by the Confederacién.’s Customer Care Service in 2011. Claims
made to the service which were not admitted for consideration
in 2011 relate to claims affecting entities other than the
Confederacion.

2011
Number of complaints and claims received 50

Number of complaints and claims admitted
for consideration

Number of complaints and claims resolved -

Number of complaints and claims resolved in
favour of the complainant

Number of complaints and claims resolved against

the claimant

Compensation paid to claimants -
Number of complaints and claims outstanding -
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29. Interest and similar income

The breakdown of the most important interest and similar
income earned by the Confederacién in 2012 and 2011, by type
of instrument giving rise to it, is as follows:

THOUSANDS OF EUROS

2012 2011
Balances with central banks - 927
Loans and advances to credit institutions 3,008 63,882
Loans and advances to customers
Non-resident public sector - 10
Money market operations through counterparties - 7984
Other resident sectors - 5,959
Other non-resident sectors - 259
Debt instruments - 191,344
Finance income from securities lending transactions (Note 28.5) - 37446
Other interest - 3,177
Rectification of income as result of hedging transactions - 12,067
3,008 323,055
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Additionally, the breakdown of the amounts recognized under 30. Interest expense and similar charges
“Interest and Similar Income” in the income statements for 2012

and 2011, by type of financial instrument category giving rise to

them, is as follows:

THOUSANDS OF EUROS

After the spin-off process performed in 2012, (see Note 1.1)
no balance had been recognised in this item in the Profit and
Loss account The detail of the balance of “Interest Expense and
Similar Charges” in the income statements for 2011, by type of

2012 2011 instrument giving rise to them, is as follows:
Balances with central banks - 927 USSR FUeS
Financial assets held for trading - 45,227 2012 2011
Available-for-sale fi ial t - 96,859
Ot financial assets at fa value | EEl Gl B
. - 55,248 Other central banks - 247
through profit or loss _ -
Loans and receivables 3008 75281 Deposits from cr_ed1t institutions - 33,390
Securities lending transactions HISTOmIEr CEpesiEs - SO
(Note 28.5) . 37,446 Money market operations through ) 53261
L : counterparties '
Rectification of income as result of _ _
hedging transactions ) 12,067 Cost attributable to pension funds ) 91
3,008 323,055 NI 562
Finance costs attributable to
securities lending transactions - 89,735
(Note 28.5)
Other interest - 1
- 208,463
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After the spin-off process performed in 2012, no balance had
been recognised in this item in the Profit and Loss account (see
Note 1.1). The breakdown of the amounts recognized under
“Interest Expense and Similar Charges” in the income statements

31. Income from equity instruments

The detail of “Income from Equity Instruments” in the income
statements for 2012 and 2011 is as follows:

for 2011, by type of financial instrument category giving rise to
them, is as follows:

THOUSANDS OF EUROS

2012 2011
THOUSANDS OF EUROS Dividends on investments in Group

2012 2011 companies and jointly controlled 4000 2,250
Financial liabilities held for trading - entities (Note 41)
Short positions - 12,200 Other dividends - 112,755
Financial liabilities at amortized cost - 51,711 4,000 115,005
Securities lending (Note 28.5) - 89,735
Other financial liabilities at fair value “Dividends on Investments in Group Companies and Jointly
through profit or loss i 53,895 Controlled entities” in the foregoing table relates to the dividends
Other liabilities - 922 generated by the investment in the share capital of Cecabank,

8 208,463 S.A. (see Note 11).

At 31 December 2011, “Other Dividends” included, inter alia,
dividends on securities classified as held for trading and dividends
received from securities received on loan by the Confederacion.
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32. Fee and commission income

After the spin-off process performed in 2012, no balance had
been recognised in this item in the Profit and Loss account (see
Note 1.1). Following is a detail of the fee and commission income
earned in 2011, classified on the basis of the main items giving
rise thereto:

THOUSANDS OF EUROS

2012 2011

Fee and commission income -
Fees and commissions arising from

contingent liabilities (Note 28.1) ] UL

Fees'and commisgions arising from ) 5171

contingent commitments '

Fees and commissions arising from

collection and payment services - >8,114

Fees and commissions arising from

securities services (*) ’ ] e

Fees and commissions arising from

foreign currency and foreign banknote - 501

exchange

Other fees and commissions - 7817
- 103,854

(*) In 2011, this item included, EUR 18,207 thousand relating to custody services in
connection with securities of third parties deposited at the Confederation.

33. Fee and commission expense

After the spin-off process performed in 2012, no balance had
been recognised in this item in the Profit and Loss account
(see Note 1.1). Following is a detail of the fee and commission
expense incurred in 2011, classified on the basis of the main
items giving rise thereto:

THOUSANDS OF EUROS

2012 2011

Fee and commission expense -
Fees and commissions assigned to

g - 23,493
other entities and correspondents
Fee and commission expenses on i 9217
securities transactions '

- 32,710

248

[[B

ceca | cecabank



5 CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS annual report 2012
D
Balance sheets and accounts Balance sheets Balance sheets
Confederacién Espafiola de and accounts and accounts
Cajas de Ahorros (CECA) Cecabank CECA Group

34. Net gains/losses on financial assets
and labilities

After the spin-off process performed in 2012, no balance had been
recognised in this item in the Profit and Loss account (see Note
1.1). The breakdown of the balance of “Gains/Losses on Financial
Assets and Liabilities” in the income statements for 2011, by type

of financial instrument giving rise to them, is as follows:
THOUSANDS OF EUROS

INCOME/(EXPENSES)

2012 2011

Financial assets and liabilities held for trading - (35,004)
Trading derivatives - (972)
Debt instruments - 24137
Equity instruments - (51,301)
Short positions - (6,868)
Other financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss - (10,577)
Reverse repurchase agreements - 1,402
Deposits of the Bank of Spain - -
Repurchase agreements - (11,979)
Available-for-sale financial assets - (1,888)
Loans and receivables - 964
Results of hedging instruments - (21,341)
Results of hedged items - 17122
- (50,724)
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35. Other operating income 36. Administrative expenses - Staff costs

The breakdown of the balance of “Other Operating Income” in The detail of “Administrative Expenses - Staff Costs” in the
the income statements for 2012 and 2011 is as follows: income statements for 2012 and 2011 is as follows:

THOUSANDS OF EUROS

THOUSANDS OF EUROS 2012 2011

2012 2011 Wages and salaries 549 64,921
Rental income (Note 12) - 808 Social security costs 29 9,275
Costs recovered through their Insurance premiums (Note 2.11.1) - 4,203
inclusion in the cost of intangible - 511 Termination Benefits (Note 2.11.3) - 3,116
assets 5 Contributions to defined contribution ) 777
Income from Confederacién 13429 14389 plans (Note 2.11.1)

membership dues Normal cost for the year of defined

Costs passed on to savings banks - 17451 benefit obligations (Note 16.2) - 2
Other income - 41,210 Income from insurance policies - (1,551)
13,429 74,369 Training expenses - 143

Other staff costs - 796

The balance of “Income from Confederaciéon Membership Dues”
in the foregoing table includes the dues collected from federated
savings banks under the agreements between the latter and
the Confederacion (see Note 1). The balance of “Other Income”
includes various items, most notably the income from various
projects among federated savings banks.

578 81,734
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After the spin-off process performed in 2012, (see Note 1.1) all LEVEL 2011 LEVEL 2011
the Confederacién’s employees became employees of Cecabank, 1 - LEVEL | 11 2 - LEVEL | 1
S.A., except a small number of employees who are also part-time 1 - LEVEL Il 59 > - LEVEL Il 11
employees of Confederacion and work on the development of: 1 - LEVEL Il 37 > - LEVEL Il i
> support activities for the association and institutional 1 - LEVEL IV 8 > - LEVEL IV 5
representation functions performed by the Confederacién and, 1 - LEVEL V 67 > _ LEVEL V 1
> the .dailg mahagement of the Con.federa.cién and, in 1 - LEVEL VI 190 OTHER 24
particular, the indirect performance of its business through 1 - LEVEL VI 76 TOTAL a7
Cecabank, S.A.
» 1 - LEVEL VIII 119
In 2011, the average number of employees at the Confederacion, 1 - LEVEL IX 41
by level, was as follows:
1-LEVELX 27
1 - LEVEL X 53
1 - LEVEL XII 31
1 - LEVEL XIlI 2

At 31 December 2011 the total number of employees was 700,
of which 361 were men and 339 women, representing 51.57%
and 48.43%, respectively.
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37. Administrative expenses - Other
general administrative expenses
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The detail of the balance of “Administrative Expenses - Other
General Administrative Expenses” in the income statements for

2012 and 2011 is as follows:

THOUSANDS OF EUROS

2012 (*) 2011
Property, fixtures and supplies - 5115
IT equipment - 39,330
Communications - 4114
Advertising and publicity - 485
Technical reports 267 2,566
Surveillance and cash courier services - 5,346
Insurance and self-insurance premiums - 214
Governing and control bodies 867 1,420
Outsourced administrative services 9,137 10,683
Levies and taxes - 909
Entertainment and travel expenses 184 1,728
Association membership fees 991 2,062
External personnel - 2,145
Subscriptions and publications - 4,689
Other administrative expenses - 2,120

11,446 82,926

(*) Of which, in 2012, EUR 9,049
thousand related to the expenses
incurred by the Confederacion for the
services rendered by Cecabank, S.A.
(see Note 41).
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The balance of “Technical Reports” includes the fees paid for
the audit of the financial statements and other non-attest
services, the detail being as follows:

THOUSANDS OF EUROS
2012 2011

Audits of the companies audited by
firms belonging to the Deloitte world-
wide organization and other reports
related with the audit

61 128

Other reports reviewed by firms
belonging to the Deloitte worldwide 169 155
organization

230 283
Other services (other than audits)
conducted by firms belonging to the 569 308
Deloitte worldwide organization
Total Services 799 591

The amount of the entity’s audit, which related to the fees for the
Confederacion’s audit, was recognised under “Technical Reports”
in the foregoing table. The other items relate to the billings made
to the Confederacién prior to the spin-off that were transferred as
a result of the spin-off to Cecabank, S.A.

Additional Provision Three. “Disclosure obligation” provided
forin Law 15/2010, of 5 July

Pursuant to Law 15/2010, of 5 July, amending Law 3/2004,
of 29 December, on combating late payment in commercial
transactions, which was implemented by the Spanish Accounting
and Audit Institute (ICAC) Resolution of 29 December 2010, on
disclosures to be included in the notes to financial statements
with regard to the payment periods to suppliers in commercial
transactions, it is hereby stated that:

> The information presented in this Note on payment periods
relates exclusively to payments to suppliers for the provision
of sundry services and supplies to the Confederacion, other
than payments to depositors, which were made in all cases
in strict compliance with the contractual and legal terms
established for each of them, whether they were liabilities
payable on demand or with deferred payment. Neither does
this Note include information on payments to suppliers
excluded from the scope of this disclosure obligation pursuant
to the aforementioned ICAC Resolution, such as payments
to non-current asset suppliers that are not considered to be
trade creditors.
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> With regard to the disclosures required by Law 15/2010, of 5
July, relating to trade suppliers and the suppliers of services
to the Confederacién, and considering the stipulations of
Transitional Provision Two of the ICAC Resolution of 29
December 2010, set forth below is the information required
by the aforementioned law, with the scope defined in the
preceding paragraph.

In 2012:
THOUSANDS OF EUROS
PAYMENTS DURING 2012 AND
PAYABLE PAYMENTS AT YEAR
ENDED 2012
AMOUNT % (1)
Within maximum legal period (2) 3,677 100
Other - -
Total 2012 3,677 100

Exceeded weighted average terms of payments (as days) - -
Deferrals that exceed maximum legal period at year ended 2012 - -

(1) Percentage of the total.

(2) The maximum payment period is, in each case, that corresponding to the nature of the goods or services received by the
Confederacién in accordance with Law 3/2004, of 29 December, on combating late payment in commercial transactions.
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2011:

THOUSANDS OF EUROS

PAYMENTS DURING 2011 AND
PAYABLE PAYMENTS AT YEAR

ENDED 2011
AMOUNT % (1)
Within maximum legal period (2) 106,638 100
Other - -
Total 2011 106,638 100

Exceeded weighted average terms of payments (as days)
Deferrals that exceed maximum legal period at year ended 2011

(1) Percentage of the total.

(2) The maximum payment period is, in each case, that corresponding to the nature of the goods or services received by the
Confederacién in accordance with Law 3/2004, of 29 December, on combating late payment in commercial transactions.

255

= ceca | cecabank



5 CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS annual report 2012
D
Balance sheets and accounts Balance sheets Balance sheets
Confederacién Espafiola de and accounts and accounts
Cajas de Ahorros (CECA) Cecabank CECA Group
38. Other operating expenses 39. Impairment losses on financial assets

After the spin-off process performed in 2012, no balance had (net)
been recognised in this item in the Profit and Loss account (see
Note 1.1). The breakdown of the balance of “Other Operating
Expenses” in the income statements for 2011 was as follows:

After the spin-off process performed in 2012, no balance had
been recognised in this item in the Profit and Loss account (see
Note 1.1). The breakdown of the balance of “Impairment Losses

THOUSANDS OF EUROS on Financial Assets (net)” in the income statements for 2011

2011 was as follows:
Contribution to the Deposit Guarantee THOUSANDS OF EUROS
105
Fund (Note 1.10) NET (ADDITIONS)/ REVERSALS
Investment Real Estate Operating g7 (CHARGE:?&/C SF:/lEED'TED 10
Expenses
Other 2,940 2011
3,142 Debt instruments (Note 22.8)
Available-for-sale financial assets 689
Loans and receivables 9,735
10,424
Equity instruments-
Avaﬂa ble-for-sale equity (5.626)
instruments
(5,626)
4,798
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40. Depreciation and amortization

After the spin-off process performed in 2012, no balance had
been recognised in this item in the Profit and Loss account (see
Note 1.1). The detail of “Depreciation and Amortization” in the
income statements for 2011 was as follows:

THOUSANDS OF EUROS

2011
Depreciation of tangible assets (Note 12) 6,776
Amortization of intangible assets 290
(Note 13)

7,566

Balance sheets
and accounts
CECA Group

41. Related party transactions

Internal understanding
between the Confederacién Espafiola de Cajas de Ahorros
and Cecabank, S.A.

relationship memorandum of

As part of the process to incorporate Cecabank, S.A. and the
spin-off carried out by the Confederacién to this entity in
2012 (see Note 1.1), an “Internal relationship memorandum of
understanding between the Confederacién Espafiola de Cajas de
Ahorros and Cecabank, S.A.” was established. This memorandum
of understanding identifies the services that Cecabank provides
to the Confederacion and sets the general criteria for intra-Group
transactions and for the rendering of intra-Group services on an
arm’s-length basis, which are summarized below:

> Associative Services
> Compliance Services

> Communication, Institutional Relations, Protocol, Corporate
Image Management, Publishing and Contract Depository

> Reporting and regulatory Services

> Technical Area Services
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> General Secretary and Legal and Tax Advisory Services
> Monitoring of risk profile

> Planning and Control

> Human and estate Resources and

> Internal Audit Services

The expenses incurred by the Confederacion for these services
rendered by Cecabank, S.A., which amounted to EUR 9,049
thousand in 2012, were recognised under “Administrative
Expenses - Other General Administrative Expenses” in the 2012
income statement (see Note 37).

At 31 December 2011, the demand deposits held by the
Confederacién’s senior executives, the members of its Board of
Directors and related entities and individuals totaled EUR 467
thousand, and the loans granted to them amounted to EUR 792
thousand. These amounts bore interest of EUR 13 thousand

Balance sheets
and accounts
CECA Group

and EUR 4 thousand, which were recognized under “Interest
and Similar Income” and “Interest Expense and Similar Charges”,
respectively. At 31 December 2011 the Confederacién had not
provided any guarantees for related parties, as defined in Bank
of Spain Circular 4/2004, of 22 December.

As mentioned in Note 4, there were no senior executives at 31
December 2012 orin 2012 who rendered their services full time
at the Confederacion and, accordingly, there was no balance in
this connection on the balance sheet.

At 31 December 2012 and 2011, there were no balances in
relation to the Board of Directors or to persons related thereto.

The breakdown of the balances arising from transactions with
jointly controlled entities recognized in the balance sheets at 31
December 2012 and 2011 and in the income statements for
2012 and 2011 is as follows (Note 2.1):
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THOUSANDS OF EUROS

2012 2011
JOINTLY JOINTLY
CONTROLLED CONTROLLED
SUBSIDIARIES ENTITIES SUBSIDIARIES ENTITIES
Asset:
Loans and receivables (Note 8) 13,542 - - 38
Liablities:
Financial liabilities at amortized cost (Note 15) 101 - 194 2,413
Income statement:
Interest and Similar Income (Note 29) 3,008 - - -
Income from Equity Instruments (Note 31) 4,000 - - 2,250
Other general administrative esxpenses (Note 37) 9,049 - 64 -
Other general administrative expenses - - 126 485
42 . Events after the balance sheet date 43. Explanation added for translation to
From the balance sheet date to the date on which these financial EnghSh
statements were authorized for issue there were no events These financial statements are presented on the basis of the
significantly affecting them. Bank of Spain Circular 4/2004. Certain accounting practices

applied by the Bank that conform with the Circular may not
conform with other generally accepted accounting principles.

259 = ceca | cecabank



5 CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

annual report 2012

.
Balance sheets and accounts Balance sheets Balance sheets
Confederacién Espafiola de and accounts and accounts
Cajas de Ahorros (CECA) Cecabank CECA Group
Appendix |

Subsidiaries included in the Group at 31 December 2012

PROPORTION OF OWNERSHIP
INTEREST (%)

THOUSANDS OF EUROS

ENTITY DATA AT 31 DECEMBER 2012 (*)

LINE OF

PROFIT FOR

ENTITY LOCATION  BUSINESS DIRECT  INDIRECT  TOTAL ASSETS LIABILITIES EQUITY THE YEAR

Cecabank, S.A. Madrid Cre(.ht. 89 = 89 15,015,995 14,261,603 754,392 34,654
Institution

(*) These companies’ financial statements at 31 December 2012 have not yet been approved by their shareholders at the respective Annual General Meetings.

Subsidiaries included in the Group at 31 December 2011

PROPORTION OF OWNERSHIP
INTEREST (%)

MILES DE EUROS

ENTITY DATA AT 31 DECEMBER 2011

LINE OF PROFIT FOR
ENTITY LOCATION  BUSINESS DIRECT  INDIRECT  TOTAL ASSETS LIABILITIES EQUITY THE YEAR
Caja Activa, SA. Madrid T 99.99 - 99.99 267 31 236 34
CEA Trade Hong Foreign ) )
Services Limited Kong trade LOE LOE = i =
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Appendix Il

Jointly controlled entities at 31 December 2011

THOUSANDS OF EUROS

PROPORTION OF OWNERSHIP

INTEREST (%) ENTITY DATA AT 31 DECEMBER 2011

PROFIT FOR
ENTITY LOCATION  LINE OF BUSINESS DIRECT INDIRECT  TOTAL ASSETS LIABILITIES EQUITY THE YEAR
Ahorro y
Titulizacion, Securitization
Sociedad Gestora Madrid SPV 50 - 50 14770 10177 4.593 3.010
de Fondos de management

Titulizacién, S.A.
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External Audit Report
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[Translation of a report originally issued in Spanish. In the event of a discrepancy, the Spanish-language version prevails.]

Balance sheets and accounts Cecabank
BALANCE SHEET AT 31 DECEMBER 2012 (THOUSANDS OF EURQS)

Page 1 of 3

1. Cash and balances with central banks (Note 5) 463,115

2. Financial assets held for trading (Note 6.1) 6,128,285

2.1 Loans and advances to credit institutions -

2.2 Loans and advances to customers -

2.3 Debt instruments 872,410

2.4 Equity instruments 51,905

2.5 Trading derivatives 5,203,970

Memorandum item: Loaned or advanced as collateral 539,993

3. Other financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (Note 6.2) 2,588,042

3.1 Loans and advances to credit institution 1,798,113

3.2 Loans and advances to customers 789,929

3.3 Debt instruments -

3.4 Equity instruments -

Memorandum item: Loaned or advanced as collateral 1,170,479

4. Available-for-sale financial assets (Note 7) 3,623,218

e ST N 1 ey 42 4.1 Debt instruments 3,540,084
and Appendixes | and Il are an 4.2 Equity instruments 83,134
;T;ira[leiae:qgfetrhzeoiaz]_ance sheet Memorandum item: Loaned or advanced as collateral 1,181,784

263 = ceca | cecabank



5 CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS annual report 2012
D
Balance sheets and accounts Balance sheets Balance sheets
Confederacién Espafiola de and accounts and accounts
Cajas de Ahorros (CECA) Cecabank CECA Group

BALANCE SHEET AT 31 DECEMBER 2012 (THOUSANDS OF EUROS)

Page 2 of 3

5. Loans and receivables (Note 8) 1,910,629
5.1 Loans and advances to credit institutions 1,282,139
5.2 Loans and advances to customers 370,838
5.3 Debt instruments 257,652
Memorandum item: Loaned or advanced as collateral 3,034

6. Held-to-maturity investments -
Memorandum item: Loaned or advanced as collateral -

7. Changes in the fair value of hedged items in portfolio hedges of interest rate risk -
8. Hedging derivatives (Note 9) -
9. Non-current assets held for sale (Note 10) 84
10. Investments (Note 11) 515
10.1 Associates -
10.2 Jointly controlled entities 451
10.3 Subsidiaries 64

11. Insurance contracts linked to pensions -

The accompanying Notes 1 to 42
and Appendixes | and Il are an
integral part of the balance sheet
at 31 December 2012.

264 = ceca | cecabank



5 CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS annual report 2012
D
Balance sheets and accounts Balance sheets Balance sheets
Confederacién Espafiola de and accounts and accounts
Cajas de Ahorros (CECA) Cecabank CECA Group

BALANCE SHEET AT 31 DECEMBER 2012 (THOUSANDS OF EUROS)

Page 3 of 3

13. Tangible assets (Note 12) 94,046
131 Property, plant and equipment 92,950
13.1.1 For own use 92,950

13.1.2 Leased out under an operating lease -

13.1.3 Assigned to welfare projects -

13.2 Investment property 1,096
Memorandum item: Acquired under a finance lease -
14. Intangible assets (Note 13) 50,819
141 Goodwill -
14.2 Other intangible assets 50,819
15. Tax assets 125,069
151 Current 9,690
15.2 Deferred (Note 20) 115,379

16. Other assets (Note 14) 32,173

TOTAL ASSETS 15,015,995

The accompanying Notes 1 to 42

and Appendixes | and Il are an MEMORANDUM ITEMS
integral part of the balance sheet 1. Contingent liabilities (Note 27.1) 64,853

G &1, DEE2Cr 002 2. Contingent commitments (Note 27.3) 886,556
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BALANCE SHEET AT 31 DECEMBER 2012 (THOUSANDS OF EUROS)

Page 1 of 4
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY 2012
LIABILITIES
1. Financial liabilities held for trading (Note 6.1) 5,592,180
1.1 Deposits from central banks -
1.2 Deposits from credit institutions -
1.3 Customer deposits -
1.4 Marketable debt securities -
1.5 Trading derivatives 5,158,066
1.6 Short positions 434114
1.7 Other financial liabilities -
2. Other financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss (Note 6.2) 2,887,600
2.1 Deposits from central banks -
2.2 Deposits from credit institutions 1,824,376
2.3 Customer deposits 1,063,224

2.4 Marketable debt securities -
2.5 Subordinated liabilities =

2.6 Other financial liabilities =

The accompanying Notes 1 to 42
and Appendixes | and Il are an
integral part of the balance sheet
at 31 December 2012.
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BALANCE SHEET AT 31 DECEMBER 2012 (THOUSANDS OF EUROQS)

Page 2 of 4
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY 2012
LIABILITIES
3.Financial liabilities at amortised cost (Note 15) 5,067,628
3.1 Deposits from central banks 1,309,497
3.2 Deposits from credit institutions 2.039.539
3.3 Customer deposits 1.532.248
3.4 Marketable debt securities -
3.5 Subordinated liabilities -
3.6 Other financial liabilities 186,344
4. Changes in the fair value of hedged items in portfolio hedges of interest rate risk -
5. Hedging derivatives (Note 9) 16,845
6. Liabilities associated with non-current assets held for sale -
8. Provisions (Note 16) 238,336
8.1 Provisions for pensions and similar obligations 93,569
8.2 Provisions for taxes and other legal contingencies -
8.3 Provisions for contingent liabilities and commitments 54758
8.4 Other provisions 90,009
The accompanying Notes 1 to 42 9. Tax liabilities (Note 20) 26,165
and Appendixes | and Il are an
integral part of the balance sheet 9.1 Current 2,757
at 31 December 2012. 9 2 Deferred 23,408
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BALANCE SHEET AT 31 DECEMBER 2012 (THOUSANDS OF EUROS)

Page 3 of 4

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY 2012

LIABILITIES
11. Other liabilities (Note 14) 432,849
12. Other liabilities Capital repayable an demand -

EQUITY

1. Own funds 757,914
1.1 Endowment fund 112,257
1.1.1 Registered capital (Note 18) 112,257
1.1.2 Less: Uncalled capital -
1.2 Share premium (Note 18) 615,493
1.3 Reserves (Note 19) -
1.4 Other equity instruments -
1.4.1 Equity component of compound financial instruments -
1.4.2 Non-voting equity units and associated funds (Note 20) -
1.4.3 Other equity instruments -
The accompanying Notes 1 to 42 1 Less.: Treasurg shares )
and Appendixes | and l are an 1.6 Profit for the year 34,654
iz il pEre gide belance slizs 1.7 Less: Dividends and remuneration (4,490)

at 31 December 2012.
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BALANCE SHEET AT 31 DECEMBER 2012 (THOUSANDS OF EUROS)

Page 4 of 4
EQUITY
2. Valuation adjustments (3,522)
2.1 Available-for-sale financial assets (Note 17) (1,325)
2.2 Cash flow hedges (Note 17) (2,197)

2.3 Hedges of net investments in foreign operations -
2.4 Exchange differences -
2.5 Non-current assets held for sale -
2.6 Entities accounted for using the equity method -
2.7 Other valuation adjustments -

TOTAL EQUITY 754,392
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY 15,015,995

The accompanying Notes 1 to 42
and Appendixes | and Il are an
integral part of the balance sheet
at 31 December 2012.
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[Translation of a report originally issued in Spanish. In the event of a discrepancy, the Spanish-language version prevails.]

INCOME STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2012 (THOUSANDS OF EUROS)

Page 1 of 3
2012
1. Interest and similar income (Note 28) 186,315
2. Interest expense and similar charges (Note 29) (61,149)
3. Remuneration of capital having the nature of a financial liability -
4. Income from equity instruments (Note 30) 19,001
5. Share of results of entities accounted for using the equity method (Note 31) 111,378
6. Fee and commission income (Note 32) (33,189)
8. Gains/losses on financial assets and liabilities (net) (Note 33) 6,928
8.1 Held for trading (7,683)
8.2 Other financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss 2,991
8.3 Financial instruments not measured at fair value through profit or loss 5,250
8.4 Other 6,370
9. Exchange differences (net) 37,845
N 10. Other operating income (Note 34) 61,668
and Appendixes | and Il are an 11. Other operating expenses (Note 37) (1,074)
integral part of the income
statement for 2012.
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INCOME STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2012 (THOUSANDS OF EUROS)

Page 2 of 3

2012

12. Administrative expenses (128,051)

121 Staff costs (Note 35) (56,730)

12.2 Other general administrative expenses (Note 36) (71,321)

13. Depreciation and amortisation (Note 39) (14,359)

14. Provisions (net) (Note 16) (41,340)

15. Impairment losses on financial assets (net) (Notes 22 and 38) (52,700)

151 Loans and receivables (11,638)

15.2 Other financial instruments not measured at fair value through profit or loss (41,062)

16. Impairment losses on other assets (net) (44,810)

16.1 Goodwill and other intangible assets (Note 13) (44,810)

16.2 Other assets -

The accompanying Notes 1 to 42 17. Gains (losses) on disposal of assets not classified as non-current assets held for sale (8)
and Appendixes | and Il are an

integral part of the income 18. Negative goodwill on business combinations -

statement for 2012.

19. Gains (losses) on non-current assets held for sale not classified
as discontinued operations (Note 10) -
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INCOME STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2012 (THOUSANDS OF EURQOS)

The accompanying Notes 1 to 42
and Appendixes | and Il are an
integral part of the income
statement for 2012.

Page 3 of 3
2012
20. Income tax (Note 20) (11,801)
21. Mandatory transfer to welfare projects and funds -
22. Profit/Loss from discontinued operations (net) -
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[Translation of a report originally issued in Spanish. In the event of a discrepancy, the Spanish-language version prevails.]

STATEMENT OF RECOGNISED INCOME AND EXPENSE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2012 (THOUSANDS OF EUROS)

Page 1 of 2

2012

B. OTHER RECOGNISED INCOME AND EXPENSE (3,522)
1. Available-for-sale financial assets (1,892)
1.1 Revaluation gains (losses) (37723)
1.2 Amounts transferred to income statement 35,831
1.3 Other 